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INTRODUCTION TO THE TRUST
A BRIEF HISTORY
For more than one hundred and fifty years, a Royal Hospital has served the
population of Chesterfield and the surrounding towns and villages of North
Derbyshire. With choice, its patients now often come from further afield – drawn
by our specialist services, reputation and the quality of service we aspire to
achieve.
The hospital has built a solid reputation for high-quality services and excellent
patient care, meeting local needs within available resources. This status
continues today – the Royal is modern and progressive and strives to make
continual improvement for the benefit of its community.
On 29 April 1984 the current hospital was opened in Calow, two miles outside
Chesterfield’s town centre – and so this year it celebrated its 25th anniversary.
On 1 April 1993, the Royal became one of the country’s first NHS trusts,
remaining in the NHS and still under direct control of the Department of Health.
NHS trusts had more control over their own affairs, but central financial
constraints remained.
Developments over the last 25 years since the hospital was opened, have
allowed the Royal to continually improve services and facilities for patients and
staff. In the largest area of the hospital all the main surgical and medical
specialties are provided, as well as clinical and non-clinical support services.
These include:











Intensive care and high dependency;
Emergency services (including A & E and an emergency management unit);
A theatre suite including specialist theatres for orthopedics and two post
anaesthetic care units;
Pathology laboratories, physiotherapy and occupational therapy;
Diagnostic radiology, CT scanning and MRI scanning;
A cardiac catheter suite;
Osteoporosis centre;
Ten out-patient suites including a rapid access chest pain clinic;
Scarsdale Wing, housing: antenatal clinic, chemotherapy unit, dialysis unit
and day care unit dedicated to cataract operating theatre; and Nightingale
Ward for children; and
The Den – named by local school children this centre provides a range of
specialist services for children, including physiotherapy and child and
adolescent mental health.

In 2003, by achieving a three-star rating in the national ‘league tables’, the Royal
was able to apply for NHS foundation trust status. Monitor (the independent
regulator of NHS foundation trusts) approved the application in December 2004
and Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust began life on 1 January
2005 as a ‘public benefit corporation’.
As a foundation trust, the Royal remains firmly within the NHS. It is accountable
to the local people it serves through their membership of the trust and election to
the council of governors. They are working with the trust to shape the Royal’s
future and build a hospital they can be proud of.
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Foundation trust status is allowing the organisation greater freedoms and more
control over the services we provide and develop. It also means for the first time
that we have been using financial gains to our benefit, reinvesting them in-patient
services and developments. And as a result, the foundation trust has invested
£80 million in new services and facilities over the past five years.
Whilst the last few years have seen rapid development the challenge looking
forward will be to build on quality services, improve patient experience and work
cost effectively for the benefit of the community and beyond.
STRATEGIC STATEMENT
Our Mission
We want: To be your hospital of choice
Our Aims
We will:









Put you – the patient – at the centre of everything we do;
Offer our patients the specialist hospital care they need;
Deliver complementary and integrated services by working with other health
and social care organisations;
Create high-quality care from our resources;
Keep and build on our relationships as ‘partners in care’;
Provide good career and educational opportunities for our staff;
Create a safe, clean, pleasant, modern and welcoming environment; and
Find, recruit and keep exceptional staff.

Our Values
We believe in:






Integrity, openness, accountability and honesty;
Respect, fairness, dignity and individual need;
Offering our staff opportunity to reach their goals and aspirations;
Promoting initiative; and providing support and encouragement; and
Striving for excellence, sharing learning and adopting best practice.

Our Expectations
We expect:




Everyone working for, and involved with our organisation, to stand by these
principles at all times;
You (our patients and visitors) to tell us when you think your experiences of
our hospital are ‘excellent’ or not ‘up to scratch’; and
Everyone – staff, patients and visitors – to help us to reduce infection by
washing their hands.
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STATEMENT OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
This is Chesterfield Royal Hospital’s fifth year as an NHS foundation trust and we
have built upon past success – with more new developments and facilities
contributing to improved patient experience. The board of directors and council
of governors have remained fully supportive of our determination to provide the
very best in quality for the people we serve. Consequently, our investment
programme hit a peak of more than £13 million over the last 12 months –
demonstrating our continued commitment to the biggest of all foundation trust
‘freedoms’ – the ability to invest in our own future.
One of the largest schemes to come to fruition was a £2million upgrade of the
central delivery suite. With around 3000 babies born at the Royal each year, it’s
a busy unit. Opened in 1997, it had long needed a refurbishment, to re-create
the level of standard we want to aspire to.
The result, after 40 weeks of work, was a ‘hotel-style’ Birth Centre – with ensuite
bathrooms, large open natural birthing rooms, mood lighting and hi-tech
equipment hidden out of sight. And all this was created with the help of mums
who, having had a baby in the old suite, were invited to tell us what type of
environment they would have wished for, in order to improve their birthing
experience. New mums using the centre since it opened ‘for business’ in
September 2009 have been thoroughly impressed with what’s on offer and the
difference it made for them.
The Chesterfield Birth Centre was given the royal ‘seal of approval’ eight months
later, when Her Royal Highness the Countess of Wessex GVCO visited the new
facility in May this year (2010). Highlighting the relaxing environment, and the
valuable investment, HRH met mums, babies and staff and later unveiled a
commemorative plaque to declare the Centre officially open.
New mums were not the only members of the community to put their voice behind
a project. In December last year, thanks to the support of our governors and
members, we were able to put an end to years of frustration for many of our
patients and visitors. After several months – and a spend of £1.1 million, the
hospital finally opened – not a clinical facility – but an extra 520 car parking
spaces on site. Planning permission for the expansion programme, which
included more footpaths, and roadway upgrades, was given the go ahead thanks
to this local support.
We now have dedicated parking for patients and visitors, in secure barrier
controlled areas, open 24 hours and patrolled by the trust’s security team. The
main entrance electronic sign clearly shows numbers of spaces available and
where they are. Front of site parking has patient and visitor priority and the new
system has reduced anxiety for the thousands of people who come to hospital
each week.
Our governors and members of the foundation trust also played a tremendous
part in our bid to secure planning permission for three new wards on site. After
hosting a public meeting at the end of 2008, to showcase the proposals and to
get views and opinions from local people, the planners were left to consider our
ideas.
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With local support and backing, the £12 million project - the largest we have
undertaken as an NHS foundation trust - was given the go ahead early in 2009.
Work began in July 2009 and the build will open for surgical, medical and
orthopaedic patients in September this year. The development is testament to
excellent partnership working – with the trust’s project team, including governor
representatives, working hand in hand with the local contractor (GB Solutions),
the architects (Manser Practice) and others.
The state of the art, energy efficient three-floor ‘wing’ looks out over open
countryside and will be bright, modern, relaxing and welcoming. It mirrors the
level of finish we are aiming to achieve in our continuing ward refurbishment
programme. Two more of our existing wards will be upgraded this year – to pave
the way for new developments in coronary care and stroke services – both of
which will improve the patient pathway.
Over three years, the ward upgrades will have accounted for £5 million of our
capital spend, to bring current accommodation ‘bang up-to-date’ with bed side
piped oxygen, the latest in infection control measures, comfortable soft
furnishings and more en-suite and single room facilities. This year the wards
have been highlighted as a model of good practice by the Department of Health
for the way they offer privacy and dignity – meeting same-sex guidelines for
sleeping arrangements and bathroom and toilet facilities.
It is not only our own capital monies that have been used to make a difference.
Through donations and legacies, we have been able to install the very best MRI
scanner available. These charitable funds have bought the scanner, the trust has
paid for the capital scheme to house the new equipment. The machine, which is
normally only found in large teaching hospitals, opens up new possibilities for
diagnosing a variety of conditions, including breast cancer, problems with the
nerves and spine, ligament damage and brain tumours. Work on the installation
was completed in May 2010.
Throughout the year, as well as providing the very best in terms of environment
and equipment, the focus has been on provision of clinical quality. The trust has
set itself the challenge of continuing clinical development, to improve outcomes
and experience and to ensure patients would want to make Chesterfield Royal
their ‘hospital of choice’.
To this end a lung cancer practitioner has been appointed to support patients
from referral through diagnosis and treatment. The special care baby unit has
been renovated and re-named the neo-natal unit – to better reflect the specialist
services it offers. The trust has introduced the World Health Organisation’s
surgical guidelines – to meet the latest patient safety requirements - and a
midwifery project to improve the health of obese women during pregnancy was
one of only 28 (out of 170) to be awarded an innovation grant by NHS East
Midlands.
In addition, the trust has been highlighted for several clinical initiatives over the
past 12 months across a range of specialties. We were awarded the ‘gold
standard’ for our colposcopy service, when an assessment by The British
Society of Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology revealed that our use of direct
referral resulted in routine patients waiting four weeks or less to be seen
(contributing to the prevention of cervical cancer). The Royal was also one of
only a handful of hospitals to receive national exemplar centre status in the
treatment of the potentially deadly venous thromboembolism condition.
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The stroke unit also successfully used thrombolysis for the first time at the end of
2009. The drug treatment, if given within three hours of a patient’s stroke (if they
are clinically suitable to receive it) can result in full recovery from symptoms – and
can greatly reduce and reverse the after effects of others. Previously patients
had to go to Sheffield to receive this treatment – reducing the ‘window of
opportunity’ because of travel time.
As well as the above, the trust featured in a national report from the Prostate
Cancer Charter for Action organisation. It illustrated the fact that the Royal has
the second lowest mortality rate for prostate cancer in the country at 13 deaths
per 100,000 cases, against a national average of 25. The trust’s ‘one-stop’
prostate biopsy clinic, which contributes to the early detection and subsequent
treatment of our prostate cancer service has also been highlighted as a beacon
of good practice by the Department of Health.
Added to this mix is the introduction of nursing metrics – which continually assess
and improve on nursing care standards across all wards. Every month each ward
is checked against nine criteria – making this one of the most thorough
programmes in the country. The metrics examine a ward’s approach to all
aspects of care – from patient nutrition and feeding, to ward cleanliness and
infection control. And in this regard the trust has achieved extremely low levels of
hospital acquired infection. Just five cases of bMRSA and 50 cases of
Clostridium difficile were recorded over the past 12 months – in the context of
around 60,000 in-patient admissions. All (appropriate) patients due to undergo
any kind of surgical procedure are now routinely screened for MRSA in advance
of coming in to hospital. The programme discovers the number of patients who
harmlessly carry the MRSA bacteria on their skin or in their nasal cavities – so
they can be treated before their procedure.
Our governors are also actively involved in the bid to ensure standards on wards
remain high. They undertake ward visits, speaking to patients, visitors and
carers. They assess patient mealtimes, help with infection control audits and,
through the patient and public involvement committee, work to improve patient
services by examining many aspects of the patient experience. This includes
looking at themes and trends in complaints – and making sure to ensure
improvements are made.
Despite all these achievements, October 2009 was disappointing for the trust,
when it was downgraded by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in its annual
healthcare check¹. Whilst maintaining the highest possible rating for the quality of
our financial management (for four consecutive years), the trust failed to achieve
four out of a range of 67 quality standards. These centred on stroke care, data
collection in maternity and smoking and breastfeeding rates amongst new mums.
Whilst stroke services had already improved (by the time the health check was
published) and data collection issues had been resolved, the lifestyle choices
among new mums is still a difficult issue to tackle and continues to be a challenge
for the trust.
Whilst the health check result was not what had hoped for, other assessments
reaffirmed our belief that our services offer excellent quality. The CQC’s national
out-patient survey rated us in the top 20% for half of the questions asked – with
high scores for waiting times, cleanliness and overall care.
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An unannounced visit by the CQC to inspect our infection control and prevention
measures failed to find a single area of concern - and the national patient
environment action team returned a ‘good’ rating for its assessment of our
environment and food as well as privacy and dignity standards.
Financially, the trust has had another strong year - achieving a net surplus of
£7.6m (against a planned surplus of £6.5m). We are in a robust financial
position, as we – and all public sector organisations - enter an increasingly
challenging period.
In February 2010, to meet national NHS efficiency targets, we announced that we
would be looking to save around £6 million over the next financial year. To
enable these efficiencies to be realised we turned to our staff – as they know the
organisation better than anyone. Staff throughout the trust have worked with
their directorate teams to contribute innovative ideas, proposals and plans as to
how these efficiency savings can be achieved. There has been cross directorate
working, wide engagement and an assurance that quality is not reduced below
acceptable standards.
The board of directors has pledged that quality of care will not be compromised
by any efficiency saving plans. All proposals have been judged against a number
of key principles – including patient safety and meeting professional codes of
conduct. Realisation of financial savings is, rightly, last on the list.
Staff are integral to ensuring we are able to work ‘smarter’ and more effectively –
making savings by working to best practice and providing the best possible
service to patients. And it is to staff that we turn as we summarise this last year.
As always their hard work, commitment and support has been award worthy.
They have seen us through a difficult winter – with record levels of snow and
black ice contributing to high numbers of A&E patients, unprecedented levels of
emergency medical admissions and swine flu just some of the issues they have
had to face. And as usual, they have tackled them head on – walking miles to
get to work, staying overnight and working extra shifts to make sure patients and
patient services were disrupted as little as possible.
It is saddening that our appreciation of this dedication was not reflected in the
national staff survey, which once again showed that many of our staff felt
unsupported and unvalued. Throughout 2009 and as we go into 2010, we are
working hard to address these concerns.
With governors, staff side
representatives and board members working together, our ‘tripartite committee’
has overseen the action plan, formulated from results of our own staff survey in
2008.
We have developed extra incentives for our staff, such as a ‘buy and sell’ annual
leave scheme, access to funding for sports and team building activities and direct
ways of asking the chief executive questions through a dedicated chat forum.
There are at least ten different communication methods used to tell staff what’s
happening in the organisation and we publish board minutes, council minutes and
other information through the staff intranet. We’ve actively tried to reduce the use
of agency staff (offering extra shifts to our own staff whenever possible) and
executive directors are out and about throughout the trust every week – informally
working alongside and talking to staff.
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One of the key concerns for staff – was the need for support for junior, middle
and senior management to develop the skills they need to work effectively with
their teams. So, at the beginning of this year, we opted to embark on a pilot
management development programme, which will be facilitated (at this stage) by
Manchester Business School. It will cover a wide range of topics including
leadership styles, effective team working, managing conflict, negotiating and
influencing skills, giving and receiving feedback, coaching, tools and techniques
for service improvement and understanding organisation culture.
The first phase of this pilot will be completed by October 2010, when the results
will be assessed to determine future management development arrangements.
And finally, in recognition of our staff we hosted our first-ever STARS (staff
recognition awards) awards in November 2009. More than 200 staff members
who had been nominated for an award by colleagues, patients and relatives
attended a celebratory awards dinner, where the 14 winners were announced.
The success of this initiative was such that we are set to repeat it in 2010.
STARS is one way we can recognise all the staff that ‘go the extra mile’ in all that
they do for our organisation.
Once again throughout this report, there are examples of success, innovation,
development and engagement. However challenging the economic climate we
would wish to assure our staff, patients and the local community that our focus
will continue to be on high standards, core values, improving performance and
the principles that make Chesterfield Royal Hospital successful. Our constant
aim, overseen by the council of governors that represent our staff and
community, is to provide our patients with excellence in everything we do.

Richard Gregory OBE
Chairman

Eric Morton
Chief Executive

¹ In 2009 the trust achieved a ‘fair’ rating for quality of services and an ‘excellent’ rating for financial
management. For the previous two years the rating had been ‘excellent’ in both categories.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2010.
THE DIRECTORS OF THE TRUST
The directors appointed to membership of the board who were in post during the
year from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 were:
Richard Gregory OBE

Chairman

Eric Morton

Chief Executive

Michael Hall

Deputy Chairman, Senior Independent Director
and Non-Executive Director

Janet Birkin

Non-Executive Director

Deborah Fern OBE

Non-Executive Director

Pam Liversidge OBE

Non-Executive Director

David Whitney

Non-Executive Director

Terry Alty

Corporate Secretary

Paul Briddock

Director of Finance and Contracting

Alfonzo Tramontano

Chief Nurse (from1 April 2010)

John McDonnell

Medical Director (retired 30 September 2009)

Dr Ian Gell

Medical Director (from 1 October 2009)

The trust considers each of the listed non-executive directors to be independent.
Further details about the board of directors and the directors of the trust can be
found on page 48 of this report.
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THE PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE YEAR
The principal purpose of the trust is the provision of goods and services for the
purposes of the health service in England.
Services are delivered within a strong support infrastructure of high quality staff
who are appropriately trained and rewarded.
Services are delivered in a modern estate where the quality of the patient
environment is continually improved to ensure it is fit for purpose and meets all
legislative requirements, using the most appropriate and up to date technology.
The trust’s activities are governed by the Terms of Authorisation as agreed by
Monitor and by legislation. During the year the trust has continued to develop the
services that it offers.
The trust provides high quality timely healthcare, delivered in a way that focuses
on positive experiences with the hospital, and ensures that patients, relatives and
their carers, attend, and indeed return to, the Royal Hospital as their provider of
choice.
The trust maintains strong governance and management arrangements, which
are fit for purpose and react to the changing NHS environment.
Developments and Key Achievements During the Year
In what has been a very busy year across the trust there have been a number of
standout events and achievements that have received recognition in the local
press and staff magazine. These include:
Clinical Quality
The trust is always striving to make further steps to ensure it is ‘Your Hospital of
Choice’ and this is frequently reflected in the introduction of new initiatives and
new roles to improve on the already excellent standard that has been set. The
trust has also been hailed and recognised in some areas as examples of good
practice, those of significance include:


The routine screening of patients due to undergo any kind of surgical
procedure was introduced to reduce rates of MRSA. The programme was
given a high profile launch through Peak FM and the Derbyshire Times who
both sent journalists to be tested.



The appointment of Alfonzo Tramontano as Chief Nurse, a role that combines
management capabilities with a visible and working presence on the wards.



A national report from the Prostate Cancer Charter for Action revealed the
Royal had the second lowest mortality rate for prostate cancer sufferers in the
country at 13 per 100,000 against a national average of 25. The trust’s one
stop biopsy clinic has previously been highlighted by the Department of
Health as a beacon of good practice.
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Nursing metrics has been launched that involves the continual assessment of
nursing staff to keep standards high. Each ward is assessed against nine
criteria on a monthly basis to make it one of the most thorough programmes
in the country.



A lung cancer practitioner has been appointed to support patients from
referral through diagnosis and treatment to look after all of their information
needs and provide a familiar face throughout.



The renovation of the Special Care Baby Unit has led to it being renamed the
Neonatal Unit to bring it in line with the specialised services it offers.



The introduction of the World Health Organisation’s surgical guidelines to
ensure greater efficiency of service and safety for patients.



The hospital has been hailed as the gold standard in the East Midlands for its
colposcopy service, a process that can help prevent cervical cancer. The
British Society for Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology carried out the
assessment that found its direct referral system that cuts out GP involvement
resulted in patients routinely seen within 4 weeks in almost every single case.



The Royal was named as one of only a handful of hospitals to receive
exemplar centre status in the treatment of venous thromboembolism. The
potentially deadly condition can affect patients due to their lack of mobility and
the Royal’s efforts at combating this followed an inspection and high praise
for innovation in this field.



The stroke unit used thrombolysis as a treatment for the first time just before
Christmas. The drug can only be used within 3 hours of suffering stroke
symptoms and can result in a complete recovery in some cases and greatly
reduce and reverse the after effects of others. Its success was documented in
the local press and media with the patient praising the unit and treatment.



A midwife-led project to improve the health of obese women during
pregnancy was one of only 28 out of 170 projects to be awarded an
innovation grant by NHS East Midlands.

Performance
Disappointingly the trust was downgraded by the Care Quality Commission in
their annual healthcare check from an excellent/excellent to an excellent/fair
rating. Whilst maintaining the highest possible rating for quality of financial
management for 4 consecutive years, the trust failed to achieve 4 standards from
an enlarged list of 67 criteria included within the quality of services section, one of
which was the response rate to a national survey. Despite this, the trust
continues to rate highly in the numerous surveys, reports and inspections carried
out by independent bodies and organisations.
Included in this list are the following:


The CQC’s National Outpatient Survey 2009 put the Royal in the top 20% in
the country in half of the 40 questions asked. The trust scored highly in such
areas as waiting times, cleanliness and overall care.
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Following an unannounced visit to inspect the hospital’s infection prevention
and control measures, the CQC’s report failed to find a single area of concern
amongst the nine measures covered.



The Royal was praised in a national review of patient environments. The
Patient Environment Action Team returned a ‘good’ rating in its assessment
of environment, food and privacy and dignity.



The results of the CQC’s 2008 National Inpatient Survey scored the Royal as
the same or better than other trusts in all but two of the 72 questions asked.



The CQC has given the Royal its registration without conditions after passing
its strict new guidelines on safety and care. All trusts must be registered with
the CQC by law with 22 of the 378 NHS trusts registered with conditions.

All the standards included within Monitor’s Compliance Framework were met
throughout the year, including:


Continued delivery of the maximum 4 hour wait in A&E – with 98.4% of
patients seen within the time limit. This was despite a 3.12% increase in
patients attending when compared to 2008/09.



Recording just 5 cases of bMRSA and 50 cases of clostridium difficile,
reducing the risk of contracting the c. difficile infection as an in-patient to
0.28% per 1,000 bed days. In addition all appropriate elective patients were
screened for MRSA prior to surgery.



98.7% of admitted patients and 99.6% of non-admitted patients were treated
within 18 weeks of referral.



96.7% of patients were seen by a specialist in outpatients within 2 weeks of
urgent GP referral for suspected cancer, and in the last 3 months of the year
93% of patients referred by their GP with any breast symptom were seen by a
specialist within 2 weeks of referral.



99.8% of patients were treated within one month of a decision to start first
cancer treatment, 99.5% of patients received subsequent surgical treatment
within one month of a decision to treat, and 100% of patients received
subsequent anti cancer drug treatment within one month of a decision to
treat.



In addition, 92.2% of patients received their first definitive treatment for
cancer within 2 months of GP or dentist urgent referral for suspected cancer,
95.7% of patients received their first definitive treatment for cancer within 2
months of urgent referral from the national screening programme, and 100%
of patients received their first definitive treatment for cancer within 2 months
of urgent referral from a consultant for suspected cancer.



77.5% of eligible heart attack patients received thrombolysis within 60
minutes of calling for professional help.
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Other key performance milestones achieved include:


Delivery of a maximum inpatient and day case waiting time of 4 weeks in all
specialties except orthopaedics where the maximum wait at the end of March
was 7 weeks.



73.2% of all admitted patients received surgery within 10 weeks of GP
referral, and 93.2% of all non- admitted patients received first treatment within
10 weeks of GP referral.



100% of patients were offered an appointment to be seen within the genitourinary medicine clinic within 48 hours of contacting the service.



100% of patients with new onset chest pain, thought to be angina, were seen
within the rapid access chest pain clinic within 2 weeks of GP written referral.



0.7% of elective admissions were cancelled on the day for surgery of after
admission for non-clinical reasons, and 99.1% of these patients were readmitted within 28 days of the cancellation. In addition just 0.05% of patients
had their operation cancelled on the day of surgery due to critical care bed
availability.



83.3% of stroke patients spent more than 90% of their hospital stay in the
stroke unit.



Average length of stay for non elective admissions reduced by 0.5 days when
compared to the previous year.



Average cleanliness levels in clinical areas were maintained above an
average of 95% throughout the year.



88.8% of the workforce received appraisal between April 2009 and end March
2010.

Activity achievement during 2009/10 compared to plan is detailed below:
Clinical activity
cases
Elective
Non elective
Outpatients
A&E

Plan
2009/10
32,703
34,501
256,932
58,880

Actual
2009/10
32,248
35,143
253,160
61,896

Developments
Service developments during the year, whilst perpetuating our strategic themes
for taking the trust forward as ‘Your hospital of first choice’, also had a major
contribution towards improving clinical quality. Those of significance not
previously mentioned included:


Further reduction of our waiting times for diagnostic imaging, together with
extended choice of appointment times with availability over evenings and
weekends in a number of modalities.
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Opening of additional inpatient beds to cope with increased numbers of
emergency medical patients being referred from primary care, together with
appointment of a third consultant physician to support the respiratory team,
plus additional discharge co-ordinators and therapy staff.



Further extension of our service to care for patients suffering from a stroke,
including appointment of an additional stroke care consultant, additional
inpatient beds allocated for stroke care patients to facilitate direct admission
to the stroke unit and introduction of fast track CT brain scans directly from
the emergency department.



Appointment of a further consultant colorectal surgeon to support additional
activity, working on a flexible basis with a high proportion of workload
dedicated to emergency care, together with an expansion of nurse staffing
levels in endoscopy.



Implementation of age related macular degeneration (ARMD) services within
ophthalmology, including appointment of an additional consultant retinal
surgeon and associated support staff, generating additional outpatient
treatments and follow up attendances.



Appointment of two consultant orthopaedics surgeons, including one
additional post to support expansion of our upper limb service, and the
second a replacement consultant for the lower limb service with a view to
specialising in foot and ankle surgery in future years.



Expansion of learning disability services in child and adolescent mental
health, to provide a multi disciplinary team to support individual and family
therapies for issues such as abuse, complex bereavement, self harm,
anxieties, psychoses and depressions. This service which covers just north
Derbyshire residents met a gap in service for approximately 275 children.



Expansion of the Breast Screening service including investment in a second
mobile unit.



Development of the Head and Neck service to provide a second specialist
site for the South Yorkshire and North Derbyshire area.



Increased investment in middle grade junior doctor rotas and ward nurse
staffing levels in surgical specialties, orthopaedics and emergency care.

Capital Expenditure and Public Engagement


A series of events, including a high profile celebration involving a four hour
live broadcast on Peak FM from the main entrance, to mark the 25th
anniversary of the hospital’s move from the town centre to Calow.



The trust held its first staff recognition awards ceremony entitled STARS.
Members of the public and staff nominated those who they felt ‘went that
extra mile’ with 14 awards handed out on the night. Its huge success has
resulted in a second STARS night planned for 2010.
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Following consultation with staff a number of initiatives surrounding the Travel
Plan have been implemented. These include a Bike to Work scheme, wider
ranging discounts for bus travel, a car share scheme, improved secure bike
shelters and the renovation of a cycle path to the rear of the hospital.



Work began on the £12million new wards development, the biggest since
becoming a foundation trust, with contracts awarded to local businesses and
a design that included consultation and feedback from 1,500 of our members.



The trust redeveloped its maternity unit to unveil the Chesterfield Birth Centre.
Designed and built following a consultation with new mums who had used the
old facility the £2million centre now features 4 birthing pools, 12 en suite
rooms and full sound proofing to provide a stress-free environment and fully
modernised facilities.



Our children’s hearing services were transferred from an off site location, into
purpose built accommodation in the new child and adolescent development
on the Royal Hospital site; completing the transfer of specialist children’s
services from 3 off site premises.



A major overhaul of car parking was completed in the wake of an extra 520
spaces provided to facilitate the additional traffic anticipated by the building of
the new wards. This included prioritising visitor parking in areas close to the
entrances, an additional 26 disabled bays and making more spaces available
to both staff and visitors.



The installation of automatic doors between the visitor’s entrance and the
wards means that all areas between the main and visitor’s entrance, including
all ward access, are compliant with current disability regulations.



Work began on a dedicated resuscitation room for children in A&E. The
previous facility was designed for adults and didn’t cater for the variety in
sizes and weight of children who could need it at a moment’s notice.



Work began on development of a new endoscopy decontamination unit to
centralise the processing of reusable medical devices and bring the trust up
to full compliance with all new standards for decontamination.



There have been a number of other projects carried out by the estates team
as part of the capital plan including the new wards, car park extensions,
installation of new generators, the boiler house that now works on 100% gas
rather than coal, the continuation of the ward upgrade programme, new office
space outside the corridor opposite ITU and the refurbishment of the
staircases by the Robinson/Portland and Elizabeth/Murphy spines. There has
also been a rolling programme of updating and refurbishing the public toilets,
the upgrading of the Scarsdale wing entrance, and more than 350 projects
requested between April 2009 and January 2010.



Work began on the installation of a brand new MRI scanner that has been
paid for by charitable funds. The new machine is of particular use in cardiac
and breast imaging and opens up new possibilities in oncology, cancer, nerve
impingement in the spine, ligament damage and the detection of tumours in
the brain.
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Finance
The trust achieved a net surplus of £7.6m (against a planned surplus of £6.5m)
as at 31 March 2010 and was in financial surplus throughout 2009/10.
It has had a recurrently balanced income and expenditure position throughout the
year placing it in a robust financial position going into 2010/11.
The trust has the financial stability necessary to continue the investment of
surpluses and to further improve on clinical quality in the years to come.
The trust’s financial performance is discussed in more detail in the next section.
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Fair View of the Trust’s Business
Financial Review
2009/10 is the first financial year that the accounts have been prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Comparatives for 2008/09
have been restated under IFRS.
2009/10 saw a continued growth in income, cash and major capital investment in
the trust’s estate, medical equipment and IT. At 31 March 2010, the trust revalued
its land and buildings to a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis in line with HM
Treasury requirements. This resulted in a £3.6m impairment charged against
operating expenses due to a 4% fall in the valuation.
The summary headline financial information for 2009/10 and 2008/09 for the trust
is shown below:
2009/10
£m
177.6
7.6
20.2
137.0
27.9
13.4
32.0
11.0
5.4
5.0
3%

Operating income
Surplus
EBITDA *
Total assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital Investment
Borrowing limit i) long term
ii) short term
Actual borrowing i) long term
ii) short term
Financial risk rating
Efficiencies achieved

2008/09
£m
162.3
7.8
16.9
125.2
21.2
11.2
34.4
11.0
0.3
5.0
3%

*Earnings before Interest Taxation Depreciation and Amortisation (and
impairments).
Operating Income
Operating income £177.6m (2008/09: £162.3m) consists of patient care income
and non patient care income. These are analysed below:
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i)

Income from Patient Care Activities
Total income from patient care activities for the year 2009/10 increased by
9.6% to £160.4m (2009: £146.4m). This represents 90.3% (2009: 90.2%)
of total income for the year. A breakdown of patient care income is shown
graphically below for both 2009/10 and 2008/09:

Further details of patient care activities are shown in Note 4.1 to the
accounts.
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Private Patient Income
Private patient income is capped at 0.2% of total income received by the
trust. The actual outturn for 2009/10 from income for treating private
patients was £91,000 which represents 0.06% of total income (2008/09:
£110,000; 0.08%). More details are shown in Note 4.3 of the financial
statements.
ii) Income Generated from Non Patient Care Activities
Included below are details of £17.2m (2009: £15.9m) of non patient care
income received, which has been generated from the provision of non
patient care services such as education and training. This represents
9.7% of total income in year (2009: 9.8%). A breakdown is shown
graphically below:

19

Further details are shown in Note 5 to the accounts.
Surplus
The net surplus of £7.6m was £1.1m in excess of plan, and includes £3.6m of
impairments resulting from the downward revaluation of the trust’s estate.
EBITDA
EBITDA increased by £3.3m from £16.9m in 2008/09 to £20.2m for 2009/10. This
reflects an increase in total income of £15.3m (9.4%) and a corresponding
increase in expenses (excluding depreciation, amortisation and impairments) of
£12.0m (8.3%).
Total Assets
Total assets increased from 2008/09 to 2009/10 by £11.8m, mainly due to an
increase in cash as detailed below.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash increased by £6.7m from £21.2m to £27.9m. A working capital facility of
£11.0m was also in place, giving cash headroom in excess of £38m and the trust
a strong financial position.
Capital Investment
The trust’s investment (in terms of capital expenditure) for 2009/10 is shown
below. A total of £13.4m (2009: £11.2m) of expenditure was spent during the
year.
£311,000 (2009: £615,000) of charitable capital assets were donated to the trust
during the year from its charitable funds including a MICAS PACS system for the
Imaging directorate.
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Capital investment by major scheme during 2009/10 is shown below:
Capital investment – major schemes for the 2009/10 financial
year
Boiler replacement phase 2
Children’s Audiology
Ward upgrades
Access control (wards security)
Chesterfield Birth Centre
A&E Resus Children’s upgrade
General areas upgrade (toilets & stairwells)
Car park expansion
Quality Through Capacity – New Wards
Generator capacity – electrical standby facility
New offices above Robinson Ward
Decontamination of flexible endoscopes
Other *
NHS capital expenditure
Donated assets
Total capital expenditure

Total 2009/10
£000
713
65
373
14
1,748
126
200
1,093
5,019
152
221
31
3,646
13,403
311
13,714

*Other includes new and replacement medical equipment, IT and estates minor
works projects.
Buildings used in the provision of healthcare are classed as ‘protected’ assets,
whereas other buildings and all equipment are ‘unprotected’. The table below
shows the expenditure for each of these categories:
Capital investment analysis for the 2009/10 financial year
Protected asset investment
Unprotected asset investment (i.e. equipment including IT)
Donated capital investment
Total capital expenditure

Total 2009/10
£000
10,343
3,060
311
13,714

Borrowings
During 2009/10, the trust borrowed £5.2m against the Prudential Borrowing Limit
(PBL) of £32.0m for long term borrowing which is set out in its Terms of
Authorisation. The £5.2m relates to a loan from the Foundation Trust Financing
Facility (FTFF) to fund the development of three new wards. A further £4.4m is
anticipated to be drawn down during 2010/11 in line with capital expenditure on
the project. The loan is for 10 years fixed at an interest rate of 2.84%. During
2009/10, the trust also repaid £57k relating to the capital element of finance
leases, leaving a further £217k repayable at 31 March 2010 against the long term
PBL.
The trust did not borrow against its short term prudential borrowing limit during
2009/10 relating to a working capital facility of £11.0m.
For further details please see Notes 23 and 24 to the accounts.
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Summary Financial Risk Ratings
Monitor, the regulatory body for foundation trusts, monitors the trust’s financial
performance on a quarterly basis using specific financial risk ratings. The trust’s
performance against Monitor’s financial risk ratings is shown below:
The trust achieved a financial risk rating of 5 in all quarters during 2009/10 on
Monitors’ scale of 1 to 5 (a score of 1 being ‘high-risk’ and 5 ‘low-risk’). The trust
is forecast to maintain a ‘low-risk’ score of at least 4 for 2010/11.

Metric
EBITDA margin
EBITDA
% achieved
Return on assets
I&E surplus margin
Liquid ratio (days)
Weighted average
rating

Weighting
25%
10%
20%
20%
25%
100%

2009/10
% Ratio
Rating
11.4%
5
125.2%
5
12.3%
6.3%
71.4

5
5
5
5.0

2008/09
% Ratio
Rating
10.3%
4
101.1%
5
10.6%
5.4%
62.1

5
5
5
4.8

Further details of regulatory ratings are shown on page 30.
Improving Efficiency and Value for Money
The trust has a good record of implementing cost improvement programmes
(CIP) designed to improve efficiency. In 2009/10 the trust was required to deliver
a 3.0% efficiency (2008/09 3.0%). This has been achieved through a number of
directorate based efficiency programmes. The amount achieved in line with plan
was £4.3m (2008/09 £4.1m).
The economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources are monitored
regularly and detailed reports are supplied to the board of directors and hospital
management committee, and made available to the council of governors and joint
consultative committee. Internal systems and procedures are in place to ensure
that value for money remains a primary aim of the trust.
Financial Disclosures
Going Concern
The directors are mindful of the challenges facing it in the current economic
climate, and particularly the more challenging financial environment which is
imminent. The directors believe that careful management of the trust’s finances
over the last 5 years as a foundation trust, where funding growth has been
strong, has left the trust in a strong financial position, with a healthy recurrent
income and expenditure position and strong cash and liquidity in order to meet
the financial challenges for 2010/11 and beyond.
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the NHS
foundation trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the accounts.
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Accounting Policies
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS foundation trusts shall
meet the accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual (FT ARM) which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently the
trust’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2009/10
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual issued by Monitor. The
accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual. The
accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items
considered material in relation to the accounts.
Financial Risk Management
Financial risk management is disclosed in Note 33 to the annual accounts.
Better Payment Practice Code
The national ‘better payment practice code’ requires the trust to aim to pay all
valid invoices within 30 days of receipt (or the due date - whichever is the later).
Performance this financial year shows that 96.9% (2008 96.3%) of invoices paid
complied with this measure. More detail can be found at Note 12 to the accounts.

Invoices paid April 2009 to March 2010
Invoices paid within 30-day target
Percentage paid within 30-day target

Number
61,257
59,347
96.9%

Value (£000)
69,857
66,984
95.9%

Management Costs
In line with best practice, the trust monitors expenditure on management costs as
defined by the Department of Health.

Management costs
Income
Management costs %

2009/10
£000
8,029
177,620

2008/09
£000
7,600
162,328

4.5%

4.7%

Cost Allocation and Charging Requirements
The trust has complied with the cost allocation and charging requirements set out
in HM Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information guidance.
Investments
The trust made no investments through joint ventures or subsidiary companies
and no other financial investments were made. No financial assistance was
given by the NHS foundation trust.
Market Value of Properties
There are no significant differences between the carrying amount and market
value of the trust’s properties.
23

Charitable Funds
All charitable fund expenditure is classed as granted to the hospital from its
charities. Items over £5,000 are capitalised and included in the trust’s closing
non-current assets on its Statement of Financial Position. The Charitable Funds
Annual Report and Accounts for 2009/10 are published separately and are
available from the trust on request.
Political and Charitable Donations
There have been no political or charitable donations paid during the financial year
to external organisations.
Accounting Policies for Pensions and Other Retirement Benefits
The accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits are set out in
note 1.4 to the accounts and the arrangements for senior employees’
remuneration can be found in the remuneration report on page 96 of this report.
Significant Events since Balance Sheet Date
There are no significant events since the balance sheet date that are likely to
have a material impact on both the trust and financial statements for the year
ending 31 March 2010.
Related Party Transactions
Under International Accounting Standard (IAS) 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the
trust is required to disclose, in the annual accounts, any material transactions
between the NHS foundation trust and other NHS and government bodies,
members of the board and key management personnel and parties related to
them.
Any such disclosures can be found in Note 32 of the annual accounts for the year
ending 31 March 2010.
Contractual Arrangements
The organisations with which the trust considers material transactions have taken
place during 2009/10 are:



Derbyshire County PCT and
East Midlands SHA

Details of the transactions can be found in Note 32 of the annual accounts for the
year ending 31 March 2010.
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External Auditors
The trust’s auditors for 2009/10 were:
KPMG
2 Cornwall Street
Birmingham
B3 2DL
The total cost of audit services for the year was £56,740 ex VAT. This was for the
statutory audit of accounts for the year April 2009 to March 2010 and services
carried out in relation to these. Included in this figure is the work completed in
relation to Quality Accounts for 2009/10 totalling £15,000. The external auditors
also undertook the Charitable Funds Audit for the year April 2009 to March 2010,
the separate fee for that work was £5,810 ex VAT.
The trust did not purchase any further services from the external auditors that are
outside Monitor’s Audit Code. The trust expects its external audit provider to act
independently. Under the terms of engagement they are required to have control
processes in place to ensure that this status is preserved and to notify the audit
committee of any matter that could compromise the independence or objectivity
of the audit team. The audit committee monitors this position and the auditor is
required under ISA 260 to confirm this position in the annual governance report.
Disclosure of Information to Auditors
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which
the auditors are unaware, and the directors have taken all of the steps that they
ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
information.
Significant Activities in the Field of Research and Development
In the period from April 2009 to March 2010 the trust has significantly increased
its research activity. This has been reflected in the increased overall number of
projects being undertaken at the trust and the expansion of activity into clinical
specialty areas that were not previously research active.
The development of new cancer research nurse posts has been particularly
significant as the roles have increased the trust’s ability to undertake more cancer
research as a standalone centre. Having directly attributable recruitment figures
significantly strengthens our position regarding future funding for NIHR portfolio
research.
To accommodate the increased activity and to ensure quality and safety in
research the Research and Development Department has continued to develop
and refine robust governance systems and processes. For further information
please see the research report in the Quality Accounts section.
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The Main Trends and Factors Underlying the Development, Performance and
Position of the Business Entity During the Financial Year and an Indication of
Likely Future Developments
2009/10 and Ongoing
The main themes which emerged from the trust’s service development strategy
and subsequent annual plans remain relevant for 2009/10 and the medium term
and are as follows:


Provision of high quality and timely healthcare, delivered in a way which
focuses on positive experiences with the hospital, and ensures that patients,
relatives and their carers, attend, and indeed return, to the Royal Hospital as
their provider of choice.



Services delivered, using the most appropriate and up to date technology, in
a modern estate that meets all legislative requirements, where the quality of
the patient environment is continually improved to ensure it is fit for purpose.



Provision of services from within a strong support infrastructure, delivered by
high quality staff who are appropriately trained, feel valued and rewarded, and
want to continue working within the foundation trust and identify with its
success.



Maintenance of strong governance and management arrangements which are
fit for purpose and react to the changing NHS environment.



Underpinned by a strong financial framework, which ensures that the
foundation trust is financially viable in both the short and medium term.

Likely Future Developments - Proposals for Change


The new national requirement for primary care trusts to concentrate
exclusively on commissioning, (i.e. purchasing healthcare services to meet
their communities’ needs) mean that they now have to plan for their provider
services to be managed by other organisations.



NHS Derbyshire County has indicated that Chesterfield Royal Hospital, as an
achieving and financially stable foundation trust, is its preferred provider for
most of the community services it currently runs – including 12 community
hospitals, plus services such as district nursing, sexual health and
community dentistry.



The Royal may be asked to merge with these services – to become a ‘catchall’ provider for the county – leaving the PCT with a pure commissioning role.
It would mean the Royal would grow to a £300 million organisation with
around 7,500 staff.



At this stage nothing has been officially put forward. Some discussions have
taken place with the PCT but only to determine how the trust would take on
the challenge.
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The merger would provide enormous opportunity to improve services for
patients. To have the majority of local services under one organisation would
be a great advantage. Any potential merger would mean ‘business as usual’
– the trust would need to work side-by-side with community services to
gradually create an integrated organisation with shared standards, values
and principles to provide patients with the best possible care.

Risk and Assurance
Effective risk and performance management is continually monitored within the
trust. A lead director has been identified for each area of risk and individual
responsibilities of the lead directors, managers and staff are identified in the
trust’s risk management strategy. The trust uses a number of methods to assure
itself of the risk and performance management of the trust, including:


Regular review and update of the trust risk registers by risk owners (thereby
ensuring a bottom up approach) and robust review of the trust’s corporate risk
register (live risks scoring 12 or above) on a monthly basis by the risk
committee;



Monthly reports produced by the directors providing detail on the financial,
clinical and performance management of the trust including an up to date
analysis of the current key risks within the trust, as well as including
forecasting and historical trends;



Monthly risk reporting to the board;



The work of internal and external audit during the financial year to support the
trust in understanding its risk and performance management; and



Monitoring and review of performance against the Healthcare Commission’s
standards for better health and self-certification as to compliance with each
element.

The board also addresses the risks when the self-assessment process and
declaration is completed for Monitor. This arrangement ensures the board of
directors understands the strategic business risks to the trust in the context of the
trust’s strategic direction.
Description of the Principal Risks Facing the Trust during 2009/10
In the annual plan for 2009/10 the following key risks were identified:

-

Lord Darzi’s review. Potential impact of service reconfiguration following
next stage of review. ie Trauma stroke care and Primary angioplasty.
Non-achievement of C difficile target. Failure to meet contractual
standard & increase in risk to patients. Increased risk of litigation & loss of
reputation.
Non-achievement of bMRSA target. Failure to meet contractual standard
& increase in risk to patients. Increased risk of litigation & loss of
reputation.
The risk of trust not complying with terms of authorisation and not
undertaking satisfactory self- certification.
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-

-

Delivery of cost improvement targets. The trust is required to deliver
£16.2m in cost efficiency savings over the next 3 years in order to deliver
its financial and service strategy.
Inability to accurately forecast the impact of changes to method of valuing
the trust’s estate. (To a modern equivalent asset valuation – MEAV).
Delivering activity plans and coping with potential reductions to or
increases in referrals.
Managing the cost base and delivery of the planned I&E surplus.
Significant changes in funding and policy (eg PBR). Effects on income
and service delivery.
Maintaining strong liquidity.
Fraud and Corruption. The trust is at risk of fraud and corruption from
staff, contactors and users of the trust’s services.
Failure to have a
dedicated local counter fraud specialist (LCFS) can jeopardise the trust’s
compliance with healthcare standards.
Balancing the capital expenditure programme to receipt of resource from
Foundation Trust Financing Facility (FTFF).
Financial implications of introducing the new standard contract from
2010/11 onwards.

All of these risks have been mitigated through close monitoring and performance
and are no longer regarded as principal risks. In some cases eg the delivery of
cost improvement plans, the action to address the risk is reflected in the trust’s
2010/11 annual service and financial plan.
Information Risks and Data Losses in 2009/10
Information governance (IG) remains a high priority for the trust. Reporting
arrangements for IG have been completely revised, and the trust has appointed a
new caldicott guardian and SIRO (senior information risk officer). All clinical
directorates have designated a senior member of staff to be responsible for
safeguarding patient information.
The trust has confirmed through the Information Governance Toolkit (IGT) that all
Statement of Compliance standards have been achieved.
During 2009/10 the trust made 2 serious untoward incident reports (SUIs):


A copy of a set of casenotes which were sent to a patient in the post was lost
by the Royal Mail. Procedures have been reviewed to ensure that the post is
only used when absolutely necessary and any such documentation is sent by
recorded delivery.



A trust PC was stolen from PCT-owned premises. The PC was fully protected
by the national standard encryption software, and the incident investigation
concluded that there had been no loss of data or breach of confidentiality.

Insurance Cover
The trust has insurance arrangements through the NHS Litigation Authority
(NHSLA) to cover the risk of legal action against its directors and officers and
additional liability insurance totalling £5m with Chubb UK.
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Countering Fraud
In 1999, the government set up the NHS counter fraud service through the
Secretary of State directions. The service has the central co-ordinating and
directing role, revising policy and processes to prevent fraud arising, providing
information to target counter fraud action, continuously identifying the nature and
scale of the problem of fraud and corruption and setting and monitoring the
standards of counter fraud work.
The trust as a foundation trust is not bound by the Secretary of State directions
but, under a clause in the contract held with the PCT, the trust has agreed to take
all necessary steps to counter fraud affecting NHS funded services and will
maintain appropriate and adequate arrangements to detect and prevent fraud.
The LCFS provision at Chesterfield Royal Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is
provided by RSM Tenon (formally RSM Bentley Jennison). Their ‘Fraud
Solutions’ arm specialises in all aspects of counter fraud and investigations work
across the public, corporate and not-for-profit sectors. RSM Tenon is the largest
commercial provider of the Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) in the NHS,
with a large integrated team with accredited and experienced LCFS personnel.
During 2009/10 the trust was provided with 70 days of counter fraud services
from RSM Tenon.
The work carried out by the counter fraud service is within seven generic areas:
Creating an anti fraud culture
 Undertaking fraud awareness training
 Fraud training included in the Induction training
 General publicity using posters, leaflets and emails
 Annual staff survey undertaken by the service
 Fraud awareness month held during the year
Deterrence
 Liaison with the communication manager
 Formal communication strategy
 Production of four news-letters per year
Prevention
 Introduction of preventative systems
 Liaison with internal audit
 Undertaking regular review of all policy documents
 Protocols maintained between HR and the counter fraud service
 Identifying fraud risk
Detection
 Counter fraud service undertake a national proactive exercise
 The Audit Commission undertake a national fraud initiative
The final three areas relate to investigation, sanction and redress.
The LCFS received referrals during 2009/10 which resulted in three investigations
being conducted. Two investigations were concluded with no fraud proven. One
investigation was concluded were fraudulent activity was established and referred
for further disciplinary action with the recommendation for financial redress.
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The LCFS has also received 14 requests for advice from staff concerning
personal email scams delivered to their trust email account.
Directors’ Statement
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which
the auditors are unaware, and the directors have taken all of the steps that they
ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
information.
Regulatory Ratings Report
Monitor Risk Ratings
The trust submits declarations to Monitor for finance, governance and mandatory
services. Monitor reviews the declaration and issues a risk rating for each
element.
The majority of NHS foundation trust’s report to Monitor on a quarterly basis,
however, as Chesterfield Royal Hospital has been authorised for over two years
and has consistently achieved the lowest possible risk rating in each of the three
categories, it is required to comply with a six-monthly self-assessment and
reporting regime (since 1 October 2009).
The finance rating is based on the trust’s financial performance in the quarter
against the Annual Plan. The risk rating is on a scale of 1 to 5 with 5 being the
lowest risk.
The Governance rating (Red, Amber or Green) is based on the trust’s self
declaration against the following areas:
• Compliance with their constitution;
• Growing a representative membership;
• Maintaining appropriate board structures;
• Co-operating with other NHS bodies;
• Risk management; and
• Service performance and continuing improvement in clinical quality.
The mandatory services rating (red, amber or green) is based on the trust
providing the services listed in its Terms of Authorisation. In 2010/11, Monitor’s
governance ratings system will change to red, amber/red, amber/green, green.
The tables below show detailed analyses of the quarterly reporting to Monitor, as
referred to in the text. They are featured for comparison purposes as required by
Monitor.
Table one features ratings for the four quarters of 2008/09, compared with the
trust’s expectation at the beginning of the year in the annual plan. Similarly, Table
two provides quarterly ratings for 2009/10, plus the expectation in the annual
plan.
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Monitor’s new categories of risk rating are:
• Green
• Amber-green
• Amber-red
• Red

No material concerns
Emerging concerns
Potential future significant breach if not rectified
Likely or actual significant breach.

Tables of analysis
Table one
Annual
Plan
2008/09

Q1
2008/09

Q2
2008/09

Q3
2008/09

Q4
2008/09

5

4

5

5

5

Governance Green
risk rating

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Annual
Plan
2009/10

Q1
2009/10

Q2
2009/10

Q3
2009/10

Q4
2009/10

5

5

5

5

5

Governance Green
risk rating

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Financial
risk rating

Mandatory
services

Table two

Financial
risk rating

Mandatory
services
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Care Quality Commission
Core Standards Declaration 2009/10
The annual health check was replaced with 'periodic reviews' of commissioners
and providers by the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
The CQC took over from the three health and social care regulators (the
Healthcare Commission, The Commission for Social Care Inspection and the
Mental Health Act Commission) on 1 April 2009.
As a result, the performance of Chesterfield Royal Hospital was assessed against
Standards for Better Health mid-year, instead of the end of the year.
The trust's Core Standards Declaration was submitted to the Care Quality
Commission to meet the 7 December deadline following agreement by the board
of directors that the trust was fully compliant with all core standards. This was a
mid-year declaration made both retrospectively and prospectively to cover the
whole of the year.
The board of directors, at its March 2010 meeting, confirmed that the mid-year
declaration of full compliance remained relevant for the whole of the year, 1 April
2009 to 31 March 2010.
The core standards were then replaced by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
registration process with effect from 1 April 2010.
Trust Registration Process
From April 2010, all health and adult social care providers who provide regulated
activities were required by law to be registered with the Care Quality
Commission.
To register, NHS organisations were required to show that they were meeting the
new essential standards of quality and safety across all of the regulated activities
they provide. There are now 28 outcomes which relate to the Health and Social
Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2009 and are grouped into six
main headings:







Involvement and information
Personalised care, treatment and support
Safeguarding and safety
Suitability of staffing
Quality and management
Suitability of management

This new system was designed to ensure that people can expect services to
meet essential standards of quality and safety that respect their dignity and
protect their rights. The new system focuses on outcomes, rather than systems
and processes, and places the views and experiences of people who use
services at the centre.



Pre-application stage - submission to CQC of trust locations.
Establish trust compliance against Essential Standard of quality and safety.
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Complete registration application and declare compliance/non compliance
against Essential Standard of quality and safety for each registered location
and regulated activities provided at each location.
Establish ongoing monitoring processes to monitor compliance with the
Essential Standards of quality and safety.

The trust applied to register with the CQC on 28 January 2010 in preparation for
registration from 1 April 2010 and was registered without conditions by the CQC.
Our Staff
Staff Employed
During 2009/10 the average number of staff (excluding bank staff) employed by
the trust was 3428.

Staff employed 2009/10

410

335
Medical and dental

274

Nursing and midwifery
Administrative services

259

Allied health
1439

Health sciences
Support services

708

Sickness Absence
The sickness absence rate for 2009/10 was 4.85 per cent.
Equality and Diversity Report
Trust’s Approach to Equality and Diversity
Equality and diversity is led by a steering group which is chaired by the chief
executive, reports to the board of directors and has two other executive directors
taking lead roles on different aspects of equality and diversity.
Two implementation groups, each chaired by an executive director, support the
steering group, one focusing on equality and diversity in service provision and the
other on equality and diversity in employment.
The trust publishes a single equality scheme which sets out how the trust is
implementing equality and diversity. The trust also publishes the outcome of its
monitoring of the impact of policies and working practices (equality impact
assessment), and workforce equality indicators relating to the profile of the
workforce; recruitment, training and promotion; and management of discipline,
grievance, performance and sickness absence.
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Performance is monitored by the equality and diversity steering group drawing on
the work done by the two implementation groups, the published information, any
external assessment or feedback and other sources, such as issues highlighted
in incidents, complaints or surveys.
The single equality scheme is supported by an action plan which identifies the
steps the trust needs to take over the following three years to manage and
maintain compliance with the statutory duties.
The trust’s single equality scheme, the supporting action plan and related
documents are published on a dedicated page on its website:
http://www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk//about/equality-and-diversity
Analysis of Staff and Membership Data
n/a = data
not
available

Staff

%

Staff

2008/09

%

Community
membership
2008/09

2009/10

%

Community
membership
2009/10

%

Age
0-16

0

--

0

--

0

--

--

--

16-22

--

--

--

--

171

1.1

130

0.9

16-25

373

11.0

309

9.0

--

--

--

--

22+

--

--

--

--

15,185

98.9

14,959

99.1

25+

3,014

89.0

3,123

91.0

--

--

--

--

Ethnicity
White

3,201

94.5

3,243

94.5

13,908

90.5

13,629

90.3

Mixed

21

0.6

13

0.4

18

0.1

20

0.1

Asian or
Asian
British

110

3.2

112

3.3

63

0.4

84

0.6

Black or
Black
British

19

0.6

19

0.6

47

0.3

47

0.3

Other

19

0.6

13

0.4

29

0.2

6

0.0

Not stated

17

0.5

32

0.9

1,310

9.5

1,303

8.6

Gender
Male

610

18.0

549

16.0

6,985

45.4

6,813

45.2

Female

2,777

82.0

2,883

84.0

8,274

53.8

8,168

54.1

Not stated

--

--

--

--

117

0.8

108

0.7

TransGender

n/a

--

n/a

--

n/a

--

--

--

135

4.0

137

4.0

n/a

--

--

--

Stated
Disability
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Priorities and Targets Going Forward
The trust’s key priority going forward is to review the current single equality
scheme for 2007–2010 to produce a revised and updated single equality scheme
for 2010–2013.
Within this, the key priority area will be to ensure that the scheme reflects the
additional equality duties relating to age, religion or belief, and sexual orientation
in accordance with the Equality Act 2010. The supporting action plan will set out
the other priorities over the three years.
The draft revised scheme will the subject of consultation with a wide range of
local stakeholders and the final scheme will be published during 2010/11.
Performance will continue to be monitored by the equality and diversity steering
group in the way set out above.
Policies for Disabled Employees and Equal Opportunities
The trust’s diversity and equality strategy and its supporting policies are the
cornerstone of its approach to equality of employment opportunity. We recognise
our responsibility to provide (as far as is reasonably practicable) job security of all
employees.
Our policies aim to ensure that no job applicant or employee receives less
favourable treatment where it cannot be shown to be justifiable on the grounds of:










Age
Gender
Gender identity
Marital status
Sexual orientation
Race
Nationality
Ethnic origin
Colour or disability

- in relation to recruitment and selection, promotion, transfer, training, discipline
and grievance and all terms and conditions of employment.
Policy Applied for the Continuing Employment of Disabled Persons
As a foundation trust, we recognise the important role we must play as an active
and socially responsible member of the local community and that our patients,
clients and staff represent the community we serve.
Policy Applied for Career Development of Disabled Persons
We know that having a committed and motivated workforce depends on staff
feeling that they are treated with fairness, respect and dignity and that they have
equal opportunities for self-development. We want to ensure that our staff are
not discriminated against, or harassed, on the grounds of their ethnic origin,
physical or mental ability, gender, age, religious beliefs or sexual orientation.
Equally, if this happens, we want staff to feel confident about using our policies to
raise concerns and to have them addressed.
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Staff Survey Report
Summary of Performance
2008/09
Trust
National
Average
44%
52%

2009/10
Trust
National
Average
49%
49%

Top 4
Ranking
Scores
KF9

Trust

National
Average

Trust

National
Average

66%

68%

61%

65%

No change

KF10

69%

71%

73%

70%

No change

KF23

3.43

3.42

3.47

3.42

Improvement

KF27

19%

19%

15%

18%

No change

Bottom 4
Ranking
Scores
KF5

Trust

National
Average

Trust

National
Average

3.17

3.36

3.21

3.38

Improvement

KF16

3.36

3.57

3.40

3.60

Improvement

KF24

15%

12%

16%

11%

No change

KF33

55%

62%

52%

61%

No change

Response
rate

CQC assessment

Improvement

Approach to Staff Engagement
Monthly trust briefings are held in all directorate areas, which are designed to
cascade information about key decisions being taken by the trust to staff and to
seek feedback from staff on the issues covered. The trust also uses a variety of
regular forms of communication with staff:


Pay-slip bulletin - information pertinent to everyone (corporate development,
employment issues etc) circulated to every member of staff with their monthly
pay-slip;



Intranet - the staff only section of the trust’s website facility. Staff can access
policies and procedures, patient information, an on-line telephone directory
and up-to-date news about the trust - including finance reports, performance
reports and minutes from key meetings such as the council of governors;



Chat forum - anonymous chat forum on the intranet where staff can post
discussion threads and topics;
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Email briefings - regular briefings to all staff via their personal email accounts,
on a variety of subjects affecting the trust - from departmental moves to
briefings on clinical issues;



‘Ask Eric’ - staff can use the intranet chat forum to ask the chief executive
questions, or put forward concerns, ideas and suggestions. All staff using the
scheme are guaranteed a response direct from the chief executive – usually
within five working days or less;



Staff magazine - Royal Standard re-launched in 2008 and focusing on staff
and the roles they play in the organisation;



Posters, leaflets, reports - produced specifically for staff; and



Membership magazine - The Member, is distributed to all community and staff
members of the foundation trust every quarter and updates the foundation
trust’s membership on service developments, proposals and plans.

A survey called ‘What’s in it for me?’ was undertaken in July 2008. Shorter and
simpler than the Healthcare Commission’s survey, it concentrated on the trust
and its own staff - rather than on national themes.
Nearly 60% of the workforce contributed to the survey. Staff focus groups
debated initial results and in November 2008, staff chose the actions they wanted
the trust to pursue.
A tripartite committee – made up of board directors, staff side representatives and
staff governors – was also set up to oversee the project. In February 2009, the
final action plan – listing 16 improvements, changes and benefits – was
published.
The tripartite committee has monitored the implementation of the action plan.
Virtually all the actions were completed by March 2010.
Priorities and Targets Going Forward
The overall position is one of improvement between the 2008 and 2009 NHS staff
surveys, which would appear to reflect the actions taken to address staff
concerns through the action plan jointly approved by the directors, staff governors
and JCC representatives.
However, the process of improvement will take several years and the trust’s
priority is to achieve gradual but sustained progress. This will continue to be
monitored by the trust’s tripartite committee.
The tripartite committee has agreed that key action to help achieve steady
improvement is the introduction of a new leadership and management
development programme. This is being developed with Manchester Business
School, building on ideas generated by the tripartite committee, and will be
piloted during 2010/11.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES
Sustainability / Climate Change
A challenge which is facing all organisations within both the public and private
sectors is that of safeguarding our future. Sustainability and climate change are
issues which as a board of directors we take extremely seriously.
In September 2007 we began looking in earnest at the sustainability agenda and
our role in the wider community as a good corporate citizen. As an NHS
foundation trust we have responsibilities to our patients, members and the wider
community which we serve.
As an organisation we want to move forward quickly to achieve both national and
local targets to reduce carbon emissions. As such, we have signed up to the
carbon management programme and we are working closely with the carbon trust
to implement an ambitious plan to reduce our emissions by 30% over the next
five years, taking 2007/08 as the baseline.
Waste Management
The Environment Agency (EA) audited the trust in July 2008 for compliance with
HTM 07-01 Safe Management of Healthcare Waste. The EA audit report received
in April 2009 confirmed the trust is safely storing, handling and disposal of all
categories of waste in compliance with current legislation and best practice.
In accordance with some recommendations made by the EA we have made
some improvements in respect of our management of waste transfer notes and
the storage of empty clinical waste bins.
The period 2009/10 has seen an increase of approximately 22% waste both
clinical and domestic, generated by the hospital. In particular an additional 137
tonnes of clinical waste was sent for treatment and an additional 100 tonnes of
domestic waste sent for disposal and recycling.
During 2009 A critical change to sharps management was introdced following a
pilot of a change of methodology.
We have now moved to reusable sharps containers. The advantage of these is
that they are impossible to overfill and are sent for emptying, treatment and
cleaning before being returned to the hospital.
Initial indications are that the safety aspect of the containers has contributed to a
reduction in the number of sharps injuries.
The trust also receives a report from the company managing the process to show
photographs of the containers and this can be used to track both good and bad
practice at an individual ward level.
We also receive data on how much of the capacity of the containers is being
used to ensure that we manage this to its maximum potential.
In January 2010 our main waste disposal contract was re-let and won by Butlers
of Bradford. A key element of the contract is a partnership betweeen Butlers and
a materials recovery facility (MRF) based in Sheffield.
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The aim of the MRF is to recycle up to 95% of domestic waste, leaving only 5% to
go to landfill.
This means that with the exception of glass all domestic waste can now go into
black containers and we have been able to reduce separate waste streams for
items such as paper.
The intial indications are that the MRF is achieving its 95% recycling target. This
is supporting the trust’s aim as set out within our carbon reduction pledge to
reduce our volumes of waste sent for disposal by 15% per annum.
Carbon Management and the Environment
The corporate citizenship committee continued to meet on a regular basis
throughout the year and monitors the trust’s progress against its carbon
management programme.
The key project in delivering the trusts stated aim of a carbon reduction of 30%
based upon 2007 emission levels has been the second phase of the replacement
of the coal fired boiler system.
A change over to a new boiler using gas as the primary fuel, was undertaken
during the year and successfully commissioned in December 2009 using funding
obtained from the Department of Health Energy Fund.
Significant further progress was made during the year in implementing the
Carbon Management action plan:
Established as part of the trust’s travel plan the cycle to work scheme initiative is
now firmly in place and to support this, the trust has introduced further cycle rack
facilities for use by visitors as well as limited shared pedestrian and cycle paths
around the site.
The Borough Council completed its work to create a cycle and pedestrian link into
the back of the hospital and the trust contributed £17,000 towards this project, as
part of a pledge made when we increased our car parking capacity.
Again, linked into our travel plan a number of additional footpaths have been
created around the site to ensure that all areas are now accessible on foot.
Our work with the local bus companies has continued and we have been able to
agree some amendments to the timetables for the bus routes visiting the Royal.
We have also been able to extend the mega rider discount scheme to cover
travel in and around Sheffield and outside the immediate vicinity of the
Chesterfield town centre area.
As part of our commitment to have locally sourced food from our in-house
catering operations, the trust supported, as the flagship employer, the Borough
Council’s application for fairtrade status. This also saw us contribute to a fairtrade event at the Borough Council Offices and we also participated in national
fair-trade week.
The in-house catering brand has developed throughout the year and has
successfully established a hospitality at the Royal and coffee@theRoyal service.
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Further developments are anticipated during the forthcoming year and again the
use of local suppliers to support this work will be a key feature.
Work commenced in July 2009 upon a new three ward development and from an
environmental perspective the trust is seeking to achieve good against the
National NHS Building environment Target (BREAM). The scheme will utilise,
where possible, recycle products and for the first time we are utilising solar
panels as part of the development.
We continue wherever possible to use local labour to support our building
projects on-site and this has been particularly beneficial with the additional
catering development which has been completed.
Looking further forward, the trust has received a positive report into the feasibility
of introducing a wind turbine on our site and we will be looking at the feasibility of
taking this work forward over the next 12 months.
Summary of Performance

Area

Waste
minimisation
and
management

Non-financial
data
(applicable
metric)

Financial
data
(£k)

Financial
data
(£k)

2008/09

2009/10

2008/09

2009/10

Domestic 652
tonnes

Domestic 516
tonnes

Clinical
Treated 622
tonnes

Clinical Treated
591 tonnes

Non-financial
data
(applicable
metric)

- Absolute
values for total
amount of waste
produced by the
trust
- Methods of
disposal
(optional)

Clinical
Incinerated 29
tonnes
Recycled 139
tonnes

92

£353
Note: the
significant
increase is
due to the
introduction
of the
Sharpsmart
system, the
increase is
offset by
none
purchase
of sharps
containers
82

1,274

992

- Gas

132

381

- Coal

410

133

(222)

(221)

- Expenditure
on waste
disposal

£295

Clinical
Incinerated 18
tonnes
Recycled 650
tonnes

- Water

106,501 m3

102,314 m3

- Electricity

11,771,089
KWh

12,274,133 KWh

- Gas

3,939,343
KWh

- Water
- Electricity

19,519,638 KWh

Finite
Resources

- Coal
Recharges
relating to DMH
and other private
organisations on
site

7,475,691 KWh

25,199,877
KWh
n/a
n/a
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Recharges to
Derbyshire
Mental
Health and
other private
organisations
on site

Health & Safety
The health and safety management framework within which the trust operates
reflects the HSE guidance ‘Successful health and safety management (HSG65)’,
which was last updated in 2003. The principles of this guidance are shown below
and the framework for this report reflects this approach to the management of
health and safety.
To operationalise the management of health and safety, the health and safety
management committee meet on a bi monthly basis. This is chaired by the
director of allied clinical and facilities services, as the director leading on health
and safety, and attended by general managers as well as the environmental risk
team.
A joint staff and management health and safety committee meets on a bi-monthly
basis, chaired by the director of allied clinical and facilities services. The staff
side chair of the joint consultative committee (JCC) is also a member of this
committee.
The number and type of health and safety incidents and any trends in these are
monitored on a regular basis through the joint staff and management health and
safety committee, and action to tackle specific issues is agreed. The health and
safety management committee co-ordinates a trust-wide approach to higher level
health and safety issues, such as stress at work.
Violence against staff was the highest reported health and safety category during
2009/10. A number of control measures have been introduced to protect staff.
The Identicom lone working devices have been issued to all staff working in the
community. The device provides a direct link to a 24 hour monitoring and support
centre.
A new training course ‘Clinical Holding’ was introduced in May 2009. The course
aims are to provide those staff who deliver direct patient care the skills to deal
with confused and aggressive patients.
Other controls have produced a 30% reduction in reported needlestick and
sharps injuries.
Occupational Health
The trust has an on-site occupational health service provided under contract by
an external NHS provider. This is nursing-led but with access to a consultant
occupational health physician.
The service includes recruitment health
screening, in-service screening and review, and access to counselling and
psychological support.
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PATIENT CARE AND STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS
Information for Patient and Carer
Patient and public involvement (PPI) is an integral part of the trust’s work and has
been strengthened by its foundation trust status. The trust prides itself on
listening and responding to patients to improve services delivered locally and
ensuring that they are patient centred. As a result of listening to patients, the trust
has been able to:







Improve access and reduce waiting;
Offer more information and choice;
Build closer relationships;
Provide safe, high-quality and co-ordinated care;
Provide a clean, comfortable and friendly environment; and
Improve the patient’s experience.

Patient and Public Involvement Team
The trust has a patient and public involvement team, which is based within the
clinical standards and governance directorate. This team supports the trust’s PPI
agenda, structures and activity. Working with staff from across the organisation
the PPI team takes the lead in ensuring that the trust listens and responds to
patients’ views in order to influence service delivery.
The PPI team also supports the PPI committee, which is a subcommittee of the
council of governors; more details of the committee’s work can be found on page
72 of this report.
The PPI team provides the following support to the PPI committee:






Advice on trust practice;
Assistance to influence the PPI strategy and development plan;
Regular updates on feedback from patients and the public;
Practical help and advice for PPI projects and initiatives; and
Ensuring members are included in all appropriate changes and developments

In addition the PPI team acts as a link to the independent Local Involvement
Networks (LINks). LINks were established through the Local Government and
Public Involvement in Health Bill and have a number of powers including:





Requiring information requested to be presented;
Right to respond to reports (only PCT/ LA);
Referral to overview and scrutiny committee; and
Enter and view services provided at a reasonable time;

During 2009/10 the Derbyshire LINk has not used any of its powers in relation to
the services provided by the trust, however we have responded to a number of
informal queries raised via LINks.
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The Advice Centre
The trust’s advice centre opened in the main entrance in November 2008. Part of
the chief executive’s directorate, it merged the former Patient Advice and Liaison
(PALS) and Complaints Services.
The Advice Centre team works with patients, relatives, carers and staff to:









Provide literature and information about health and health-related issues;
Supply information and facts about the Royal’s services – or other NHS
organisations;
Put people in touch with other services, organisations and facilities;
Provide ‘ on the spot’ help to resolve concerns, issues and problems promptly;
Listen to ideas, comments and suggestions about services and pass them on
for response or action;
Take compliments and ‘thanks’ and pass them on;
Support directorates in the hospital with the investigation and resolution of
formal complaints; and
Identify trends and themes within complaints for directorate action.

Contacts with the Advice Centre
Each contact with the Centre is recorded into one of the nine categories listed
below


Clinical Meeting: A request to meet with a clinician for an explanation of care
or treatment given or planned, by either the patient or relative (with consent if
appropriate).



‘Have Your Say’ and Suggestions: A comment, idea or observation to be
passed on to the appropriate service (which does not always require a
response to be made).



Compliment: Commendation, praise and thanks to be passed on to the
appropriate service or staff member(s).



General Enquiry: A request for information or advice about general services,
health care or a health related issue.



Signpost to other services: Giving information about other services outside
the trust, e.g. Primary Care Trust, advocacy services, social services.



Level 1 Concern: Responding to and resolving a dissatisfaction or worry by
the end of the next working day - either by telephone call, action or meeting,
without implementing the trust’s formal investigation process.



Level 2 Investigation (low): Implementing the formal complaints process;
responding to and resolving a grievance, or resolving a problem, either by
phone call, action or meeting.
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Level 3 Investigation (moderate): Implementing the formal complaints
process; undertaking a full investigation and making a formal response to a
moderate issue or problem, either by letter or meeting (these complaints often
involve several issues relating to a period of care, may result in moderate
harm).



Level 4 Investigation (high): Implementing the formal complaints process;
undertaking a full investigation and making a formal response to a serious
issue or problem, either by letter or meeting. (Serious issues could lead to
negligence claims/reputation damage and include complaints where there
have been: failures causing harm or death; abuse or neglect; gross
professional misconduct or criminal offence (eg assault).

Recorded Contacts
Advice Centre contacts by quarter for 2009/10 are as follows:

Contact category

Apr to
July to
June 2009 Sept 2009

Oct to
Dec 2009

Jan
to Mar
2010

Total

Clinical meeting

2

4

1

1

8

‘Have your say’ &
suggestions

54

50

24

22

150

Compliment

12

16

28

31

87

General enquiry

213

170

225

248

856

Signpost to other services

19

9

15

18

61

Level 1 concern

171

174

152

212

709

Level 2 complaint
investigation

75

64

75

81

295

Level 3 complaint
investigation

103

73

91

127

394

Level 4 complaint

6

8

5

3

22

Total contacts

655

568

624

743

2589
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Formal Complaints
Formal complaints, by directorate, subject and sub-subject for 2009/10 are as follows:

1
2

1
1

3
4

1 2
1 12
1 1

5

2

3

11
3
2
4
29
1
26

3 16
4
1
1
1 1
1
2 16

2

4
5

1

5

1

3

1
7

2
1

3
1

Communication
& Interpersonal
Relationships

Staff attitude
Communication (other)
Confidentiality
Communication (verbal)
Communication (written)
Communication
& Interpersonal
Relationships
Total

Care on the
Ward

6 12
Care on the ward (other)
Hygiene needs
Healthcare associated

2

1

1

13

6 6
6 18
7 13

1
1
3

21
46
25

1 21 40
1
4
3
3
3

5
2

6 105
5 17
2
8
1 10
5 39
1
3
10 75
10 10
3 20
1 11

38

38 193

18

7
1

5 31

1

19
4
1
6
4

2 14
1 2
1 1
5 13
3 10

1

7 25
2 5
4 1
7 15
13 3

14
2
1
10
5

1

34 12 40

1

33 49

32 220

9
4
2

1

Grand Total

Surgical Specialities
Women's & Children's
Services
3

74

6
1

45

1

Pathology
Planning &
Performance

1

Not specific

4

Medical Specialities

2

Imaging

Central Services
Clinical Standards &
Governance
Emergency Care &
Orthopaedics

Subject
(primary)
Sub-subject (primary)
Changes,
Delays &
Cancelled
Cancellations operation/procedure
Changes delays &
cancellations (other)
Delay in appointment
Changed/cancelled appt
Changes,
Delays &
Cancellations
Total
Clinical Care Clinical Care (other)
Delay in Diagnosis
Delay in treatment
Failure to diagnose
Delay in investigation
Clinical care (medical)
Clinical care (midwifery)
Clinical care (nursing)
Outcome of procedure
Clinical Care
Total

Critical Care

Directorate
(primary)

5
1

4

1
93
16
9
61
40

24
6
2

infection
Moving & handling
Nutrition
Observation/monitoring
Pressure area care
Privacy & dignity
Patients' property
Care on the
Ward Total
Discharge
Patient's condition on
arrangements discharge
Delayed discharge
Discharge (other)
1
Inappropriate discharge
Discharge
arrangements
Total
1
Environment
& facilities
Access
Car parking
Cleanliness (general
areas)
Cleanliness (ward areas)
Environment & Facilities
(other)
Patient meals
Patientline
Privacy & dignity
Smoking
Patient transport
Environment
& facilities
Total
Medication
Medication issue (other)
Medication error (dosage)
Medication error (type)
Medication
Total
Health Care
records
Labelling issue
Patient details
Health care records
(other)
1
Health Care
records Total
1
Waiting time in
Waiting times Emergency Dept
Waiting time in Out-pts
Waiting time (other)
Waiting times
Total
Grand Total
18

1
1

1

1

1
1
2
2
3
6

1

1

1

1

1 29

9

6

66

4
1
4
2

5
2
5
1

2

1

1
1

12
3
12
4

11

13

4

1

31

1

2
21

1

1

2
2

4

2

24
1
2
1
4
5

5

4

64
10
1
3

1
1
10

1

21

1
20

1

2

11
1
2

1

3

3

1
4
5

41
2

1
4

2

2

4
4
1
1

6

6

1

8

14
1
1

2

2

2

2
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1

1

1
3
5

2

1

1

9

2

1

3
5
1

4 2 2
3 162 23143

1
3 64147

9
88 711

3
1

59

2
2
4
3
7
16

1
1

1

Signed, on behalf of the board of directors by:

Eric Morton
Chief executive and accounting officer
4 June 2010
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MANAGEMENT/GOVERNANCE OF THE TRUST
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Introduction
The board of directors manages the business of the trust and is the legally
responsible body for the delivery of high quality, effective services and for making
decisions relating to the strategic direction, financial control and performance of
the trust.
The board of directors has a business focus, providing active leadership of the
trust within the framework of prudent and effective controls to ensure compliance
with its terms of authorisation.
All members of the board of directors have joint responsibility for every decision
of the board of directors regardless of their individual skills or status.
Role of the Board of Directors
The role of the board of directors includes:












Setting targets, monitoring performance and ensuring the resources are used
in the most appropriate way;
Providing active leadership of the NHS foundation trust within a framework of
prudent and effective controls, which enables risk to be assessed and
managed;
Making sure the NHS foundation trust performs in the best interests of the
public, within legal and statutory requirements;
Responsibility for ensuring the quality and safety of healthcare services,
education, training and research delivered by the NHS foundation trust and
applying the principles and standards of clinical governance set out by the
Department of Health, the Care Quality Commission and other relevant NHS
bodies;
Being accountable for the services provided and how public funds are used,
and exercising those functions effectively, efficiently and economically;
Making sure the NHS foundation trust complies with its ‘terms of
authorisation’ set by Monitor;
Having specific duties relating to audit, remuneration, clinical governance,
charitable funds and risk assurance;
Deciding the trust’s strategic direction - in consultation with the council of
governors;
Setting the trust’s values and standards of conduct and ensure that its
obligations to its members, patients and other stakeholders are understood
and met; and
Working in partnership with the council of governors.

Board Focus
In the trust’s first two years as an NHS foundation trust, a significant turnover in
the membership of the board resulted in the appointment of a new chairman and
five new non-executive directors. Consequently, the focus of board development
over the last four years has been on building the relationships between directors
and on developing the relationships between the directors and the governors.
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The board of directors has reviewed its values and standards to ensure that they
meet the obligations that the trust has to its patients, members of staff and other
stakeholders. Periodically the board of directors reviews the strategic aims after
consultation with the council of governors and takes responsibility for the quality
and safety of the healthcare services, education, training and research.
The board now devotes most of its time and agenda to clinical quality and the key
elements of the patient experience, including infection control, hygiene, feeding
and nutrition and privacy and dignity. Over the last twelve months, the board’s
priority for development has been to have an engaged collective understanding of
measures of clinical quality and how these are used to produce meaningful
quality accounts which properly reflect patients’ everyday experience of the
trust’s services.
Composition of the Board of Directors
The board is a unitary board consisting of a non-executive chairman, five nonexecutive directors (one of whom is the senior independent director) and five
executive directors.
The composition of the board of directors is in accordance with the trust’s
constitution and it is appropriate to fulfil its statutory and constitutional function
and comply with Monitor’s terms of authorisation. An annual review of the board
of directors’ balance, completeness and appropriateness is undertaken.
The Chairman
The chairman is responsible for ensuring that the board of directors focuses on
the strategic development of the trust and for ensuring robust governance and
accountability arrangements are in place, as well as evaluating the performance
of the board of directors, its committees and individual non-executive directors.
Non-Executive Directors
Whilst the executive directors are responsible for the day-to-day operational
management of the trust, the non-executive directors share the corporate
responsibility for ensuring that the trust is run efficiently, economically and
effectively. Non-executive directors use their expertise, interest and experience
to scrutinise the performance of management, monitor the reporting of
performance, and satisfy themselves as to the integrity of financial, clinical and
other information. The non-executive directors also fulfil their responsibility for
determining appropriate levels of remuneration for executive directors.
The board’s small number of standing committees has allowed all the nonexecutive directors scope to develop their skills and experience as members of
committees and, in most cases, as committee chairs. Non-executive directors
have also taken lead roles on specific projects, such as the children’s unit and the
re-development of the front entrance. Internal induction and development for the
non-executive directors has been supplemented by their involvement in external
networks and paid training identified through appraisal.
Directors’ biographies can be seen on page 58 of this report.
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Board Meetings
The board of directors meets a minimum of ten times a year in order that it may
regularly discharge its duties.
Attendance at the board of directors meetings during 2009/10 is presented in the
table below:
Name

Position

Meetings Attended
Board

Joint
BoD/CoG

Time Out

Annual
Report
and
Accounts

Richard Gregory

Chairman

10/10

2/2

1/1

1/1

Michael Hall

SID and NonExecutive Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Chief Executive

9/10

2/2

1/1

1/1

8/10

1/2

1/1

1/1

8/10

1/2

1/1

1/1

8/10

2/2

1/1

1/1

10/10

2/2

0/1

1/1

10/10

2/2

1/1

1/1

10/10

1/2

1/1

1/1

9/10

2/2

1/1

1/1

9/10

2/2

1/1

1/1

4/5

0/0

0/0

0/0

3/4

1/1

0/1

1/1

Pam Liversidge
David Whitney
Deborah Fern
Janet Birkin
Eric Morton
Paul Briddock
Terry Alty
Alfonzo
Tramontano
Dr Ian Gell
John McDonnell

Director of Finance
and Contracting
Corporate
Secretary
Director of Nursing
(from 1 Apr 2009)
Medical Director
(from 1 Oct 2009)
Medical Director
(to 30 Sep 2009)

Code of Governance
It is extremely important that the board of directors maintains the highest
standard of probity and demonstrates adherence to best practice in corporate
governance. Monitor published a Code of Governance in September 2006 to
assist with this aim and requires foundation trusts to make an annual declaration
of compliance with the Code.
Following the annual review, the board of directors confirms that, with the
exception of the points below, the principles of the code were applied and the
requirements met throughout the year to 31 March 2010.
The trust’s approach to the application of the main and supporting principles of
the code is described throughout the body of this report.
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The exceptions to compliance are with respect to provision C.2.1, as the
executive directors do not have fixed term or rolling contracts; and provision
C.2.2, as no non-executive director should have more than two reappointments
or serve more than three terms for a maximum of three years per term.
Board of Directors and Council of Governors
The chairman also chairs the council of governors meetings. This is a unique
position which ensures that there is effective communication between both
forums. The governors are invited to discuss strategic issues in detail at the
council of governors meetings and advise the chairman of their views. The
chairman ensures their views are considered at the board of directors meeting as
part of the decision making process.
Joint meetings between the board of directors and the council of governors are
held twice a year, and there have also been longer time-out sessions for the
directors and governors to look at specific themes. The chairman and nonexecutive directors also meet the governors to help promote shared
understanding of the non-executive role.
Where a dispute between the council of governors and the board of directors
occurs, in the first instance the chairman of the trust would endeavour to resolve
the dispute.
Should the chairman not be willing or able to resolve the dispute the senior
independent director and the vice-chairman of the council of governors would
jointly attempt to resolve the dispute.
Should the senior independent director and the vice chairman of the council of
governors not be able to resolve the dispute, the board of directors, pursuant to
section 15(2) of Schedule 7 of the 2006 Act, would decide the disputed matter.
Board Sub-Committees
The board of directors has delegated decision-making authority to the risk
committee, the audit committee, the clinical governance committee, the
remuneration committee and the charitable funds committee. These committees
are required to provide the board with written minutes of their proceedings.
Risk Committee
The risk committee provides objective assurance to the public and the board of
directors that the processes are in place across the trust to ensure high quality
risk management processes are maintained and monitored. Its main duties are
defined in its terms of reference and include:






Receive, consider and test the trust’s corporate risk register and monitor the
effectiveness of the process;
Consider and challenge risk prioritisation as provided by the risk owners
including discussion of any perceived discrepancies;
Monitor the risk profile of the trust against risk thresholds and provide the
board of directors with regular assessments of the risks facing the trust based
on ‘traffic light’ categorisation and an overview of the management of
identified risks;
Monitor the effectiveness of risk management systems within the trust;
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Review the risk management strategy and annual risk management report;
Oversee the integrated risk management system;
Promote risk awareness and give advice to the board of directors;
Consider urgent and ad hoc issues and where appropriate recommend them
to the board or relevant committee with risk action plans;
Monitor progress on compliance with the requirements of the Care Quality
Commission and advise the board of directors on the trust’s annual
registration; and
Liaise with the audit committee and the clinical governance committee to
ensure that any issues of common concern are addressed appropriately.

The committee is chaired by Richard Gregory, chairman of the trust. The
attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009 and 31
March 2010 was:
Name

Position

Richard Gregory

Chairman

9/9

Michael Hall

SID, Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Clinical Governance Committee
Chief Executive

5/9

David Whitney
Eric Morton

Meetings
Attended

8/9
8/9

In addition to the above meetings, a special meeting of the risk committee was
convened in January 2010, to consider the detail of the trust’s application for
registration with the Care Quality Commission, in order to advise the board of
directors on its approval of the submission by 29 January 2010.
During 2009/10 the risk committee has overseen the following areas of action:












Approved the updated terms of reference for the committee;
Reviewed the corporate risk registers throughout the year;
Reviewed the trust’s high level residual risks;
Monitored the regularity of updates to all risks on the Datix system;
Considered and recommended to the board the approval of the updated risk
management strategy;
Considered and recommended to the board a declaration of full compliance
against the Healthcare Commission’s standards for better health for 2009/10;
Considered and recommended to the board a submission of full compliance
against the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission from 1
April 2010;
Received the annual claims report from the NHSLA;
Received the reports on patient safety incidents from the National Patient
Safety Agency;
Received the information on trust insurance cover; and
Approved the annual report of the risk committee.
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Audit Committee
The audit committee provides objective assurance to the public and the board of
directors that the processes are in place across the trust to ensure high quality
governance and internal control systems are maintained. Its main duties are
defined in its terms of reference and include:









Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the trust and any formal
announcements relating to the trust’s financial performance;
Monitor governance, risk management and internal controls;
Monitor the effectiveness of internal audit function;
Review and monitor external audit’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process. Develop and implement policy on the
employment of the external auditors to supply non-audit services;
Review of standing orders, financial instructions and scheme of delegation.
Review of schedule of losses and compensation;
Review of the annual fraud report;
Provide assurance to the board of directors on a regular basis; and
Report annually to the council of governors, identifying any matters in respect
of which it considers that action or improvement is needed.

The committee receives reports from internal and external auditors and
undertakes detailed examination of financial and value for money reports
received by the board of directors.
The committee is chaired by Michael Hall, senior independent director and nonexecutive director of the trust. The attendance of committee members at
meetings held between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Michael Hall
Janet Birkin
Pam Liversidge

SID and Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

5/5
5/5
3/5

The audit committee reviews the arrangements by which the trust’s staff raise
issues of concern in confidence about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting and control, clinical quality, patient safety or other matters. The
review includes consideration of the proportionate and independent investigation
of such matters and appropriate follow up action.
The audit committee has delegated authority to commission additional
investigative and advisory services outside of the audit code from the external
auditors, ensuring continued auditor objectivity and independence. No such work
was however undertaken during 2009/10.
During 2009/10 the audit committee has overseen the following areas of action:




Considered internal audit reports and reviewed the recommendations
associated with the reports;
Ensured that the recommendations
arising from audit reviews were
implemented by the trust as agreed;
Reviewed the progress against the work programme for internal and external
audit and the counter fraud service;
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Considered the annual accounts and associated documents and provided
assurance to the board of directors;
Considered and approved various ad hoc reports about the governance of the
trust;
Promoted the counter fraud service;
Maintained close links with the risk committee and the clinical governance
committee;
Received the quarterly reports from Monitor; and,
Provided continuing monitoring of the financial status of the trust.

Clinical Governance Committee
The clinical governance committee supports the board of directors by providing
objective assurance that processes are in place across the trust to ensure high
quality clinical services are provided. Its main duties are defined in its terms of
reference and include:












Provide strategic assurance to the trust in relation to clinical quality and
clinical governance issues.
Formally receive regular reports on clinical governance, quality assurance of
clinical services, and other related issues. In doing so, gain assurance that
appropriate action has been taken and consider whether further strategic
review is required.
Systematically review patient safety data and trends, including significant
clinical complaints, incidents and all inquests and ensure appropriate action
has been taken in respect of these.
Guide the development of key performance measures for clinical quality,
monitor compliance and ensure that action is taken when these performance
indicators suggest it is required.
Review the minutes of clinical management team and directorate clinical
governance committee and monitor the actions of these groups in respect of
their clinical governance responsibilities.
Performance manage the directorate clinical governance groups to ensure
appropriate action is taken in relation to the clinical issues raised.
Monitor the outcome of clinical accreditation visits, external reviews and
audits as appropriate.
Provide assurance to the board of directors that systems and processes in
operation within the trust are functioning effectively.
Monitor the clinical aspects of the trust's risk management strategy; and
Receive regular reports from the Safeguarding Children Governance Group
and in doing so, gain assurance that appropriate action has been taken in
relation to national guidance and serious case reviews.

The committee is chaired by David Whitney, non-executive director of the trust.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009
and 31 March 2010 was:

54

Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

David Whitney
Janet Birkin
Deborah Fern
John McDonnell
Alfonzo Tramontano
Dr Ian Gell

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Medical Director (retired 30 Sep 09)
Chief Nurse (from 1 Apr 09)
Medical Director (from 1 Oct 2009)

8/10
7/10
9/10
4/5
8/10
4/5

During 2009/10 the clinical governance committee has overseen the following
areas of action:
















The development of action plans as a result of reviews of patients’ care and
root cause analyses following untoward incidents, near misses or inquests.
Review and updating of the trust-wide clinical risk register.
A review of the quality assurance processes in place within Pathology
following a Medicine & Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA)
review of blood bank, which raised significant concerns.
Development of a surgical care pathway which includes all elements of the
WHO Surgical Safety Checklist.
Received regular updates and reviewed progress against the trust’s
Safeguarding Children Action Plan, which includes the trust’s response to
serious case reviews and national reports.
Review of the trust’s structures and processes in light of the Healthcare
Commission’s investigation into Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust; as a
result of which the trust has developed an action plan to address any
shortfalls identified and has introduced more frequent reporting of mortality
data.
Development of the trust’s Quality Accounts for 2008/9 and agreed the
process and structure for the 2009/10 Quality Accounts.
Preparation for the visits by the NHSLA to assess the trust’s maternity
services against the CNST risk management standards.
Development of a clinical quality strategy which gives a framework for the
development and reporting of clinical quality indicators and highlights the
trust’s priorities in relation to clinical effectiveness, safety and patient
experience.
Agreed the revised Patient and Public Involvement (PPI) Strategy and the PPI
Plan for 2009/10.
Introduction of protected mealtimes throughout the trust, to aid improved
nutritional support for patients.
Development and introduction of a process of nurse metrics, which include
audits of nurse practice and ongoing patient experience surveys.
A review of practices for the prevention of hospital acquired Venous
Thromboembolism (VTE), which led to the trust being named as an exemplar
site in recognition of our good practice.

In addition, the committee received the following reports:






Quarterly clinical standards and governance report (Volumes I and II);
Medicines management annual report;
Clinical Claims Annual Report;
NICE Guidance Annual Report; and
Results of the Healthcare Commission’s Hygiene Inspection.
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Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee has delegated responsibility for all aspects of
remuneration and terms of service for the chief executive and executive directors
of the trust. Its responsibility includes all aspects of salary, provision for other
benefits including pensions, arrangements for termination of employment and
other contractual terms. The nomination and selection of candidates for
appointment as chief executive or executive director is undertaken separately by
an appointment committee.
The committee is chaired by Pam Liversidge, non-executive director of the trust.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009
and 31 March 2010 was:
Name

Position

Pam Liversidge
Richard Gregory
Michael Hall

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Meetings
Attended
2/2
2/2
2/2

Further details of the membership and work of the remuneration committee are
within the remuneration report on page 96 of this report.
Charitable Funds Committee
The charitable funds committee is responsible for making sure money donated to
the hospital is spent wisely. Its main duties are defined in its terms of reference
and include:













Receive the governing document of any newly registered fund for adoption;
Receive any recommendation for existing funds in respect of rationalising
such funds or increasing the number of funds;
Receive reports showing the income and expenditure position of the charity
requests for expenditure in excess of £10,000, also details of legacies, and
donations in excess of £2,000. In addition the committee will receive formal
feedback for expenditure in excess of £25,000;
Refer all requests for expenditure in excess of £100,000 to all trustees for
approval;
Review a statement of balances held and commitments, ensuring where
balances are held, that they can be justified in line with the reserves policy;
Receive reports on any irregularities in respect of fundraising or other
matters;
Be responsible for formulation of investment policies, the appointment of an
investment advisor/broker and for participation in any common investment
funds;
Receive reports reviewing investment performance;
Receive details on the appointment of appropriate banking services;
Receive the annual accounts/annual reports for the charity; and meet with all
trustees to approve these and to discuss any other charitable matters; and
Receive details of any audit reports relating to charitable funds.

The committee is chaired by Deborah Fern, non-executive director of the trust.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009
and 31 March 2010 was:
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Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Deborah Fern
David Whitney
Paul Briddock

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Director of Finance and Contracting

4/4
2/4
4/4

The meetings held on 25 November 2009 and 27 January 2010 were meetings of
the executive and non-executive members of the board as the corporate trustee.
The meeting held on 25 November 2009 was for the signing of the Annual Report
and Accounts of the Charitable Funds. All members of the board (except Janet
Birkin, non-executive director) were in attendance.
The meeting on 27 January 2010 was held to approve the purchase of a new
MRI scanner. All members of the board (except Dr Ian Gell, Medical Director)
were in attendance.
The accounting records and the day-to-day administration of the funds are dealt
with by the finance department located at Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust, Top Road, Calow, Chesterfield S44 5BL.
During 2009/10 the charitable funds committee has overseen the following areas
of action.
The funds continue to support a wide range of charitable and health related
activities benefiting both patients and staff. In general they are used to purchase
the very varied additional goods and services that the NHS funding does not
provide. For example, during the year charitable donations were used to fund the
development and landscaping of the Special Care Baby Unit (SCBU) courtyard,
providing a quiet external space for relaxation and contemplation for parents and
visitors away from, but close to, the intensive nature of SCBU.
The ward charitable funds receive many donations specifically given to thank the
nursing and other ward staff and these are used for charitable activities that will
benefit staff. Funds were provided to purchase hoists and a remote control bath
for Pearson ward, benefitting both the patients and the staff. The charitable funds
also enable consultants and other medical staff to attend courses, not funded by
the NHS, which will update them in the new ideas and modern techniques in their
specialties.
The General Fund receives donations and legacies that can be used for any
charitable purpose relating to the NHS. This flexibility has been used to fund a
MICAS PACS system to aid diagnosis, and mobile hairdressing and beautician
services for patients on the wards.
The trust has a team of volunteers who help patients and visitors navigate the
hospital site. There are around 30 volunteers and their contributions range from a
few hours a month to a weekly commitment. The management of the volunteer
project is funded by the NHS but the volunteers’ expenses that require
reimbursement are paid by the charity.
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Other Commitments of Non-Executive Directors
In addition to participation at formal meetings of the board and its committees, the
non-executive directors devote time to other roles and responsibilities, eg
participation in project groups for service developments, attendance at
conferences and other events.
Directors’ Biographies
Under section 17 and 19 of schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006,
the chairman, chief executive, executive and non-executive directors were
appointed to the trust’s board of directors as follows:
Chairman: Richard Gregory OBE
Appointed 12 April 2006 to 11 April 2009
Reappointed 12 April 2009 to 11 April 2012
Richard's board experience covers banking, media, regional development, higher
education, innovation and the arts.
Currently he is a non-executive director of National Australia Group Europe Ltd,
which includes the roles of Yorkshire Bank chair, director of Clydesdale Bank
PLC, and a member of the group's audit and risk committees.
He is also the senior non-executive director of Chesterfield based Imagesound
PLC, chair of Science City York and chair of Yorkshire Innovation, the regional
science and industry council.
He is a former chairman of Sheffield Hallam University, former deputy chairman
of Yorkshire Forward, the regional development agency, and a former nonexecutive director of Business in the Community Ltd.
His executive career was in ITV, with Granada and Yorkshire Tyne Tees.
He was managing director of Yorkshire TV from 1997 to 2002, the culmination of
a 22-year career, which covered news, programme making, production and
broadcasting.
Awarded the OBE in June 2004, Richard lives in Hope and is married with two
grown up daughters. The family has lived in the Peak District for 30 years.
Non-Executive Director: Janet Birkin JP, DL
Appointed 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2009
Reappointed 2 November 2009 to 1 November 2012
Janet began her career at Marks and Spencer where she worked for more than
thirty years, ending her career as the company's regional head of human
resources for the East Midlands. She was appointed chairman of Derbyshire
Police Authority in 2005, having been a member of the Authority since 2001. She
served as a county councillor (1988 to 1992) and a member of the Derbyshire
Probation Service Management Board (1993 to 1995). Janet was appointed as a
trustee director of Marks and Spencer Pension Trust Ltd in 2006.
Janet lives in Chesterfield and is a JP.

58

Non-Executive Director: Deborah Fern OBE, BA
Appointed 1 September 2006 to 31 August 2008
Reappointed 1 September 2008 to 31 August 2011
Deborah is an entrepreneur, who began her career working for Rolls Royce
where she qualified as a chartered secretary and an accountant. She later
founded and ran, for 15 years, a training company delivering government
programmes primarily for disadvantaged and disaffected people - which she sold
in February 2006. Deborah was a member of the Learning and Skills Council
Adult Learning Committee and Leicestershire Board. Currently Deborah is
Chairman of Derbyshire Association for the Blind, Patron of the NSPCC, and has
recently completed a joint honours degree with the Open University.
Deborah lives in Darley Dale and is a member of the parochial church council for
Darley Dale.
Non-Executive Director: Michael Hall DL, Hon D Univ, FCA, FCMA, FCT
Deputy chairman and senior independent director (from 29 November 2006)
Appointed 5 July 2005 to 4 July 2008
Reappointed 5 July 2008 to 4 July 2011
Originally from Manchester, Michael qualified as a chartered accountant in 1963
and has worked in most aspects of commercial financial management
culminating in the position as financial director of an international group with a
turnover of £200m and 3000 employees.
Michael joined the University of Derby in November 1991. His role as deputy
vice-chancellor encompassed the implementation of a commercial approach and
attitude. Specific responsibilities included the various facilities provided in the
institution to accommodate the learning process, for example: catering, facilities,
including conferences, estates, finance, residences, reprographics and rooming.
Following his retirement in 2002, he was asked to serve as acting chief executive
of Derby Cityscape creating the urban regeneration for the City of Derby.
Subsequently, he was asked to chair Business Service East Midlands, an East
Midlands development agency activity formed to review the existing business
support arrangements for small and medium-sized enterprises, supported by
business link. During this time Michael was asked to chair the committee formed
to explore the possibility of merging the boards of North and Southern Derbyshire
chambers of commerce, and subsequently became the first president of the
Derbyshire chamber of commerce, where he is still a member of the board of the
enlarged organisation for Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire. He has served on the
national committee of the British Chamber of Commerce for the past five years,
and chairs their National Audit Committee.
Michael's other interests include foundation governor of Derby High School and
the Anthony Gell School in Wirksworth, chairman of the Derbyshire Community
Foundation, trustee and finance director of the Arkwright Society in Cromford.
Michael lives in Ashford-in-the-Water.
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Non-Executive Director: Pam Liversidge OBE, DL, FREng
Appointed 6 July 2006 to 5 July 2009
Reappointed 6 July 2009 to 5 July 2012
Pam Liversidge is a Chartered Mechanical Engineer. During a career of over
thirty years in heavy industry she has worked as an engineer in the
manufacturing industry. She also spent five years as a Senior Executive in the
electricity industry during its privatisation. She now has interests in engineering
and medical device companies.
She is a Fellow of the Institution of Mechanical Engineers and was its first woman
President from May 1997 to May 1998, a Fellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineers, of the City & Guilds Institute and of the Royal Society of Arts;
Chairman of Governors of Sheffield High School; a Member of the Company of
Cutlers in Hallamshire and a Liveryman of the Worshipful Company of Engineers.
She is a Guardian of the Sheffield Assay Office.
She is a Director of the Rainbow Seed Fund and a non-executive Director of the
Chesterfield Royal Foundation Trust Hospital. Pam has received a number of
Honorary Doctorates from UK universities.
In the 1999 New Year’s Honours List Pam was awarded the OBE for her services
to the Institution of Mechanical Engineers and was made a Deputy Lieutenant of
South Yorkshire in October 1999. She held office as High Sheriff of South
Yorkshire from April 2004 to April 2005.
Pam lives in the Hope Valley.
Non-Executive Director: David Whitney
Appointed 1 August 2006 to 31 July 2009
Reappointed 1 August 2009 to 31 July 2012
David was formally a director of clinical management at Keele University, where
he was engaged in directing the clinical leadership programme. He is a visiting
professor at Sheffield University, where he teaches on the master programmes in
public health, and a non-executive director of Westfield Contributory Health
Scheme. He is a non-executive director of One Health Group and External Health
Adviser to A4e Ltd.
An NHS manager by background, David was a director of Trent Regional Health
Authority from 1985 to 1990 and chief executive of Central Sheffield University
Hospitals NHS Trust from 1990 to 2001.
David lives in Hathersage.
Chief Executive: Eric Morton
The chief executive, Eric Morton, came into post in December 2001, having
previously been employed by the NHS trust as deputy chief executive and
director of finance and corporate services since January 1993. He is a qualified
accountant. He is past chairman of the Healthcare Financial Management
Association, and former vice-chairman of Chesterfield College.
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His professional accountancy training was completed with Doncaster Council,
followed by various posts in several local authorities. He joined the National
Health Service in 1987, as senior assistant regional treasurer with Trent Regional
Health Authority. He moved to the Northern General Hospital in Sheffield as its
finance director, steering it to Wave 1 NHS trust status. He became director of
finance at North Derbyshire Health Authority in 1990, before transferring to the
Chesterfield Royal Hospital three months before it became an NHS trust.
Chief Nurse: Alfonzo Tramontano MSc, PG Cert, RGN, EN(G)
Appointed 1 April 2009
Alfonzo began his NHS career by volunteering once a week at Walton hospital.
He then joined Walton Hospital straight from school as an auxiliary nurse before
joining the Royal in 1985 as a pupil nurse. He rose through the ranks of enrolled
nurse, staff nurse, charge nurse, deputy ward manager and ward manager before
taking a more managerial role in the clinical services side of the medical
directorate.
He attained a Post Graduate Certificate in managing Health Services before
being asked to cover the Head of Performance role in 2001 that led to a more
hands-on role on the business side of the trust. This was complemented by the
completion of a Master of Science Degree in Health Policy and Organisation
before he took on the challenge of becoming the Royal’s first General Manager of
Orthopaedics. As General Manager of the Surgical Directorate Alfonzo oversaw
the early hitting of the 18-week target, helped introduce the one matron per inpatient ward and continued to work clinical shifts to adopt a ‘hands on’ approach.
Having kept all of his nursing qualifications up to date Fonz, as his colleagues
know him, took over the role of Chief Nurse on 1 April 2009. He continues to
adopt that ‘hands’ on approach to help implement the high standards that will see
the nursing team continue to deliver high-class care.
Corporate Secretary: Terry Alty
Terry Alty, previously the NHS trust's executive director of personnel and hospital
services, was appointed in December 1993. He joined the NHS in 1984, after
working in local government and education. He held posts at Trent Regional
Health Authority in public health and policy development and at North Derbyshire
Health Authority in business planning, commissioning and contract management.
He joined Chesterfield Royal Hospital as contracts manager in April 1993.
As corporate secretary since 2004, he is responsible for human resource
strategy, and for employment and corporate governance.
Director of Finance and Contracting: Paul Briddock BA(Hons), ACA
Paul Briddock joined the trust in March 2003. He is a chartered accountant,
having trained with Coopers and Lybrand, where he worked between 1990 and
1994, qualifying as an accountant in 1993.
Paul began his career in the NHS in 1994, joining Sheffield Children's Hospital
covering a number of posts, most latterly as their Director of Finance from 1999
to 2003.
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At Chesterfield Royal Hospital Paul is responsible for the financial management
of the trust, and leads contract negotiations with commissioners and capital
planning for the organisation.
Paul is also a visiting teaching fellow in the Faculty of Health and Wellbeing at
Sheffield Hallam University. He also sits on a number of national finance groups
including being chair of the HFMA Foundation Trust Technical Finance Group.
Medical Director: Dr Ian Gell M.B., Ch.B., FRCA
Appointed 1 October 2009
Ian Gell is an anaesthetist appointed to a consultant post at Chesterfield in 1987.
He has a long standing interest in management and the development of the
Health Service having served on both local and Regional committees prior to
assuming the role of Clinical Director to Critical Care in 1995.
Appointed as Medical Director in summer 2009 Ian, together with the Chief
Nurse, is also the co-director of the Clinical Standards and Governance
Directorate. The directorate is responsible for research, education, workforce
planning and clinical governance agendas across the organisation. As Medical
Director he is professionally accountable for the whole medical workforce and will
be the Responsible Officer for the organisation with the advent of revalidation for
doctors.
Born in Nottingham and raised and educated in Lincolnshire before entering
Leeds University Medical School in 1972, Ian held training posts in various
hospitals in the UK, including Harrogate, Bristol, Bath and Sheffield and had six
months experience of working in a foreign health service in Vesteras, Sweden,
prior to be appointed Consultant Anaesthetist in Chesterfield.
Register of Directors’ Interests
The trust holds a register listing any interests declared by members of the board
of directors. They must disclose details of company directorships or other
positions held, particularly if they involve companies or organisations likely to do
business, or possibly seeking to do business with the trust. The public can
access the register at: www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk or by making a request in
writing to:
The corporate secretary
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Calow
Chesterfield
S44 5BL
or by e-mailing: communications@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Contact with the Board
Information to contact directors of the board can be found through the trust’s
Freedom of Information Act publication scheme. All directors can also be
contacted at communications@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
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COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS
Composition, Roles and Responsibilities
Every NHS foundation trust is accountable to its local population and staff who
have registered for membership. All trusts are required to have either a board or
council of governors.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has a council to which 29
members are elected or appointed as governors:
17 public governors

Elected

From 5 boroughs/districts.

4 staff governors

Elected

1 from medical and dental;
1 from nursing and midwifery;
1 from allied health professionals,
pharmacists and scientists; and
1 from all other staff groups.

8 partner governors

Appointed

1 from Primary Care Trust;
3 from local authorities;
2 from education sector (inc 1 vacancy); and
2 from voluntary sector

The council of governors is chaired by the trust’s chairman, Richard Gregory.
The deputy chairman of the council of governors and lead governor for the trust is
Sheila Smith, Public Governor.
The council of governors’ prime role is to represent the interests and views of
trust members, the local community and other stakeholders in the stewardship of
the trust. It has a right to be consulted on the trust’s strategies and plans and any
matter of significance affecting the trust or the services it provides.
The council of governors’ roles and responsibilities are outlined in law and are
detailed in the trust’s constitution. The governors have a number of important
responsibilities to perform and are expected to act in the best interests of the
trust. The council of governors would be expected to inform Monitor if it believed
that the trust was at risk of breaching its terms of authorisation.
The council of governors is specifically responsible for the:





Appointment and removal of the chairman and other non-executive directors;
Approval of the appointment of the chief executive;
Appointment and removal of the trust’s external auditor; and
Receipt of the annual report and accounts.

Link with Board of Directors
The council of governors holds the board of directors to account for the
performance of the trust. This increases the level of local accountability in public
services.
The council of governors is required to advise the board of directors regarding
future plans and strategies and the monitoring of performance against the trust’s
strategic direction.
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By working in partnership with the board of directors, via receipt of significant
project information and via representation on specific groups and committees, the
views of governors are taken into consideration in board of directors’ discussions
and decision-making.
To facilitate the board of directors’ understanding of the views of governors and
members, an oral update is provided by the chairman and the minutes of the
council of governor meetings are provided to the board of directors, directors are
invited to attend council of governors meetings and a joint meeting of the council
of governors and board of directors is held twice yearly.
Election of Governors 2009 to 2010
Elections to the trust’s council of governors were held as follows:
Public Constituencies – November 2009
This year, because of staggered appointments put in place when the trust was
granted foundation trust authorisation (1 January 2005), the following public
governor seats fell vacant:




Three seats for the Chesterfield constituency;
Two seats for the North East Derbyshire constituency; and
One seat for the Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley constituency.

Staff Constituencies – January 2010
Elections were held for a staff governor to represent the following constituency:


One seat for the allied health professionals, scientists and pharmacists.

Election Turnout Rates
The trust has always had good interest in, and a fair turnout for elections - and for
2009/10 rates were as follows:
Public Governor Elections:
Constituency

Number of
seats

Number of
candidates

% Turnout at
poll

Chesterfield

3

13

30.4%

Derbyshire Dales and
North Amber Valley

1

5

31.4%

North East Derbyshire

2

13

31.0%

The new governors took up their seats on the council on 1 January 2010. Four of
the six seats went to existing public governors who had opted to stand for reelection. This illustrates the membership’s support for the work the council is
undertaking on their behalf.
All appointments were made for a three-year term ending on 31 December 2012.
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Staff Elections:
In January 2010, the trust sought nominations for a vacant seat in the allied
health professionals, scientists and pharmacists constituency.
The deadline for nominations was noon on Tuesday 19 January 2010. The
constituency was not contested and the current staff governor for this
constituency was elected unopposed.
Constituency

Number
seats

Allied health
professionals, scientists
and pharmacists

1

of Number
of % Turnout
candidates
poll
1

at

Uncontested
election

This appointment was made for a three-year term ending on 31 January 2013.
Board Assurance
Public Governor Elections 2009
The board of directors confirms that elections were held in accordance with the
rules stated within the trust’s constitution. This is verified in the election report of
8 December 2009 as follows:
‘Electoral Reform Services can confirm that, as far as reasonably practicable,
every person whose name appeared on the electoral roll supplied to us for the
purpose of the ballot:a) was sent the details of the ballot; and
b) if they chose to participate in the ballot, had their vote fairly and accurately
recorded.
The elections were conducted in accordance with the rules and constitutional
arrangements as set out previously by the trust, and ERS is satisfied that these
were in accordance with accepted good electoral practice.’
Yours sincerely

Tom Colling
Returning Officer
On behalf of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
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Staff Governor Elections 2010
The board of directors confirms that elections were held in accordance with the
rules stated within the trust’s constitution. This is verified in the uncontested
election report of 22 January 2010, as follows:
‘The deadline for nominations for the above election was noon on Tuesday 19
January 2010. The following constituency will not be contested.
Staff: Allied Health Professionals, pharmacists and scientists (one seat)
Michael Peter Edwards is elected unopposed
There are no contested elections at this time.’
Yours sincerely

Tom Colling
Returning Officer
On behalf of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Promoting Elections
The trust continued to work to promote its annual elections and to encourage
greater interest and turnout. During the year it:




Worked with Electoral Reform Services (the trust’s independent scrutineers)
to adopt fair electoral processes that encourage participation of all active
members;
Worked with local media and other organisations (such as local councils) to
feature elections and the public governor role in newspaper, magazine and
radio media; and
Ensured all members were fully informed about elections and had the
opportunity to become a governor.

Following these elections there have been some changes to the membership of
the council of governors. These are included in the tables below.
Our Governors
Public Governors
There are five constituencies represented by 17 elected public governors. Brief
descriptions of the public constituency can be found in the Membership section of
this report. In the 2009 elections four public governors were re-elected and two
new public governors were appointed to vacant seats in the Bolsover and
Chesterfield constituencies.
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Vote
Appointed
held
from
Bolsover constituency – 3 seats
Governor

Term

Term of office
ends/ ended

Barbara Passey

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

John Jeffrey

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

31 Dec 2011

Barry Whittleston

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

31 Dec 2011

(2nd term)

Chesterfield constituency – 7 seats
31 Dec 2009

Mick Portman

2006

1 Jan 2007

3 years

Dr Chris Day

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

Sheila Smith

2007

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

31 Dec 2011

2008

1 Jan 2009

3 years

31 Dec 2011

(2nd term)

(2nd term)

Janet Portman
(2nd term)

Dominic Frazer

Re-election not sought

Aileen
Dawson2009
Pilling (2nd term)
Mererid Edwards
2009
nd

1 Jan 2010

3 years

31 Dec 2012

1 Jan 2010

3 years

31 Dec 2012

Kate Caulfield

1 Jan 2010

3 years

31 Dec 2012

3 years

31 Dec 2010

20 Mar 2008

3 years

30 Apr 2009

John Kirby (replaced 2009

22 Jul 2009

3 years

21 Jul 2012

Bernard Everett

2009

1 Jan 2010

3 years

31 Dec 2012

Joyce Newton

2009

1 Jan 2010

3 years

31 Dec 2012

(3

term)

2009

North East Derbyshire constituency – 4 seats
Barry Jex
2007
1 Jan 2008
(2nd term)

Carol Compton
(ill health April 2009)
gave rise to vacancy

2008

Carol Compton)

(2nd term)
(2nd term)

Derbyshire Dales and North Amber Valley constituency – 2 seats
31 Dec 2009
Peter Woolhouse
2006
1 Jan 2007
3 years

Re-election not sought

Pamela Wildgoose 2007
nd

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

Brenda Slavin

1 Jan 2010

3 years

31 Dec 2012

High Peak constituency – 1 seat
Pauline
Fisher 2007
1 Jan 2008
nd

3 years

31 Dec 2010

(2

(2

term)

2009

term)
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Staff Governors
There are four staff classes in the staff constituency.
Governor

Vote held

Appointed
from

Medical and dental class- 1 seat
Dr Phil Rayner 2007
1 Jan 2008
nd
(2

term)

Term

Term of office
ends/ ended

3 years

31 Dec 2010

3 years

31 Mar 2012

Nursing and midwifery class – 1 seat
Conrad Foster

2009

1 Apr 2009

Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientist class – 1 seat
Michael Edwards 2010
1 Feb 2010
3 years
31 Jan 2013
(2nd term)

All other staff class – 1 seat
Philip Cousins
2007
(2nd term)

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

Partner Governors
There are eight appointed partner governor seats on the council of governors.
One vacancy exists for an Education governor, awaiting appointment. Details are
presented in the table below.
Governor

Vote held

Primary Care Trust – 1 seat
Helen Dillistone
(mat leave)
2007
Andy Layzell
(covering)

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends/ ended

1 Jan 2008

3 years

31 Dec 2010

Local Authority governors (appointments co-ordinated by Derbyshire Local
Government Association) – 3 seats
Councillor
2007
1 Jan 2008
3 years
31 Dec 2010
Carol Walker
(2nd term)

Councillor
Raymond Russell
Councillor
David Allen

2008

1 Oct 2008

3 years

30 Sep 2011

2009

1 Jan 2007

3 years

31 Dec 2012

(2nd term)

Education governors (appointed by universities of Sheffield and Derby) – 2
seats
Professor
Mike
2007
1 Jan 2008
3 years
31 Dec 2010
Wells
Seat
currently
Awaiting appointment
vacant
Voluntary sector governors (appointed by representatives of patient’s forum,
self-help forum, league of friends and NDVA (formerly North Derbyshire
voluntary action) – 2 seats
Joyce Cupitt
2007
1 Jan 2008
3 years
31 Dec 2010
(2nd term)

John Wardle

2007

1 Jan 2008
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3 years

31 Dec 2010

Attendance at the Council of Governors Meeting during the year April 2009
to March 2010
During the financial year ending 31 March 2010 the council of governors met nine
times to discuss and comment on a number of aspects of the functioning of the
trust.

Dave Allen, partner governor
Kate Caulfield, partner governor
Phil Cousins, staff governor
Joyce Cupitt, partner governor
Aileen Dawson-Pilling, public governor
Chris Day, public governor
Helen Dillistone, partner governor /
Andy Layzell (replacing)
Mererid Edwards, public governor
Michael Edwards, staff governor
Bernard Everett, public governor
Dominic Frazer, public governor
Pauline Fisher, public governor
Conrad Foster, staff governor
Barry Jex, public governor
John Jeffery, public governor
John Kirby
Joyce Newton, public governor
Barbara Passey, public governor
Janet Portman, public governor
Mick Portman, public governor
Philip Rayner, staff governor
Raymond Russell, partner governor
Brenda Slavin, public governor
Shelia Smith, public governor
Carol Walker, partner governor
John Wardle, partner governor
Michael Wells partner governor
Barry Whittleston, public governor
Pam Wildgoose, public governor
Peter Woolhouse, public governor

A

1

1

A

1

A

1

1
1
1
A

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
A

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
A
1
A
1
A
1
1
1

A
A
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
A
1
1
A
A
1
1
1

1
1
A
A
1
A

1
A
1
1
1
A

1
A
1
A
A
A

A
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
A
1
A
1
1

A
1
1
1
A
1
1
1
A
1
1
1
1
1
1
A

1
A
1
1
A
1
A
1
1
1
1
A
1
A
A
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
A
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
A

1
1
1
1
1
1
A

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
A
1
1
1

A
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1

1
A
1
1
A
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

A
1
1
1
1
A
1
1
1
1
A
1
1

1
A
1
1
A
1
A
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
A
1
A
1

Governor Expenses
Governors are not remunerated, but are entitled to claim expenses for costs
incurred while undertaking duties for the trust as a governor, (eg travel expenses
to attend the council of governors meeting). The total amount of expenses claim
during the year from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 by governors was £2,713.
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Total

03.03.10

20.01.10

16.12.09

04.11.09

30.09.09
Joint Mtg

02.09.09

01.07.09

19.05.09

22 April 09
Joint Mtg

A record is kept of the attendance at council of governor meetings. Below is the
table showing, which governors have attended during the year. During the year
the nominations committee reviews the attendance of governors at meetings on
behalf of the council of governors and takes appropriate action to address any
concerns.

5/9
2/2
9/9
9/9
9/9
7/9
0/0
5/9
4/9
9/9
8/9
5/9
6/9
8/9
9/9
8/9
6/6
8/9
5/9
8/9
3/7
7/9
4/9
2/2
9/9
8/9
8/9
6/9
8/9
9/9
5/9

Register of Governors’ Interests
The trust holds a register listing any interests declared by members of the council
of governors. Governors must disclose details of company directorships or other
positions held, particularly if they involve companies or organisations likely to do
business, or possibly seeking to do business with the trust.
The public can access the register at: www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk or by making
a request in writing to:
The corporate secretary
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Calow
Chesterfield S44 5BL
or by e-mailing: communications@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Other Key Committees
The committees listed below also play a key role in the running of the council of
governors.
Nominations Committee
The nominations committee was established in November 2006 to strengthen the
governance of the council of governors. The committee is a sub-committee of
the council of governors and has been authorised to undertake a number of key
tasks including:







Overseeing the recruitment of non-executive directors via an appointments
committee convened for the purpose;
Managing and reviewing the appraisals of the chairman, non-executive
directors and council of governors;
Consideration and review of governance policy issues and documentation;
Reviewing and making recommendations to the council of governors on the
annual uprating of the remuneration of the chairman and non-executive
directors;
Overseeing the periodic review of the remuneration packages for nonexecutive directors; and
Consideration and review of the position of the governors in respect of any
concerns relating to attendance, conduct or eligibility.

The nominations committee does not have decision-making powers, but does
make recommendations to the council of governors.
The composition of membership of the nominations committee is:
The chairman of the trust (chairman of the sub-committee);
Four public governors (including deputy chairman);
Two staff governors; and
Two partner governors.
Members of the committee other than the chairman are appointed for between
one and three years; following elections, nominations to the committee are reaffirmed as necessary.
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The council of governors held elections for membership of the sub committees
following the election held in December 2009 for the membership of the council of
governors. The governor elected to the nominations committee was Dr Brenda
Slavin who replaced Joyce Newton from 1 January 2010.
The committee meets a minimum of two times a year in private to complete its
delegated business and minutes are provided to the private session of the council
of governors for information.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009
and 31 March 2010 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Richard Gregory
Helen Dillistone (mat leave)
Andy Layzell (replaced HD)
Michael Edwards
Barry Jex
Joyce Newton
Phil Rayner
Brenda Slavin
Sheila Smith
Carol Walker
Pam Wildgoose

Chairman (Chair)
Partner Governor
Partner Governor
Staff Governor
Public Governor
Public Governor (to 31 Dec 09)
Staff Governor
Public Governor (from 1 Jan 10)
Public Governor (Deputy Chair)
Partner Governor
Public Governor

5/5
0/0
0/5
3/5
4/5
4/4
4/5
1/1
4/5
4/5
4/5

Work of the Committee During the Year to 31 March 2010
The committee has met five times during 2009/10 and has undertaken the
following pieces of work:
1) Terms of Reference


Advised the committee to approve the revised terms of reference.

2) Standing Orders - Council of Governors


Advised the committee to approve the revised standing orders for council of
governors.

3) Appointments



Considered and recommended the reappointment of the senior independent
director (SID).
Considered and recommended the reappointment of three non-executive
directors.

There were no new non-executive director appointments to the board of directors
between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010.
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4) Appraisal Systems



Reviewed the appraisal systems for the council of governors, chairman and
non-executive directors; and
During the year the committee oversaw the appraisal processes, reviewed a
number of reports and made recommendations to the council of governors.

4a) Chairman’s Appraisal




Managed the timetable and process for the appraisal;
Reviewed the results of the appraisal and agreed the report for presentation
to the council of governors; and
Oversaw the development of the action plan resulting from the appraisal.

4b) Non – Executive Directors



Managed the timetable and process for the appraisals; and
Reviewed the results of the appraisals and developed a summary report for
presentation to the council of governors.

4c) Council of Governors



Managed the timetable and process for the appraisal; and
Reviewed the results of the appraisal and development of the composite
report presented to the council of governors for review and approval;

5) Remuneration


Considered and made recommendations on the annual uprating of the
remuneration of the chairman and non-executive directors for the current and
future years.

6) Governor Attendance


Monitored the attendance and conduct of governors.

7) Constitution


Considered the updated constitution.

Patient and Public Involvement Committee (PPI Committee)
The PPI committee was established in November 2006 to strengthen the trust’s
PPI governance and to recognise the special role and responsibility of the council
of governors in representing the local community’s interests. The committee is a
sub-committee of the council of governors and its main role is to monitor the
trust’s performance in meeting patient and public involvement responsibilities.
Emphasis is placed on issues relating to the patients experience to ensure
services are of a high standard and patient centred.
The objective of the committee is to build a partnership between the trust,
patients and the public which is central to the modernisation of the health service.
Patient and public involvement contributes to:
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Strengthening accountability to local communities;
Developing local health services which genuinely respond to patients and
carers;
A sense of ownership and trust;
Monitoring the trust’s performance in meeting PPI responsibilities; and
Making recommendations to the trust’s PPI Review Group.

The function of the committee is to:







Be actively involved in the patient and public involvement agenda;
Review and influence the trust’s strategy and development plan, and be
consulted on changes and developments;
Ensure that the council of governors is updated on the PPI agenda including
feedback from patients and the public, sharing good practice and action plans
developed to improve local services;
Review reports and action plans and scrutinise these to ensure appropriate
action has been identified to support a patient centred approach;
Where required, represent the council of governors on related projects and
initiatives e.g. environment checks, patient meals, standards for better health
and staff education; and
Develop links with the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) and
complaints department.

The committee focuses key aspects of the patient’s experience, which include:








Nursing and clinical care;
Food;
Cleanliness;
The environment;
Complaints and feedback;
Site facilities e.g. access, car parking, signposting; and
All other aspects of customer service.

The PPI committee does not have decision-making powers, but does make
recommendations to the council of governors.
The composition of the membership of the PPI committee is:






Eight public governors (one public governor is chairman of the subcommittee);
Two voluntary sector governors;
One education governor (seat currently vacant);
One Primary Care Trust (PCT governor); and
A Non-Executive Director (usually chair of the clinical governance
committee).

The committee is also attended by:





Chief nurse;
Head of clinical governance (and/or clinical governance advisor);
Director of allied clinical and facilities services; and
Chairman.
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Members of the committee are appointed for between one and three years;
following elections, nominations to the committee are re-affirmed as necessary.
During 2009/10 the committee met four times in private to complete its business.
The minutes are provided to the open session of the council of governors for
information and discussion and the Chair of the PPI committee gives a verbal
report on work undertaken.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009
and 31 March 2010 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Chris Day
Joyce Cupitt
Helen Dillistone (mat leave)
Andy Layzell (replaced Helen
Dillistone)
Bernard Everett
Pauline Fisher
Barry Jex
Janet Portman
Sheila Smith
John Wardle
David Whitney
Barry Whittleston
Pam Wildgoose

Public Governor (Chair)
Partner Governor
Partner Governor
Partner Governor

4/4
4/4
0/4
0/4

Public Governor
Public Governor
Public Governor
Public Governor
Public Governor
Partner Governor
Non-Executive Director
Public Governor
Public Governor

4/4
2/4
4/4
3/4
3/4
4/4
2/4
3/4
4/4

Work of the Committee During the Year to 31 March 2010
As part of the committees work a number of priorities were identified to give
members direction and to support them in achieving their objectives. The
committee has taken part in a number of projects as follows:








Managed a regular programme of unannounced ward visits to talk to patients
about their experience of being in hospital;
Undertaken a regular programme of unannounced ward and department visits
to assess cleanliness. In addition, members of the committee joined trust
staff to undertake the PEAT inspection;
Reviewed the work being undertaken across the trust in relation to the safe
and timely administration of medicines at a ward level;
Submitted comments to the Care Quality Commission commentary on the
trust’s performance in line with the regulation requirements;
Continued to influence the trust’s capital programme including the ward
upgrade programme and changes to the production process for patient
meals;
Following last years access audit of toilet and bathrooms facilities within the
hospital, the committee has monitored the implementation of the action plan
developed as a result of this;
Supported the introduction of protected mealtimes and challenged the trust to
ensure patients receive appropriate nutritional support;
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Reviewed the facilities for patients waiting for hospital transport, which
resulted in the introduction of a Healthcare Assistant role to support patients
in this area;
Supported the trust’s decision to introduce a programme of nurse metrics
audits and ongoing patient experience questionnaires. In light of this the
committee reviewed its patient interview protocol to enable them to have a
more general discussion and produce a summary report highlighting positive
and negative findings. In addition, governors meet with a senior nurse
representative following their visits to give immediate feedback; and
Received and discussed reports on complaints and enquiries dealt with by the
Advice Centre.

Outreach Committee
The Role of the Outreach Committee
The outreach committee has been operating since 2007 and is a sub-committee
of the council of governors. With membership encompassing staff, partner and
public governors and supported by the trust’s communications team, the
committee acts for the council - reviewing, monitoring and supporting the
development of plans for membership recruitment, engagement and involvement.
The functions of the outreach committee are:




To review and analyse the trust’s membership – with governors supporting
membership recruitment, retention and development;
To engage with local forums, groups and organisations to actively promote
membership and the work of governors and the council; and
To develop and encourage two-way dialogue and involvement between the
council and its constituency members.

The outreach committee is key to membership engagement; and to developing
processes and methods that will enable public governors in particular to have
contact with their membership.
The membership of the outreach committee is voluntary and currently comprises:





Vice-chairman of the council (Chair);
Two other public governors;
One staff governor;
One partner governor.

The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009
and 31 March 2010 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Sheila Smith
Dave Allen
Phil Cousins
Bernard Everett
Joyce Newton

Public Governor (Chair)
Partner Governor
Staff Governor
Public Governor
Public Governor

6/6
4/6
1/6
5/6
5/6
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Outreach Events (April 2009 – March 2010)
The committee has concentrated on a key number of ways of putting members in
touch with governors. This has included:








Publishing a membership magazine – which is now produced through the
outreach committee, with governors determining articles and features;
Attending a Chesterfield Market Place community event – in conjunction with
the local Derbyshire Times newspaper;
Hosting governor promotions in local libraries across constituency areas;
Hosting a governor stand at a membership and family fun day at the hospital
to mark the 25th anniversary. Around 3000 members came along on the day
and new members were recruited;
A regular programme of ‘Ambush’ days in the hospital’s main entrance to
register new members and raise awareness of the work of the council and a
point of contact for governors to meet members;
Participation in the trust’s Annual General Meeting event – meeting and
greeting members and speaking about the council’s role; and
Advertising council meetings, the AGM and elections through the local
media.

The committee has also been instrumental in establishing best practice meetings
– joining governors and other representatives from Sherwood Forest Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust and Derby Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust to discuss
ideas and approaches to membership and membership engagement. In 2010
participation has been widened to include governors from the nominations
committee and staff governors. The committee will develop this work throughout
2010/11 – with plans already in place for a membership evening focussing on
choices in childbirth.
It is acknowledged that governor and membership engagement is one of the
most challenging areas of foundation trust status. Effective accountability within
the foundation trust model requires that membership recruitment and activity be
adequately supported and funded, with a programme of regular member and
public events at which governors (public governors in particular) attend and
participate. The outreach committee has continually worked for this throughout
the last 12 months.
Corporate Citizenship Committee (CCC)
The corporate citizenship committee was established in September 2007 to
support the trust in its contribution to the wider health and sustainability of the
local population. The committee is a sub-committee of both the board of
directors and the council of governors and is tasked with examining the trust
strategy on:







Carbon management;
Sustainable local food;
Involvement of and with local business;
Green travel plans;
Waste management; and
Procurement.
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The corporate citizenship committee does not have decision-making powers, but
does make recommendations to the board of directors and to the council of
governors.
The membership of the corporate citizenship includes representation from:
The chairman of the trust (chairman of the sub-committee)
Non-executive directors
Executive directors
Council of governors
Staff members
The committee aims to meet on a quarterly basis and minutes from meetings are
provided to the board of directors and to the open session of the council of
governors for information.
The attendance of committee members at meetings held between 1 April 2009
and 31 March 2010 was:
Name

Position

Meetings
Attended

Richard Gregory
Steve Bacon
Aileen Dawson-Pilling
Bernard Everett
Andrew Jones

Chairman (Chair)
Energy Manager
Public Governor
Public Governor
Director of Allied Clinical and
Facilities Services
Non-Executive Director
Health and Safety Advisor
Head of Estates and Capital
Schemes
Public Governor
Public Governor

2/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3

Pam Liversidge
Sally Ludditt (nee Gilmour)
Chris Tann
Pam Wildgoose
Peter Woolhouse

3/3
2/3
3/3
3/3
3/3

Work of the Committee During the Year to 31 March 2010
The committee has met twice during 2009/10 and has undertaken work to
become actively engaged in the whole of the corporate citizenship agenda.
This has included:











Registration with the carbon reduction commitment energy efficiency
scheme;
Monitoring of action plan for carbon reduction;
Self assessment against national ‘good citizenship tool’;
Completion of the replacement of the trust’s boilers;
Support for the new three ward development scheme in line with the national
NHS building environment target and including the use of solar panels;
Feasibility study for on-site wind turbine;
Improved waste recycling facilities;
Investment in patient feeding;
Expansion of Café@theRoyal facilities;
Opening of Coffee@theRoyal in February 2010;
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Support for the trust’s travel plan;
Foot and cycle path to connect the site into Wetlands Lane;
Improvement of site footpaths and investigation into the provision of
additional site cycle paths;
Provision of cycle stand facilities;
Database for publicity of the trust’s car share scheme;
Increased engagement with local forums; and
Expansion of the trust’s approved contractor list to include an increased
number of local businesses.

Governor Attendance at Other Groups
Governor representation is provided on a number of other trust groups including:
Permanent groups:
Research Strategy Group
The aims of the trust’s research strategy group are:




To develop and monitor a research strategy for the trust;
To develop strategies that promote high quality research that will impact
upon patient care and /or service provision; and
To advise and influence trust policy and practice that is necessary to
establish a suitable infrastructure for research & development within the
trust.

STARS - Staff Recognition Awards
A panel compromising of non-executive directors, executive directors, staff, JCC
committee members, governors has been established to shortlist individual
members of staff and teams which have been nominated for a recognition award.
The award scheme is run on an annual basis.
Special Groups:
Representation on other trust groups, convened to agree and project manage
capital and service developments, is always sought. During 2009/10, the
relevant groups were:
Birth Centre
The project board was responsible for overseeing the delivery of the capital
scheme to develop the trust’s central delivery suite – opened September 2009.
Improving Quality through Capacity
The project board is responsible for overseeing the delivery of the capital scheme
to develop 3 new wards on site by December 2010.
Catering
This team was created to assist in the development of the business case for the
long term future of the trust’s patient meals service.
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MEMBERSHIP
Membership Overview 2009 to 2010
Membership
The trust has only two membership constituencies – one each for the community
and its staff. It does not host a patient constituency.
Our Community Membership – Overall Size and Movements 2009 to 2010
Last year
At year start (1 April 2009)
New members
Members leaving
Affiliated members
At year-end (31 March
2010)

15,376
530
817
203
15,089

Estimated for next
year
15,089
1,000
250
200
16,039

* People who have opted to register for membership, although they live just
outside our constitutional catchment area and therefore they do not have voting
rights.
At 1 April 2009, the trust had a community membership base of 15,376. Over the
following 12 months 530 new members joined. However, overall membership
has decreased slightly, with 15,089 local people registered members by the year
end 31 March 2010 (15,292 inclusive of affiliates).
The main reason for this decline is down to a thorough data cleanse that
removed an unprecedented 817 members from the community database. The
decision to undertake a high level cleanse was brought about after a membership
postal exercise resulted in a large number of returned mailings - noted as ‘gone
aways’ or ‘no longer living at this address’.
Although the drop in membership is disappointing, it is wise to regularly
undertake cleansing on this scale. First and foremost it ensures the families of
deceased members do not receive unwanted membership correspondence. It
also provides assurance that communication services provided to members are
cost effective – and target genuine, interested members who want to play an
integral role in the trust’s future development. As the financial climate becomes a
greater challenge over the next few years it is likely that these sorts of efficiencies
are a sensible approach.
The overall growth for membership during 2009/10 was therefore in fact a
‘negative growth’ of 287 members.
Our Constituencies
The trust’s public constituency is defined as ‘those people living in specific wards
of local authorities within the Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust area’. It
represents a catchment population of over 400,000 – with more than 335,000
people eligible for foundation trust membership.
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Residents of the following local government administrative areas currently qualify
for membership of the NHS foundation trust:
Chesterfield Borough (all wards)
Bolsover District (all wards)
North-East Derbyshire District (all wards)
Derbyshire Dales District and Amber Valley Borough District (the wards of
Alfreton, Alport, Belper Central, Belper East, Belper North, Belper South,
Bakewell, Bradwell, Calver, Chatsworth, Codnor and Waingroves, Crich, Darley
Dale, Hartington and Taddington, Hathersage and Eyam, Heage and Ambergate,
Ironville and Riddings, Lathkill and Bradford, Litton and Longstone, Masson,
Matlock All Saints, Matlock St Giles, Ripley, Ripley and Marehay, Somercotes,
Stanton, Swanwick, Tideswell, Wingfield, Winster and South Darley
High Peak Borough (the wards of Barms, Blackbrook, Burbage, Buxton Central,
Chapel East, Chapel West, Corbar, Cote Heath, Hayfield, Hope Valley,
Limestone Peak, New Mills East, New Mills West, Sett, Stone Bench, Temple
and Whaley Bridge)
Our catchment area (excludes the North Amber Valley):
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At the present time we also have 203 affiliated members. These are, in the main,
residents within the Derbyshire Dales, High Peak and Amber Valley Boroughs
who live in wards currently outside our present constitutional catchment area.
Co-Terminosity
In the north of the county, the PCT has co-terminosity with several local authority
boundaries:







Chesterfield Borough Council
North-East Derbyshire District Council
Bolsover District Council
High Peak Borough Council
Derbyshire Dales District Council
Amber Valley Borough Council

Around 95% of the patients treated at Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust as in-patients, day cases and outpatients live in these areas.
However residents in some council wards may also look to some other acute
providers for their routine care as they border our catchment:




North-East Derbyshire and Bolsover District (other providers in Sheffield,
Worksop and Mansfield)
Derbyshire Dales and Amber Valley (other providers in Southern Derbyshire
and Mansfield)
High Peak (other providers in Stockport, Manchester and Macclesfield)

Eligible Population Information and Community Membership Make-up (2)
To create a representative membership, information about the age, ethnicity and
gender of the population within the foundation trust is required – to enable
recruitment campaigns to target areas where membership is less prevalent. The
following sections provide a snapshot of Derbyshire and are used to help
determine where membership may need strengthening. Whilst Chesterfield Royal
Hospital serves the area to the north of Derbyshire in the main, this complete
detail (i.e. Derbyshire) is taken into account when reviewing membership:
Derbyshire (excluding the city of Derby – population 233,750) has a population of
747,520 (1). This is forecast to increase to around 828,000 by 2028. Each of the
county’s nine main towns (not all in the foundation trust’s catchment area) has
populations of over 20,000 (Belper, Buxton, Chesterfield, Dronfield, Glossop,
Ilkeston, Long Eaton, Ripley and Swadlincote), with the largest concentration of
population in the Chesterfield area. In contrast, some 16% of Derbyshire’s
population live in sparsely populated rural areas.
A high proportion of Derbyshire’s population (95.5% in 2001) was born in
England indicating fairly static populations when compared to the populations in
the East Midlands (91%) and England (87%). Across Derbyshire, the number of
people from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities is relatively small. At
the time of the last census in 2001, less than 2.8% of the population (20,600
people) were from Black and Minority Ethnic communities, the remaining
population describing themselves as White British.
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Of these 20,600 people, around 3,400 were black or mixed race (black and
white); around 5,000 were Asian or Asian mixed race; 3,800 were Irish; 6,000
people came from other white communities; 1,100 were Chinese; and 1,200 were
from other communities.
The age profile of BME communities in Derbyshire shows that there are more
under 16s and less people of retirement age than the general and White British
population. There are also variations across different BME communities with
those describing themselves as Mixed Race having significantly higher rates of
under 16s and lower rates of people of working and retirement age than the
combined BME rates.
Breakdown of the Population in Derbyshire by Age and Ethnicity:

All people
BME
White British
White Other
Mixed Race
Asian
Black
Chinese or other ethnic group

Under 16 %

Working age
%

Retirement
age %

19.6
22.5
19.6
10.5
57.5
22.6
13.0
21.6

63.6
64.2
63.6
67.1
39.5
72.1
76.1
74.1

16.7
13.3
16.8
22.4
3.0
5.3
10.9
3.8

In more recent years, the ethnic profile of communities in Derbyshire has
changed. In 2005, the estimate for the total number of non-white British people
was 32,400, an increase of 57% from 2001. This increases the percentage of
Black and Minority Ethnic communities in Derbyshire to 4.3%. Even with this
increase, the numbers remain small in comparison to the East Midlands and
England where 10.9% and 15.2% of the population are from Black and Minority
Ethnic communities respectively.
There are indications, for example, from data on allocation of National Insurance
numbers that the number of people from Eastern Europe who have come to work
and live in Derbyshire is increasing.
BME Population Estimates by District:
District

Number

% of district population

Amber Valley
Bolsover
Chesterfield
Derbyshire Dales
Erewash
High Peak
North East Derbyshire
South Derbyshire

4300
2300
4400
2700
5300
4500
3300
5600

3.6
3.1
4.4
3.9
4.8
4.9
3.4
6.3

(1) Source: Registrar General's District mid-Year Estimates 2005, Office for
National Statistics.
(2) Source: Derbyshire County Council Race Equality Scheme 2008–2010.

82

Eligible Population and Community Membership Breakdown (31 March 2010)

69,359
98,884
94,589

Number
eligible for
membership
(aged 16 years
and over)
55,681
79,863
77,049

Number of
members as
a percentage
of eligible
population
3.45%
5.73%
2.30%

727
4,130

57,029
96,901

45,577
79,030

1.27%
4.26%

15,089

416,762

337,200

3.62%

Constituency

Total
number
of
members

Total
population of
constituency

Bolsover
Chesterfield
Derbyshire Dales &
North Amber Valley
High Peak
North-East
Derbyshire
Totals

2,391
5,667
2,174

*Source: Registrar General’s Mid-Year Estimates 2005, Office of National
statistics (ONS)
**Figures only include Derbyshire Dales, as a breakdown to account for the North
of Amber Valley only – ie those who are eligible for community membership of
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust are not available.
Constituency Membership Breakdown by Council Ward
To help with membership growth and to enable under-represented areas to be
targeted in recruitment campaigns, the trust is able to access membership down
to council ward level. The following illustrates membership by eligible council
ward:
Bolsover Constituency
Sub catchment

Chesterfield Constituency
Members

Barlborough
Blackwell
Bolsover North West
Bolsover South
Bolsover West
Clowne North
Clowne South
Elmton-with-Creswell
Pinxton
Pleasley
Scarcliffe

157
133
209
200
171
193
196
142
45
133
121

Shirebrook East
Shirebrook Langwith
Shirebrook North West
Shirebrook South East
Shirebrook South West
South Normanton East
South Normanton West
Tibshelf
Whitwell

33
62
60
47
73
58
118
155
85

TOTAL FOR Bolsover

2391

Sub catchment
Barrow Hill and New
Whittington
Brimington North
Brimington South
Brockwell
Dunston
Hasland
Hollingwood and Inkersall
Holmebrook
Linacre
Loundsley Green
Lowgates and Woodthorpe
Middlecroft and
Poolsbrook
Moor
Old Whittington
Rother
St Helen's
St Leonard's
Walton
West

Members

TOTAL FOR Chesterfield

5667
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274
186
351
368
340
354
365
201
238
220
234
217
266
198
338
222
401
446
448

Derbyshire Dales and North
Amber Valley Constituency

North East Derbyshire
Constituency

Sub catchment
Alfreton
Alport
Bakewell
Belper Central
Belper East
Belper North
Belper South
Bradwell
Calver
Chatsworth
Crich
Darley Dale
Hartington and
Taddington
Hathersage and Eyam
Heage and Ambergate
Ironville and Riddings
Lathkill and Bradford
Litton and Longstone
Masson

Members
111
18
174
9
5
4
3
81
124
50
48
220

Sub catchment
Ashover
Barlow and Holmesfield
Brampton and Walton
Clay Cross North
Clay Cross South
Coal Aston
Dronfield North
Dronfield South
Dronfield Woodhouse
Eckington North
Eckington South
Gosforth Valley

Members
156
53
202
314
194
154
138
212
129
109
106
178

44
161
40
50
56
45
76

Grassmoor
Holmewood and Heath
Killamarsh East
Killamarsh West
North Wingfield Central
Pilsley and Morton
Renishaw
Ridgeway and Marsh
Lane
Shirland
Sutton
Tupton
Unstone
Wingerworth

183
135
88
124
273
244
73

Matlock All Saints
Matlock St Giles
Ripley
Ripley and Marehay
Somercotes
Stanton
Swanwick
Tideswell
Wingfield
Winster and South
Darley
Wirksworth
TOTAL FOR Derbyshire
Dales and North Amber
Valley

Sub catchment
Barms
Blackbrook
Burbage
Buxton Central
Chapel East
Chapel West
Corbar
Cote Heath
Hayfield
Hope Valley

173
211
60
44
51
69
48
64
36

48
162
263
160
57
375

76
23
2174

TOTAL FOR North East
Derbyshire

High Peak Constituency
Members Sub catchment
27
Limestone Peak
26
New Mills East
13
New Mills West
53
Sett
29
Stone Bench
37
Temple
51
Whaley Bridge
48
27
TOTAL FOR High
136
Peak

4130

Members
26
49
31
20
49
37
68

727
15089

TOTAL FOR ALL CATCHMENTS
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Age Report
Derbyshire has an older age structure than England with 16.7% of the population
being in the 65+ age group. There are fewer children in the 0-15 age group
(19.6%) compared to the national average (20.2%).
The proportion of population of working age is only slightly lower in Derbyshire
(63.6%) than in England as a whole (63.9%).
The age structure of Derbyshire’s ethnic minority population is younger with just
less than one quarter (22.5%) under 15 years old and 64.2% of working age.
Source: Derbyshire County Council Race Equality Scheme 2008–2010
Our Community Membership by Age at 31 March 2010
Dales/ North High
Age
Bolsover Chesterfield Amber Valley Peak
23
47
27
7
16-22
159
392
92
48
23-35
494
1,142
366
121
36-50
739
1,619
631
244
51-65
637
1,464
675
205
66-80
177
470
245
66
81+
533
138
36
Unknown 162
2,391
5,667
2,174
727
Total

North-East
Derbyshire
26
246
717
1,257
1,197
383
304
4,130

Total public
membership
130
937
2,840
4,490
4,178
1,341
1,173
15,089

* Excluding 203 affiliated members
Age Representation at 31 March 2010
Age

Number of members

Age 16-22
Age 23-35
Age 36 to 50
Age 51 to 65
Age 66 to 80
Age 80+
Age not stated
Total

130
937
2,840
4,490
4,178
1,341
1,173
15,089

* Excluding 203 affiliated members
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Representing % of
current membership
0.86%
6.21%
18.82%
29.76%
27.69%
8.89%
7.77%
100.00%

Eligible Population by Age in Each Class of the Constituency*
Population
age groups
(ONS)

Eligible in
Bolsover

Eligible in
Chesterfiel
d

Eligible in
Derbyshire
Dales/North
Amber Valley**

Eligible
in High
Peak

Eligible in
North-East
Derbyshir
e

15-34
35-49
50-64
65-79
80+
Total
population of
constituency
eligible for
membership
Total
population of
constituency

16076
14871
12870
8919
2945
55,681

22649
21426
18276
12907
4605
79,863

19560
20414
19902
12425
4748
77,049

11945
12963
11146
6883
2640
45,577

20412
21049
20263
13122
4184
79,030

69,359

98,884

94,589

57,029

96,901

*Source: Registrar General’s Mid-Year Estimates 2005, Office of National
Statistics (ONS)
**Figures only include Derbyshire Dales as a breakdown to account for the North
of Amber Valley only – ie those who are eligible for community membership of
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not available.
Ethnicity Report
Ethnicity – Membership Breakdown at 31 March 2010

Ethnicity
Asian
Black
Mixed
Other
White
Unknown
Totals

Bolsover
11
6
1
1
2,225
147
2,391

Chesterfield
48
32
11
2
4,958
616
5,667

Dales/ North High
Amber Valley Peak
11
0
2
1
1
1
0
0
1,996
701
164
24
2,174
727

North-East
Derbyshire
14
6
6
3
3,749
352
4,130

Totals
84
47
20
6
13,629
1,303
15,089

North-East
Derbyshire
2,211
1,893
26
4,130

Total public
membership
8,168
6,813
108
15,089

* Excluding 203 affiliated members
Gender report
Gender Breakdown by Constituency at 31 March 2010

Gender

Bolsover
1,267
Female
1,112
Male
Not stated 12
2,391
Total

Chesterfield
3,060
2,556
51
5,667

Dales/ North High
Amber Valley Peak
1,227
403
931
321
16
3
2,174
727
86

* Excluding 203 affiliated members
Gender Breakdown by Percentage at 31 March 2010
Gender
Female
Male
Not stated
Total

Total membership
8,168
6,813
108
15,089

Gender percentage
54.13%
45.15%
0.72%
100.00%

* Excluding 203 affiliated members
Socio-Economic Report
Using 2001 census information for all constituency classes we have an overall
picture of each constituency for targets for membership.
We have also analysed our membership using the consumer classifications
ACORN.*
ACORN is a geo-demographic tool used to identify and understand the UK
population and the demand for products and services. It is often used to make
informed decisions on where direct marketing campaigns will be most effective.
ACORN classifies all 1.9 million UK postcodes, which have been described using
over 125 demographic statistics and 287 lifestyle variables within England,
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland.
From this classification we can see that our membership has limited social grade
groupings.
Socio-Economic Groupings at 31 March 2010
This table defines our membership breakdown in socio-economic groupings:
Grouping

Number of members

Potential membership
pool (ACORN
statistics)

ABC1
C2
D
E
Unclassifiable
Total

7,301
5,528
613
1,616
31
15,089

154,417
59,085
64,911
58,891
0
337,304

* Excluding 203 affiliated members
Note: The trust’s external membership management company Capita provided
the socio economic profile at 5.4.1 which was mapped from ACORN to National
Readership Survey (NRS) gradings (A, B, C1, C2, D and E).
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Staff Membership
Staff Membership Size and Movements 2009 to 2010

At year start (1 April 2009)
New members
Members leaving
Data corrections*
At year-end (31 March 2010)

Last year
3469
631
528
150
3422

Estimated for next year
3422
550
500
150
3322

The staff membership database is compiled from the pay-roll system and
database cleansing is necessary to remove duplicates (staff with two contracts
for example); any listed individuals not paid by the trust but on the pay roll system
(for example governors who may claim expenses etc) and other anomalies.
The staff constituency comprises:



Permanent members of staff; and
Temporary members of staff who have been employed in any capacity by the
organisation for a minimum continuous period of one year.

For directly employed staff membership runs on an opt-out basis – ie. all
qualifying staff are automatically members unless they seek to opt out. All
permanent contract holders are eligible for membership from the date they take
up their employment.
The staff constituency is broken down into four classes:





Medical and dental staff
Nursing and midwifery staff
Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientists
All other staff

By sub-dividing the staff constituency in this way, representation from each major
staff grouping is possible.
Breakdown of Staff Membership within Constituencies:
Constituency

Medical and dental
Nursing and midwifery
Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientists
All other staff
Total

Number of
members
(at 31 March 2010)
340
1424
271
1387
3422

Class
Medical and dental
Nursing and midwifery
Allied health professionals, pharmacists and scientists
All other staff
Total

Membership %
10.0
42.0
8.0
40.0
100%
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Developing a Representative Membership
Current Position
The prime source for recruiting members is, and remains, those people who have
an existing relationship with the Royal Hospital. This could be as past and
present patients or carers, or those who are potential users of the service as
residents of North Derbyshire (or the trust’s defined catchment area).
The trust will continue to manage its membership effectively, with cleansing and
review exercises undertaken regularly (six to eight times per year). This will
ensure that as far as possible inappropriate contacts are not made.
Community Membership
Community membership has fallen more than was predicted this year. Within its
catchment area, 337,200 local people are eligible for membership. At 31 March
2010, 15,089 members had registered with the foundation trust – 3.62% of the
eligible population. This is a drop of 0.98% (at 31 March 2009, 4.6% of the
eligible population were registered as members).
The focus for this year will therefore need to look at numbers – to pull back to at
least the March 2009 position. The trust will also need to use the analysis tables
in this membership report (5.1.5 to 5.4.1) and look at these broad areas where
members remain under represented:






Ages 16-22
Ages 23-35
Black and ethnic minority groups
Specific council ward/postcode areas of all five constituencies
Socio-economic groups D and E (in conjunction with postcodes)

Membership recruitment will need to be financially realistic however, as the trust
looks to make cost efficiencies across the organisation. Consideration will have
to be given to actively recruiting within the patient population of the hospital –
which has not been a chosen recruitment method previously. The trust has
always been mindful that membership should be wholly voluntary – rather than a
‘must do’ as a patient. The council of governors, through the outreach
committee, will need to give recruitment of this nature careful consideration.
Staff Membership
The trust’s aim is to have 90% of eligible employees registered as members.
Since foundation status was granted in 2005, staff membership has varied
between 92% and 99%. Currently membership stands at round the 99% mark,
with no opt outs recorded during 2009/10. The trust does not expect the position
to change over the financial year 2010/11.
Representative Recruitment Plans
The challenge to ensure membership is fully representative of the population
continues. Encouraging younger residents and BME community members to
register for membership is difficult and the trust has made limited progress – with
growth in these membership categories steady, but nevertheless slow. 16-22
year olds are particularly difficult to attract.
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The trust continues to work with schools and colleges to promote membership to
16-19 year olds in education. Every school in the trust’s catchment area receives
leaflets and posters, encouraging young people aged 16-19 to register for
membership. Schools are also invited to have a visit from governors, so they can
learn more about the foundation trust, its role in the community and how it is
accountable to local people. The trust also contributes to a monthly School
Matters magazine, which is distributed to all schools across Derbyshire – to raise
awareness of membership and encourage youngsters to sign up. The trust’s 1619 membership has seen a small increase over the last financial year as a result.
The trust’s outreach committee will consider a constitutional change later in the
year – which may offer 14-16 year old the opportunity to become junior members,
so they at least can contribute ideas and views to the organisation. This age
group has an interest in health through various school curriculum topics.
As the trust continues to develop and patient choice becomes increasingly
exercised, the trust may need to consider widening its membership catchment
area. Affiliate members from Amber Valley, Derbyshire Dales and Southern
Derbyshire council wards are already opting to register (at 31 March 2010 there
were 203 affiliate members) but they currently have no voting rights. The trust
may need to consider if this is acceptable, when areas of the community are
showing an interest in the organisation.
Membership Recruitment Objectives
The trust continues to believe that membership should be ‘voluntary’ - to show
definite willing and interested participation. Our membership recruitment
objectives are:


To ensure all current and future staff working for the trust (including
contracted-out staff) are aware of staff membership, what it means for them
and to encourage them not to decline membership.



To strive to for the composition of community membership to reflect
diversity - geographically spread across our proposed catchment area and
reflecting age, gender, ethnicity and socio-economic groups.



To keep accurate and informative databases of members to meet regulatory
requirements and to provide a tool for membership development.



To define the right and responsibilities of membership to strengthen the
partnership between the trust and its members.



To recognise and use members as a valuable resource.



To provide targeted communications that offer timely, consistent and
regular messages about the trust and membership.



To use various methods to deliver the message about membership.



To set up a two-way feedback system, so staff and community members
have suitable channels to feedback their ideas and concerns, raise issues,
ask questions and find out more information.
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Engaging Our Membership
The trust now has 15,376 local people registered as members (including
affiliates) and a further 3,422 staff members. This is an audience of almost
20,000 people to seek views and opinions from. It is vital that both the trust and
governors are able to reach and interact with this large audience.
Responsibility for membership engagement falls to the trust’s communications
team, through the chief executive’s directorate. The team work closely with the
council of governor’s outreach committee.
Last year, members had an
opportunity to get involved with, or participate in around 20 different events,
consultations or measures.
This year, plans to keep members informed and involved include:


Continuing to produce a quarterly newsletter (with content for all issues
determined by the outreach committee).



Developing and expanding the membership discount scheme (members
of the foundation trust currently have access to discounts in local shops
and services).



Revising the internet membership section to make membership
registration more prominent.



Promoting membership and the role of governors within the trust - to
patients and visitors through promotional materials and ‘ambush’ days.



Running at least two membership evenings each year – where members
meet governors and hear about a topic or service.



Attending prominent local events, where appropriate, across North
Derbyshire.



Hosting regular governor events in local libraries.



Hosting a membership open day to mark the completion of the trust’s
£12million new ward build.



Promoting the Annual General Meeting (which will again be held in a large
local venue off site to meet demand for attendance).



Producing information leaflets that promote the role of governors and how
they represent local people and members.



Promoting the annual council of governor elections to ensure a good
candidate spread and turn-out for voting.

Tapping into other local ‘markets’ to promote membership within communities.
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Direct Contacts
Members have a direct route they can use if they wish to communicate with
governors or directors of the trust.
Governors can be reached through the trust’s communications department, either
by phone, letter or via email to: governors@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Consultations
Details of consultations and results are stored on the trust’s website at
www.chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
Patient and Public Involvement (PPI)
The trust values the views of its patients, visitors and community members in
order to continually improve the services delivered locally and ensure they are
patient-centred. By listening and responding to what patients have to say the
trust has an opportunity share good practice and identify areas for improvement.
The following details examples of PPI activity, which have been used to identify
good practice and areas for improvement in the services delivered.
National Outpatient Department Survey 2009
As part of the national patient survey programme administered by the Healthcare
Commission, the trust took part in an exercise to evaluate the experience of
those patients attending Chesterfield Royal Hospital as outpatients during May
2009.
The results of the survey were very positive as highlighted by the benchmarking
information published by the Healthcare Commission. Performance is rated using
3 categories:
 Red – shows worst performing 20% of trusts
 Green – shows best performing 20% of trusts
 Orange – shows intermediate 60% of trusts
Overall the trust’s performance is positive with:
 20 questions rated as green
 20 questions rated as orange
 No questions rated as red
National Inpatient Survey 2009
As part of the national patient survey programme administered by the Healthcare
Commission, the trust took part in an exercise to evaluate the experience of
those patients who were inpatients at the Chesterfield Royal Hospital during
August 2009.
The results of the survey appear to be positive, however the Care Quality
Commission benchmarking report has not yet been published.
In order to continuously monitor the issues covered by the national inpatient
survey the trust has introduced a programme of ongoing patient surveys.
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Patient Experience Surveys are given out by ward staff to every patient on the
day of discharge. The survey can either be returned via the post boxes in each
lift lobby or in a reply-paid, which is provided with the survey. The surveys are in
two parts:




Core Questions – the core questions are all from the national inpatient
questionnaire (developed by the Picker institute) and were chosen by the
trust’s membership following a consultation which received over 3,000
responses; and
Additional questions – these questions change on a monthly basis and focus
on one of the following areas: food and nutrition; communication and dignity
and infection control.

The results, which are published on a monthly basis, enable the wards to identify
issues as they arise.
Examples of other work undertaken over the past year include:
Breast Cancer Patient Experience
As part of the cancer peer review process a sample of breast cancer patients
were asked to complete a questionnaire to give feedback about their experience.
The aim of the exercise was to identify good practice and areas for further
improvement. The questionnaire was distributed to a sample of patients during
April 2009, and the following report details the findings from the patient’s
feedback.
Overall the findings were positive, however it was identified that:


Patients were not always aware how long they would be at clinic; in order to
address this all new appointment letters will contain information about the
likely length of the visit and the reasons for this.



A number of patients reported problems with the management on wound
problems after ward discharge; in order to address this patients will be given
details of who to contact post-discharge if they have any concerns.

Irritable Bowel Disorder (IBD) Nurse Practitioner Clinic Service Evaluation
In order to evaluate the new IBD nurse practitioner clinic from the patient’s
perspective, a questionnaire was designed to obtain feedback from a sample of
patients. The questionnaire was distributed to a sample of patients and covered
the different aspects of their appointment with the IBD nurse practitioner and
support accessed when at home e.g. advice line.
Whilst asking for patients to give feedback about the IBD nurse practitioner clinic,
the questionnaire was used as an opportunity to test out potential service
developments with patients.
The main areas requiring action related to the availability of information and
advice with regard to IBD; in order to address this:


Leaflets have been obtained from the National Association for Colitis and
Crohn's Disease.
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An in-house leaflet has been developed, along with an information resource
within Suite 4.



Further information has been made available with regard to the IBD advice
line; in addition staff are now monitoring response times.

The survey results also showed good levels of support for the development of
telephone clinics for follow-up patients and self-management plans for those with
stable IBD. These initiatives are now being taken forward.
Children’s Diabetic Service
During July and August 2009, the Senior Matron for the Children’s Services
spoke to 15 patients and their families to find out about their views and
experience of attending the Children’s Diabetic Service.
Overall the results are very positive with clinic visits and home visits both being
rated highly. Parents particularly commented that they liked the fact that they
were seen by the same staff at each visit. However there appears to be some
concerns about school/playgroup response to children with diabetes linked to a
lack of understanding with regard to the condition and how to manage it. In
addition:


Some parents felt that it may have been useful to have more appointments
when their child was first diagnosed.



Two parents requested a support group so that children could meet others
with diabetes and parents could support each other.

In response to this:


Ongoing training and development has been offered to schools, school
nurses and nurseries to raise awareness.



Additional appointments will be made available when children are first
diagnosed.



Additional publicity material has been developed to highlight the availability of
support groups.

Therapy Services Outpatient Appointments
The Therapy Services constantly strive to improve the quality of service they
provide. In order to evaluate the service delivered to outpatients, a sample of
patients completed a questionnaire detailing their experience of their outpatient
appointment.
Overall the results of the survey were extremely positive, with many respondents
also using the comments space to write in words of praise for their therapist.
Specific issues highlighted were as follows:


The temperature in the department (in June, when the survey was carried
out) was commonly described as too hot. This feedback is strongly
supported by anecdotal comments from staff. In response to this we are
currently reviewing the need for air conditioning in the department.
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Several comments indicate a lack of space in the waiting area, especially for
wheelchair and mobility scooter users. Reception staff have been reminded
of the need to move free-standing chairs as necessary to permit wheelchair
access.



Unfortunately privacy in the curtained treatment area is a recognised area of
concern, although these results do show that the vast majority of patients felt
their privacy and dignity was respected. Due to space constraints use of
curtained cubicles is the only option at present, however therapists will
continue to bear in mind the potential concerns of their patients and to ensure
that their privacy and dignity is respected.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
Introduction
This report contains details of senior managers’ remuneration and pensions. The
figures relate to those individuals who have held office as a senior manager of
the trust during the reporting year. A ‘senior manager’ is defined as ‘those
persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or
controlling the major activities of the foundation trust’. The trust deems this to be
the executive and non-executive members of the board of directors.
Remuneration of the Chief Executive and Executive Directors
A committee of the board of directors, the remuneration committee, has
delegated responsibility for all aspects of remuneration and terms of service for
the chief executive and executive directors of the trust. Its responsibility includes
all aspects of salary, provision for other benefits including pensions,
arrangements for termination of employment and other contractual terms. The
nomination and selection of candidates for appointment as chief executive or
executive director is undertaken separately by an appointment committee.
The membership of the committee during 2009/10 was as follows:




Pam Liversidge – non-executive director and chairman of the committee
Richard Gregory – chairman of the trust
Michael Hall – non-executive director, deputy chairman, senior independent
director and chairman of the audit committee.

The committee met on 17 July and 19 November 2009.
present for both meetings.

All members were

The chief executive attended the meeting on 19 November 2009 to provide
advice on executive performance from appraisals held during 2009/10. He did
not participate in the parts of the meeting where matters related to his own
remuneration were discussed.
The key item of business in the year was the review of the remuneration for the
executive directors
Remuneration Policy
With the exception of the chief executive and the executive directors, all
employees of the trust, including senior managers, are remunerated in
accordance with the national NHS pay structure, Agenda for Change.
The remuneration of the chief executive and the four other executive directors is
determined by the board of directors’ remuneration committee (see above) taking
into account market levels, key skills, performance and responsibilities.
The chief executive and the three whole-time executive are paid a flat rate salary
within the range determined by the remuneration committee. The part-time
executive director (medical director) is paid a flat rate within the range determined
by the remuneration committee, which is separate from his salary as a medical
practitioner.
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In reviewing remuneration, the committee has regard to the trust’s overall
performance, the delivery of the agreed corporate objectives for the year, the
pattern of executive remuneration among foundation trusts and the wider NHS,
and the individual director’s level of experience and development in the role. The
annual review comprises a cost of living uplift (which is the same as that for staff
on Agenda for Change) and progression within the range set for the post by the
committee.
The trust does not operate performance related-pay or bonuses.
The
performance of the executive directors is assessed on a continuing basis via
formal appraisal and unsatisfactory performance may provide grounds for
termination of contract.
The ‘service contract’ for the chief executive and executive directors is the
contract of employment. This is substantive and continues until the director
reaches the age of sixty-five, when it terminates automatically unless there is
agreement to extend it. Otherwise, the notice period for termination by the trust
is twelve months and for termination by the director, six months. The contract
does not provide for any other termination payments.
Details of the service contract for each executive director as at 31 March 2010:
Post title

From

Unexpired terms (years)*
0 -10
11-20
21-30


Chief executive

01.01.02

Director of finance and contracting

17.03.03



Chief Nurse

01.04.09



Corporate secretary

13.12.93

Medical director

01.10.09




*This distribution is shown because the directors have not given consent for age
to be disclosed.
Further details of the appointments are included within the statements of board of
directors experience and expertise on page 58 of this report.
The provisions for compensation for early retirement and redundancy are as set
out in section 16 of the Agenda for Change: NHS Terms and Conditions of
Service Handbook.
Remuneration of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
As a foundation trust the nominations committee of the council of governors has
responsibility for the appointment, remuneration and appraisal of the chairman
and non-executive directors. Full details of membership and of the work
undertaken by the committee during 2009/10 may be found on page 70 of this
report. This work included:


A review of the appraisal systems for the council of governors, chairman and
non-executive directors; and an overview of these processes within year; and
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Consideration of and recommendations to the council of governors on the
annual uprating of the remuneration of the chairman and non-executive
directors for the current and future years.

Assessment of Performance of Senior Managers
Individual performance is reviewed through the trust’s appraisal process to
evaluate the extent to which senior managers have met their objectives
contributed to the delivery of the trust’s strategic objectives.
Salary and Allowances of Senior Managers
In the year to 31 March 2010, the salaries and allowances of senior managers
can be seen in the table below.
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Salary and Pension Entitlement of Senior Managers
a) Salaries
Name

Eric Morton +
Paul Briddock
Terry Alty
Alfonzo
Tramontano
Dr Ian Gell
Ron Clarke
William Lambert
John McDonnell
Richard Gregory
Michael Hall
Pam Liversidge
David Whitney
Deborah Fern
Janet Birkin

Title

Chief Executive
Director of Finance and Contracting
Corporate Secretary
Chief Nurse (from 1 April 2009)
Medical Director (from 1 October
2009)
Director of Nursing (retired 31
December 2008)
Medical Director (retired 7 April 2008)
Medical Director (from 1 April 2008)
(retired 30 September 2009)
Chairman
Senior Independent Director and NonExecutive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

(Bands of
£5,000)

2009/10
Remuneration
for Clinical
duties
(Bands of
£5,000)

£000

£000

£00

£000

£000

(Rounded
to the
nearest
£100)
£00

160-165
135-140
115-120
105-110

0
0
0
0

10
10
0
0

170-175
135-140
110-115
-

0
0
0
-

7
10
0
-

15-20

65-70

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

140-145

0

1

20-25

75-80

1

0-5
35-40

0-5
150-155

0
1

45-50
15-20

0
0

0
0

45-50
15-20

0
0

0
0

10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

10-15
10-15
10-15
10-15

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Director
Salary

Benefits in
Kind*

Director
Salary

(Rounded to
the nearest
£100)

(Bands of
£5,000)

2008/09
Remuneration
for Clinical
duties
(Bands of
£5,000)

* All the benefits in kind shown related to taxable expenses allowances and are shown in £hundreds.
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Benefits in
Kind*

b) Pensions
Name

Title

Eric Morton +

Chief Executive

Paul Briddock

Director of Finance and
Contracting
Corporate Secretary
Chief Nurse (from 1 April 2009)

Terry Alty
Alfonzo
Tramontano
Dr Ian Gell
John McDonnell *

Medical Director (from 1 October
2009)
Medical Director (from 1 April
2009)(retired 30 September 2009)

Real
increase in
pension at
age 60

Real
increase in
lump sum at
age 60

Total
accrued
pension at
age 60 at 31
March 2010

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at
31 March
2010

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at
31 March
2009

Real
increase in
Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value

(Bands of
£5,000)

Lump sum
at age 60
related to
accrued
pension at
31 March
2010
(Bands of
£5,000)

(Bands of
£2,500)

(Bands of
£2,500)

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

10-12.5

32.5-35

100-105

305-310

2,548

2,070

374

0-2.5

5-7.5

20-25

70-75

372

316

40

0-2.5
12.5-15

0-2.5
37.5-40

35-40
30-35

115-120
100-105

799
544

715
299

48
231

2.5-5

7.5-10

50-55

160-165

1218

959

105

(0-2.5)

(0-2.5)

75-80

235-240

n/a

1,907

n/a
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A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital
value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point
in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any
contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment
made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in
another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and
chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension
figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their
service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures,
and the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in
another scheme or arrangement, which the individual has transferred to the NHS
Pension Scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to
the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in
the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the
employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement).
* the pension and lump sum figures disclosed for John McDonnell reflect his
decision to commute part of his pension to a lump sum.
+ Eric Morton was appointed interim Chief Executive at Mid Staffordshire Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust on 5 March 2009 until 31 July 2009. He remained Chief
Executive of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust whilst carrying
out this additional role. The NHS FT Annual Reporting Manual requires that the
amount recharged in 2009/10 to Mid Staffordshire NHS FT be included in the Mid
Staffs NHS FT accounts and be excluded from the Directors salary figure above.
If this arrangement had not been in place Eric Morton’s Director salary would
have been in the 180-185k banding for 2009/10 and 175-180k banding for
2008/09.

Eric Morton
Chief executive and accounting officer
4 June 2010
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PART 1
STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Chesterfield Royal Hospital is committed to delivering high quality clinical care,
which is safe and effective and places the patient at the centre of everything we
do. In order to do this we undertake a wide range of activities to ensure that
current high standards are maintained and staff are supported to continually
improve quality.
This report details:





The trust’s priorities for improvement for 2010/11.
Statements relating to the quality of services provided by the trust include the
involvement in local and national audits and research.
What others say about us.
How the trust has performed over the past year on key indicators of quality.

Many of the trust’s staff have been involved in influencing the content of the
report; the priorities reflect what is important to them and our patients, they have
helped to measure and monitor our performance and most importantly they have
taken, and will continue to take, measures resulting in improvements.
Our Council of Governors receives regular reports on quality and continues to
challenge the trust to continually improve. The Council has given its views on
this report and will continue to influence this agenda over the coming years.
In addition views have been sought (and received from):




Our commissioning Primary Care Trust; Derbyshire County;
Derbyshire Local Involvement Network (LINks); and,
Derbyshire County Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The views of these groups are reflected in this report.
The Board has approved the content of this report and confirms that it is an
accurate account of quality at the trust.

Eric Morton
Chief executive and accounting officer
4 June 2010
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PART 2
PRIORITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT
The trust has identified five priorities for quality improvement which cover the
three areas identified within High Quality Care for All:




Clinical Effectiveness;
Patient Safety; and
Patient Experience.

Progress against each of these priorities will be reported via the quarterly Clinical
Standards and Governance Report which is presented to the Board of Directors,
Clinical Governance Committee and Council of Governors. In addition, this
report is shared with Derbyshire County PCT and Derbyshire LINks.
Clinical Effectiveness
Priority 1: Reduction in Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR)
Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio is a way of comparing the number of
deaths in hospital between different organisations. Over the past 3 years, the
trust has been successful in reducing our HSMR by investigating and making
improvements in areas where the mortality rate was above average.
Figure 1 – Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio by calendar year

[NB. Dr Foster resets the benchmark each financial year – it is expected that
when this occurs for 2009/10 that the mortality ratio for 2009 will increase into the
average (blue) range.]
However, we want to make further improvements and we therefore plan during
2010/11 to develop a mortality strategy with the aim of becoming one of the best
25% of trusts in relation to mortality.
In order to do this we will work with Dr Foster, who are nationally recognised for
their work on measuring and comparing mortality rates. This will enable us to:
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Identify key diagnosis groups where improvements could have a significant
impact on the overall mortality rate.
Compare ourselves with the “best” organisations for each of those diagnoses.
Monitor the overall impact of this work on our HSMR.

This work will be led by the Clinical Governance Committee and will involve frontline clinical staff responsible for those areas identified. They will be supported by
our clinical governance team to identify and audit practice and to make the
necessary improvements.
Priority 2: Patient Reported Outcome Measures
Patient reported outcome measures (PROMs) are measures of a patient’s health
status or health-related quality of life. They are typically short, self-completed
questionnaires, which measure the patients’ health status or health related quality
of life at set points in time e.g. before and after an operation. By comparing the
answers given at different points in time we can assess the “success” of
treatment from a patient’s perspective.
The national PROMs programme was launched in April 2009 and includes
patients having the following operations:





Hip replacements;
Knee replacement;
Groin hernia surgery; and
Varicose vein surgery.

The trust is responsible for asking patients to complete a questionnaire before
their operation, and providing they give consent, this is followed-up at a set time
post-operatively by an independent company who have been commissioned to
run PROMs by the Department of Health.
Early results show that response rates for the trust are very good (see figure 2)
and we are looking forward to receiving the first results of these questionnaires.
Figure 2 – PROMS Response Rates April to December 2009
90%

70%
60%
50%
CRHFT

Percentage response rate

80%

40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
NHS Trusts in East Midlands
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We are expecting the first results from the PROMs in early 2010/11; these will be
published in the quarterly Clinical Standards and Governance Report and action
plans will be developed to address any shortfalls identified.
Patient Safety
Priority 3: Nursing Metrics
In order to support the trust’s aim to ensure that we deliver high quality nursing
care the Chief Nurse introduced a process of nursing metrics at the beginning of
September 2009.
The nursing care indicators are measured by auditing nursing documentation and
includes:










Patient Observations & Identification;
Pain Management;
Risk Assessment*;
Falls;
Nutrition;
Pressure Sores/Infection Control;
Medication Assessment;
Infection Control*; and
Moving & Handling.

The audits are undertaken by an audit clerk, using a tool agreed by the Nursing
and Midwifery Professional Standards Group and are unannounced. Overall
there are 51 audit criteria which are grouped together into the 9 areas identified
above. The results are presented using the following traffic light system:




Red – Compliance of less than 90%
Amber – Compliance 90-95%
Green – Compliance over 95%

We recognise that these are extremely challenging targets and that it will take
time to make the improvements necessary for all areas to achieve compliance.
The initial results are summarised in figure 3 on page 109.
[*At present these two areas are not being audited:
 the risk assessment standards apply to the new risk assessment booklet
which has not yet been introduced; and
 the documentation of infection control within the current admission document
is ambiguous and does not enable clear audit criteria to be set; this will be
addressed when the new admission document is launched in the near future.]
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Figure 3 – Trustwide Nurse Metrics Results by Category (September 2009-March
2010)
Sep-09

Oct-09

Nov-09

Dec-09

Jan-10

Feb-10

Mar-10

Patient
Observation and
Identification

84%

91%

91%

93%

94%

97%

96%

Pain Management

48%

56%

73%

79%

75%

83%

85%

Not yet asked

Risk Assessment
Falls

19%

31%

33%

47%

51%

56%

56%

Nutrition

58%

67%

68%

73%

61%

73%

88%

Pressure Sore
Assessment

76%

83%

82%

83%

80%

86%

88%

Medication
Assessment

86%

90%

89%

91%

87%

90%

91%

68%

75%

77%

Not yet asked

Infection Control
Moving and
Handling

54%

63%

62%

65%

In order to identify appropriate action to bring about improvements in patient care
and experience, the Principal Matron facilitates a monthly nursing forum,
attended by Senior Matrons and Matrons from the relevant wards. The forum will
provide an opportunity to:







Identify areas of good practice and share learning.
Identify areas for improvement and discuss appropriate action to facilitate
improvement.
Monitor progress against action plans.
Identify trends and discuss possible reasons for these.
Celebrate successes.
Identify issues that require corporate discussion or intervention.

In addition, results and actions will be reported quarterly to the Board of
Directors, Clinical Governance Committee and Council of Governors via the
Clinical Standards and Governance Report.
At present the metrics are in use on the adult general wards, but over the coming
months will be extended to other inpatient areas.
Priority 4: Reducing the Risk of Venous Thromoboembolism (VTE)
VTE is a condition in which a blood clot (a thrombus) forms in a vein and
subsequently dislodges and moves to the heart or the lungs. It most commonly
occurs in the deep veins of the legs; this is called deep vein thrombosis. An
estimated 25,000 people in the UK die from preventable hospital-acquired
venous thromboembolism (VTE) every year.
One of the key priorities to reduce the risk of patients developing VTE is to
assess all patients on admission to identify those at risk and offer appropriate
prophylaxis to those assessed as being at increased risk. The trust has a risk
assessment process in place and has been identified as a national exemplar site
(a site of best practice) for the work we have undertaken.
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Reduction of VTE is a national priority and the proportion of patients being risk
assessed on admission has been identified as a national Clinical Quality Indicator
(CQUIN) for 2010/11.
During 2010/11 we will further promote the use of the risk assessment tool and
introduce an ongoing audit process to monitor uptake.
Patient Experience
Priority 5: Patient Experience Surveys
In line with the trust’s aim to be the hospital of first choice for local people, patient
satisfaction and positive feedback is seen as a key indicator of success. The
trust conducts a wide range of patient and public involvement work each year,
however the key indicator of patient satisfaction is the national patient surveys, in
particular the annual inpatient survey.
The results of the 2008 inpatient survey show that overall patient experience
remains positive, however there has been a slight deterioration in the number of
questions for which the trust was in the top 20% (green). We are currently
awaiting the national report in relation to the national inpatient survey for 2009.
Figure 4 – Comparative Trust Performance on the National Inpatient Survey
2008 vs. 2007 (Source: Healthcare Commission/Care Quality Commission
Comparative reports)
Performance

2008

2007

Green (top 20%)

29

31

Orange (mid 60%)

31

29

Red (bottom 20%)

2

2

In addition, to the ongoing national patient survey programme the trust launched
a process of continuous patient experience surveys, alongside the nurse metrics
project in September 2009. This enables us to monitor patient experience in
relation to: cleanliness and infection control, communication, dignity and respect,
medication, food and nutrition and pain management, on a monthly basis for
each ward. The results are presented using a traffic light system, where the
scores are based on the results of the national survey, as described above.
Figure 5 – Trustwide Results by Category (September 2009-March 2010)
Sep-09

Oct-09

Nov-09

Dec-09

Jan-10

Feb-10

Mar-10

Cleanliness and
Infection
Control

86.9

86.7

93.1

91.0

87.5

92.3

87.6

Communication

74.1

82.6

84.3

80.6

81.0

82.2

83.3

Dignity and
respect

81.1

88.0

91.2

88.8

89.8

91.4

87.5

Medication

71.2

86.9

86.3

81.8

84.7

83.9

83.0

Nutrition

79.3

90.0

86.3

82.2

89.1

86.0

80.2

Overall

77.3

89.0

88.0

84.9

84.8

87.2

84.3
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The results will be used alongside the nurse metrics to bring about improvements
in patient care and experience, and will be reported in the same way.
Statements Relating to Quality of NHS Services Provided
Review of Services
During 2009/10 the Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust provided
and/or subcontracted NHS services across nine clinical directorates.
The Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all the data
available to them on the Quality of Care in all of these NHS Services.
The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2009/10 represents
100% per cent of the total income generated from the provision of NHS services
by the Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for 2009/10.
Participation in Clinical Audits
During 2009/10, 24 national clinical audits and 6 national confidential enquiries
covered NHS services that Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
provides.
During that period Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust participated
in 79% of national clinical audits and 100% of the national confidential enquiries
of the national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries which it was
eligible to participate in.
The tables below detail the national clinical audits and national confidential
enquiries that Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust:



Was eligible to participate in during 2009/10.
Participated in during 2009/10.

The national clinical audit and national confidential enquiries that Chesterfield
Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust participated in, and for which data
collection was completed during 2009/10, are listed below alongside the number
of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of
registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.
National Clinical Audits
National audit title

Did the trust
participate?

No. of cases
submitted as a
percentage of the
number of cases
required for 2009/10.

NNAP: neonatal care

Yes

100%

ICNARC CMPD: audit critical care
units

Yes

100%

National Elective Surgery PROMs:
four operations

Yes

All eligible patients
asked to participate –
82% response rate
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National audit title

Did the trust
participate?

No. of cases
submitted as a
percentage of the
number of cases
required for 2009/10.

RCP Continence Care Audit

Yes

99%

CEMACH: perinatal mortality

Yes

100%

NJR: hip and knee replacements

Yes

50%

National oesophago-gastric Cancer
Audit

Yes

100%

NLCA: lung cancer

Yes

100%

NBOCAP: bowel cancer

Yes

100%

DAHNO: head and neck cancer

Yes

100%

National Mastectomy and Breast
Reconstruction Audit

Yes

100%

MINAP (inc ambulance care): AMI &
other ACS

Yes

100%

College of Emergency Medicine:
Fracture

Yes

100%

NHFD: hip fracture

Yes

100%

College of Emergency Medicine:
asthma

Yes

100%

TARN: severe trauma

Yes

100%

College of Emergency Medicine: pain
in children

Yes

100%

NHS Blood & Transplant: potential
donor audit

Yes

100%

National Comparative Audit of Blood
Transfusion: National Neonatal
Transfusion audit

Yes

100%

NDA: National Diabetes Audit

No

~

Heart Failure Audit

No

~

British Thoracic Society: respiratory
diseases

No

National Kidney Care Audit

No

~

National Comparative Audit of Blood
Transfusion: patient bedside
observations

No

~
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National Confidential Enquiries
Study title

Did the trust
participate?

No. of cases submitted as a
percentage of the number of
cases required for 2009/10.

National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death
Parenteral nutrition

Yes

66%

Elective and Emergency Surgery in the Elderly

Yes

79%

Surgery in Children

Yes

Data collection ongoing

Peri-operative Care

Yes

Data collection ongoing

Maternal death enquiry

Yes

No relevant cases

Perinatal mortality surveillance

Yes

100%

Centre for Maternal and Child Enquiries

The reports of five national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in
2009/10 and Chesterfield Royal Hospital intends to take the following actions to
improve the quality of healthcare provided:




The quarterly trauma audit (TARN) reports are discussed at the Trauma
Committee and used as part of the review of trauma services within the trust.
The MINAP audit, which looks at the care of patients who have had a
myocardial infarction (heart attack) is utilised to ensure that the trust meets
national standards of care.
National Joint Registry allows us to monitor the performance of replacement
hip knee and ankle joints.

The reports of 231 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2009/10.
The table below shows the breakdown of audits completed and reviewed by
speciality.
Local Clinical Audits Reviewed (1 April 2009 - 31 March 2010)
Specialty

No. of audits 2009/10

Trustwide

4

Integrated Medicine

35

Obstetrics & Gynaecology

89

Paediatrics (Includes Community)

21

Central Services (includes Pharmacy, Nutrition &
Dietetics, Orthotics, Physiotherapy, Speech &
Language Therapy)

17

Imaging

5

Surgical Specialties

21

Orthopaedics

18

Critical Care

10

Emergency Care

11
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Each clinical audit reviewed results in either confirmation that clinical practice
meets the required standards or recommendations to improve practice. The
following details some examples of actions agreed as a result of local audits
within each of the main clinical directorates.
Women & Children’s Directorate
Audit on Instrumental Delivery:
This audit showed that we care compliant with national standards, however we
are not complacent and this will be subject to ongoing re-audit. Specific actions
identified include:



A reminder to all staff to ensure informed consent is documented as obtained,
whether verbal or written.
The documentation of supervising obstetrician for all SHO deliveries.

Audit on Caesarean Sections:
This is an ongoing audit; actions identified in the past year are:



Awareness raising with staff with regard to the classification of urgency for
emergency c-sections.
A reminder to staff to document cord gases and the use of TEDS (special
stockings which reduce the risk of developing deep vein thrombosis).

Audit on the Care of Women in Labour:
The findings of this audit were fed-back to staff at September’s audit meeting and
will also be discussed at the staff training day to ensure all staff have been
informed. The monthly audit will be continued, with the aim of improving results
on those areas where we fell short e.g. documentation of hourly blood pressure
and temperature.
Audit of the Skeletal Survey in Suspected Non-accidental Injury (NAI):
This audit showed good adherence to the guideline, however it highlighted the
importance of discussions with the child’s parents or carers about the skeletal
survey itself, obtaining verbal consent for the procedure and the documentation
thereof in the patient notes. This has been discussed with staff at a paediatric
audit meeting in October 2009. A re-audit will be undertaken in 2 years time.
Audit of Referral to the Retinopathy Screening Programme for the Over 12’s with
Type 1 Diabetes:
As a result of this audit annual reviews of all diabetic patients will now be
undertaken to pick up those over 12 years and all those newly diagnosed, to
ensure that:



Liase with Retinopathy Screening Programme for results to be sent to the
hospital as well as to GP.
Educate patients and parents about the importance of screening.
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Medical Directorate
Audit on the Management of Metastatic Spinal Cord Compression (MSSC):
As a result of this audit a clear local hospital pathway for MSCC, in line with NICE
guidance and an MSCC checklist are under development to aid better
assessment of patients. In addition, an “oncologist of the day” system has been
agreed with Weston Park Hospital to enable hospital staff to more easily obtain a
specialist opinion.
Re-Audit on use of Non-invasive Ventilation (NIV) in Type 2 Respiratory Failure:
This audit revealed some shortfalls with regard to the documentation of a
treatment plan if NIV fails; this has been raised with relevant staff. In addition, it
was identified that the availability of a blood gas analyser on relevant ward would
make it easier for staff to undertake appropriate monitoring and this is currently
being looked into.
Surgical Directorate
Audit of Breast Referrals to Breast Cancer Unit:
This audit showed that the management of patients via the fast track breast clinic
meets both Department of Health (DoH) and NICE guidelines, however routine
referrals were not currently meeting the criteria as per DoH Directive. In order to
address this, the trust is looking to increase the capacity of fast track clinic and
ensure that, where appropriate, patients are managed via nurse-led clinics to
free-up capacity in consultant led clinics.
Retinopathy of Prematurity:
This is an eye disease that affects prematurely born babies; the audit looked at
compliance with nine key standards and revealed full compliance with five of
these. Where standards were not met there were reasons for this beyond the
control of the department. It has been agreed that we would re-audit practice
against the standards in 12 months.
Emergency Care Directorate
Emergency Department Review of Infants by Senior Doctor:
This audit measured performance against the standard that “ideally children
under 1 should be seen by a senior doctor (ST4 or above)”. The audit revealed
that this was not always the case; as a result of this:




All relevant staff have been reminded of this standard.
It has been agreed that more junior staff must discuss and document review
by senior doctor for all children under 1.
The audit will be repeated within 12 months.
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Cardiac Arrest Outcomes:
This audit showed that the proportion of patients surviving a cardiac arrest has
decreased slightly over that last 3 years but still mirrors the national data. It has
been agreed that we will continue to audit outcomes and cause of death both for
adults and paediatrics within the ED setting, in order to observe trends following
the introduction of the 2006 Advanced Life Support guidelines, which has
changed the management of cardiac arrests.
Research
The number of patients receiving NHS services provided or sub-contracted by
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in 2009/10 that were recruited
during that period to participate in research approved by a research ethics
committee was 183.
Over the past year research at Chesterfield Royal NHS Foundation Trust has
expanded into clinical specialties that have had limited or no previous research
activity. The increase in activity has been possible due to the development of
improved clinical research facilities and an increase in the numbers of research
active healthcare professionals.
This increasing level of participation in clinical research demonstrates
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s commitment to improving
the quality of care we offer and to making our contribution to wider health
improvement. In addition to participation in research projects attracting accrual to
the trust, we also actively collaborate with Sheffield Teaching Hospitals in the
recruitment of cancer patients to many trials. Where the trust acts as a
recruitment centre for Sheffield this collaboration provides accrual for Sheffield
Teaching Hospitals not for Chesterfield Royal NHS Foundation Trust. All such
projects come under the Cancer Research Network.
The majority of the studies during 2009/10 were established and managed under
national model agreements. Where, on the rare occasion a study has an
agreement that does not match the national model it is closely scrutinised and
referred to the trust solicitor for advice where necessary.
Since the introduction of the Research Passport Scheme in August 2009 13% of
the studies during the 2009/10 period involved the issuing of NHS to NHS letters
of access and 7% involved the issuing of letters of access in conjunction with a
Research Passport. It should be noted that the Research Passport Scheme was
introduced 4 months into the year therefore the percentages are low for that
period. The Scheme has been fully implemented by the trust along with the later
changes as required by the new Vetting and Barring Scheme.
In 2009/10 58% of studies approved at the trust were on the National Institute for
Health Research (NIHR) portfolio. The trust also collaborates closely with the
topic specific networks and special interest groups.
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Goals Agreed with Commissioners
A proportion of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s income in
2009/10 was conditional on achieving quality improvement and innovation goals
agreed between Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and any
person or body they entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement with for
the provision of NHS services, through the Commissioning for Quality and
Innovation payment framework.
Further details of the agreed goals for 2009/10 and for the following 12 months
period are available on request from Juliet Mckervey, Head of Patient Access and
Contracting.
What Others Say About the Provider
Care Quality Commission Registration
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is required to register with the
Care Quality Commission and its current registration status is with no compliance
conditions.
The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust during 2009/10.
Care Quality Commission Periodic Reviews
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not subject to periodic
reviews by the CQC.
Care Quality Commission Special Reviews/Investigations
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has not participated in any
special reviews or investigations by the Care Quality Commission during the
reporting period.
Data Quality
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during
2009/10 to the Secondary Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital Episodes
Statistics which are included in the latest published data. The percentage of
records in the published data which included the patient’s valid NHS number was:
99.90% for admitted patient care;
99.97% for outpatient care; and
99.41% for accident and emergency care.
Information Governance Toolkit Attainment Levels
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s score for 2009/10 for
Information Quality and Records Management assessed using the Information
Governance Toolkit was 82%.
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Clinical Coding Error Rate
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust was subject to the Payment
by Results clinical coding audit during the reporting period by the Audit
Commission and the error rates reported in the latest published audit for that
period for diagnosis and treatment coding clinical coding were:
7.0% for primary diagnoses incorrect;
4.6% for secondary diagnoses incorrect;
4.5% for primary procedures incorrect; and
1.5% for secondary procedures incorrect.
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PART 3
REVIEW OF QUALITY PERFORMANCE
This section includes a range of information relating to the trust’s quality
performance in 2009/10. Whilst this is not an exhaustive list it gives an overview
of the trust’s performance in both hospital-wide and service specific indicators.
3.1 Length of Stay and Daycase Rates
Ensuring that patients are treated efficiently and effectively is a key priority for the
trust; treating all suitable patients as daycases and minimising the length of stay
for others improves patients experience and indicates more effective care.
The trust uses Dr Foster Real Time Monitoring to review how our length of stay
and daycase rates compare with other organisations. As the graphs below show
both the length of stay and daycase rates are better than the national average.
Figure 6 – Proportion of Patients With a Long Length of Stay (Within the Upper
Quartile for Primary Diagnosis) Compared with National Average [Source: Dr
Foster Real-time Monitoring]
Jan-Dec
‘09
Patients

68512

Long
LoS

8173
(11.9%)

Expected

9021.4
(13.2%)

Relative
Risk

90.6
(88.6 92.6)
Better
than
average
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Figure 7 – Proportion of Patients Undergoing a Daycase Procedure (as Defined
by the Care Quality Commission) Who are Admitted to Hospital as an Inpatient
Compared with National Average [Source: Dr Foster Real-time Monitoring]
Jan-Dec
‘09
Patients

6829

Inpatients

1114
(16.6%)

Expected

1357.5
(20.3%)

Relative
Risk

82.1
(77.387.0)
Better
than
average

3.2 Hospital Acquired Infections
Hospital acquired infections continue to be a high priority nationally and for our
patients. For 2009/10 the trust has maintained low levels of bMRSA and C.
difficile infections. In order to achieve this, the focus for infection control has
been on sustainability. The trust has produced a long-term strategy for infection
control, which focuses on key areas of infection prevention and control, including
hand hygiene, antibiotic control and environmental cleanliness. The outcomes
for the year are summarised below:
Figure 8 - 2009/10 Outcomes on Infection Control Measures
Criterion

Target

Outcome

C. difficile

20% reduction in hospital
acquired infections compared
to 2007/8 outturn (maximum
of 125 new isolates).

50 new isolates

MRSA

No more than 12 bacteraemia
infections

3 bacteraemia

20% reduction in hospital
acquired non bacteraemia
infections compared to
2007/08 outturn (maximum 69
cases)

42 non- bacteraemia

Cleanliness
audits

Achievement of minimum
scores of 95%

Average score 95.5%

Hand Hygiene

Achievement of minimum
scores of 80%

Overall compliance
92%
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For 2010/11 the following targets have been agreed:




Maximum of 50 hospital acquired C. difficile infections.
No more that 4 MRSA bacteraemia infections.
30% reduction in hospital acquired MRSA non bacteraemia infections
compared to 2007/08 outturn (maximum 62 cases).

3.3 Blood Transfusion Competency-Based Training and Assessment
Blood transfusions involve a complex sequence of activities and, to ensure the
right patient receives the right blood, there must be strict checking procedures in
place at each stage. In order to reduce the risk of errors occurring all staff are
required to have undergone competency based training and assessment
The trust is aiming to ensure that all relevant staff have undergone the relevant
assessment(s) by November 2010. The table below shows the position at 31
March 2010.
Figure 9 – Proportion of Staff Requiring Blood Transfusion Competency-based
Assessment Who Have Undergone Assessment by 31 March 2009
Total
assessments
needed 1

Total
assessments
completed

% complete

Medicine

564

262

46.5%

Surgery

234

148

63.2%

Orthopaedics

168

97

57.7%

Women’s & Children’s

546

407

74.5%

Critical Care

525

496

94.5%

Emergency Care

301

281

93.4%

Pathology

35

35

100%

Central Services

37

37

100%

Clinical Standards &
Gov

6

6

Non-Medical Staff

Total assessments
required

100%
2413

1769

73.6%

Total assessments
required

180

151

83.9%

Overall

2596

1920

74.3%

Medical Staff

1

NB Some staff require more than one assessment as assessments relate to different stages of the process, as
follows:
1. obtaining a venous sample
2. collecting blood/blood components for transfusion
3. organising the receipt of blood/blood components for transfusion
4. preparing to administer a transfusion
5. administering a transfusion
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3.4 Maternity Services
The trust is responsible for maternity services in North Derbyshire, which deliver
over 2,000 babies a year. In the past year the trust has invested in the
development of a new birth centre aimed at ensuring that women get a “homefrom-home” experience. The trust’s Maternity Services received an “excellent”
rating from the Healthcare Commission in 2008 and holds the World Health
Organisation’s Baby Friendly Status (this reflects a commitment to promoting
breastfeeding).
To reflect these areas the trust measures a range of indicators as shown below:
Figure 10 – 2009/10 Outcomes on Maternity Services Measures
Criterion

Target

Outcome

Caesarean
sections

Caesarean section rate less
than national average of 24%

19.6%

Less than 20% of emergency
caesarean sections performed
under General Anaesthesia

24.7%

More than 90% of elective
caesarean sections performed
under Regional Anaesthesia

99.0%

Home births

Rate of home births above
national average of 2%.

2.1%

Breastfeeding

More that 68% of mothers
initiate breastfeeding

71%

3.5 Management of Patients with Fractured Neck of Femur
Fragility fractures and their care are a challenge to our health care system and
our society. Already in the UK around 300,000 patients with such fractures
present each year, and current projections indicate that numbers of hip fracture
patients will continue to rise. This picture is reflected at the trust, where the
number of patients admitted with a fractured neck of femur has increased by over
50% in the past 10 years.
The evidence-base for hip fracture care is improving rapidly and, in general
terms, shows that prompt, effective, multidisciplinary management can improve
quality and mortality, and at the same time reduce costs. Key elements of good
care are:




Prompt and appropriate management in the Emergency department.
Reducing the time from admission to surgery.
Prompt mobilisation following operation.

To reflect these areas the trust measures a range of indicators as shown below:

122

Figure 11 – 2009/10 Outcomes on Management of Patients with a Fractured
Neck of Femur
Criterion

Target

Management
in ED

Appropriate analgesia provided
within 60 minutes of arrival –
national average 52%

78%

Proportion of patients given
analgesia within guidelines–
national average 65%

72%

Proportion of patients who had
an X-ray within 60 mins of
arrival in A&E – national
average 41%

66%

Time to
operation

Mobilisation

Outcome

50% of patients with fractured
neck of femur are operated on
within 24 hours of admission

47%

85% of patients with fractured
neck of femur are operated on
within 48 hours of admission

84%

% of patients mobilised within
24 hours post-op.- 2008/09
result – 39%

40%

3.6 Management of Myocardial Infarction (Heart Attacks)
Heart attacks are very common and they are one of the leading causes of death
in England. Each year, in England, an estimated 111,000 people have a heart
attack. The outlook for people who have a heart attack is highly variable and is
dependent how quickly they receive treatment after the onset of the heart attack.
In addition, future heart attacks can be prevented by prescribing appropriate
medications on discharge.
To reflect these areas the trust measures a range of indicators as follows:




30-minute “Door-to-Needle” time – the number of heart attack patients
eligible for thrombolysis who receive that treatment within 30 minutes of
arrival in the hospital.
60-minute “Call-to-Needle” time - the number of heart attack patients eligible
for thrombolysis who receive that treatment within 60 minutes of calling for
emergency help (usually 999 ambulance).
The proportion of heart attack patients who are discharged from the acute
hospital on the following proven medications that prevent future heart
problems, anti-platelet (aspirin), statins, beta blockers.

The results for 2009/10 are shown in the tables below:
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Figure 12 –Time to Thrombolysis for
Compared with National Average

Patients with Myocardial Infarction

Chesterfield
Royal

National
average

Target (NSF)

30 minute door to
needle time

89%

83%

75%

60 minute call to needle
time

81%

72%

68%

Indicator

Figure 13 – Proportion of Heart Attack Patients Who are Discharged from the
Acute Hospital on Medications that Prevent Future Heart Problems by Quarter
Apr-Jun
‘09

Jul-Sept
‘09

Oct-Dec
‘09

Jan-Mar
‘10

2009/10

National
(MINAP
2008/09)

Proportion of patients who
were prescribed anti-platelet.

97.6%

98.3%

98.6%

98.5%

98.3%

98%

Proportion of patients who
were prescribed a statin

96.3%

97.0%

97.3%

97.1%

96.9%

97%

Proportion of patients who
were prescribed a
betablocker

93.2%

94.6%

94.9%

94.4%

94.3%

93%

3.7 Breast Screening
The North Derbyshire Breast Screening Services is provided by Chesterfield
Royal Hospital Foundation Trust and screens around 13,360 women between 50
and 70 years of age per annum. Women are invited for screening every 3 years.
The standards of service are monitored via an external ongoing quality assurance
programme. The results of which are summarised in the table below. The
results are colour coded as follows:
Green

Trust score is better than the national target

Amber

Trust score is better than the national minimum

Red

Trust score is worse than the national minimum
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Figure 14 – Breast Screening Quality Assurance Measures
National Standards
Routine Screen Women aged 50
- 64

2004/05

2005/06

2006/07

2008/09

Minimum

Target

79.9

79.9

76.6

77.5

>70%

>80%

Prevalent

12.0

10.4

10.5

6.6

<10%

<7%

Incident

5.2

5.2

3.4

2.7

<7%

<5%

% of women who have a non
operative diagnosis of cancer

89.7

99.0

100.0

97.4

>80%

>90%

% of all invasive cancers with a
non-operative pathological
diagnosis

98.8

>90%

>95%

% of all non-invasive cancers with
a non-operative pathological
diagnosis

93.1

>85%

>90%

% of invited women to attend for
screening
% of women
referred for
assessment

Invasive cancers
per 1000 women
screened

Prevalent

3.5

7.2

6.6

3.1

>2.7

>3.6

Incident

5.1

7.4

5.3

6.5

>3.0

>4.0

Rolling three year
Standardised
Detection Ratios
Invasive cancers
(all sizes)

Prevalent

1.33

1.37

1.53

1.33

Incident

1.49

1.71

1.47

1.38

>0.85

>1.0

Overall

1.45

1.64

1.49

1.37

74

68.6

97.8

98.6

>90%

100%

% of women who attend an
assessment centre within 3 weeks
of attending for screening

20.6

18.1

60.2

96.2

>90%

100%

% of women who are admitted for
treatment within 2 months of their
first assessment visit.

94

97.0

98.0

95.5

>90%

100%

% of women who are sent their
results within 2 weeks

3.8 Neonatal Outcomes
The trust offers a comprehensive service for neonates of more than 23 weeks
gestation, via the neonatal unit (special care baby unit). In order to monitor the
quality of care delivered by this service the trust takes part in an ongoing audit
with thirty units from the former Trent Region, Northamptonshire and Yorkshire.
Key measures include:


Mortality – due to the small numbers these are presented as 3-year rolling
averages. As the table below shows the trust had significantly lower than
expected mortality rates and overall was ranked 4th out of the 30 units in the
audit.
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Proportion of ventilated babies less 32 weeks gestation receiving surfactant –
premature babies often suffer from respiratory distress syndrome caused by
an insufficiency of surfactant production, which prevents the lungs from
collapsing. In order to prevent this surfactant can be given to premature
babies, via a breathing tube into the lungs.
Proportion of mothers receiving at least 1 dose of steroid prior to delivery Antenatal steroids are given before birth, to help the lungs of a premature
fetus before delivery. Some babies may be delivered before antenatal
steroids can be administered.

Figure 15 – Neonatal Mortality Rates
Data – 2006/8
Actual

Expected

Mortality
ratio

95% CI

Mortality - 20-32
weeks

4

8.7

0.46

(0.00, 0.84)

Mortality - 25-32
weeks

2

7.0

0.29

(0.00, 0.64)

Figure 16 – Neonatal Outcome Measures
Chesterfield Royal

Network

2005

2006

2007

2008

2008

% of ventilated
babies < 32 weeks
gestation receiving
surfactant

100%

93%

100%

100%

93%

% of mothers
receiving at least 1
dose of steroid prior
to delivery

90%

100%

97%

92%

85%

3.9 Patient Experience
In addition to the patient experience measures reported in part one of the report
the trust also completed the national outpatient survey in 2009.
In the
benchmarking information produced by the Healthcare Commission performance
is rated using 3 categories:




Red – shows worst performing 20% of trusts;
Green – shows best performing 20% of trusts; and
Orange – shows intermediate 60% of trusts.

Overall the trust’s performance is positive with:




20 questions rated as green.
20 questions rated as orange.
No questions rated as red.
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3.10 Surgical Safety
Surgical care is an essential component of healthcare and while surgical
procedures are intended to save lives, unsafe surgical care can cause substantial
harm. In England and Wales 129,419 incidents relating to surgical specialties
were reported to the National Patient Safety Agency’s (NPSA) Reporting and
Learning System (RLS) from 1 January to 31 December 2007.
The WHO Surgical Safety Checklist is designed to reduce the number of errors
and complications resulting from surgical procedures by improving team
communication and by verifying and checking essential care interventions. The
NPSA has adapted the checklist for use in England and Wales, which they issued
via a safety alert in January 2009. Organisations were required to agree an
action plan to introduce the checklist by June 2009 and for all actions to be
completed by February 2010.
The trust chose to review all of its pre-operative documentation and launched
revised documentation which incorporates all elements of the WHO Surgical
Safety Checklist in November 2009. Prior to launch a range of awareness raising
took place and in 2010/11 the trust plans to audit completion of the checklist to
ensure that it is being used appropriately.
3.11 Cancer Urgent Referral to Treatment Waiting Times
Timely diagnosis and treatment for cancer are key to improving survival rates and
the Trust therefore aims to meet, and surpass, the national target that 85% of
patients receive their first definitive treatment for cancer within two months (62
days) of GP or dentist urgent referral for suspected cancer
The calculation of performance against this standard takes account of all cancer
patients referred to Chesterfield Royal Hospital irrespective of who refers them or
where their treatment actually takes place, whether it is in Chesterfield or
Sheffield.
Target

Outcome

National standard

85%

% cancer patients treated at CRH and
STH within 62 days of referral

92.2%

Breakdown of monitoring figures
Total pts treated in Chesterfield

457

Total treated in Chest. within 62 days

439

Total pts treated in Sheffield

130(65)*

Total treated in Sheff. within 62 days

85(42.5)*

* Trusts share of these patients shown in brackets

127

3.12 18 Week Referral-to-Treatment Waiting Times
In order to ensure that patients receive timely treatment the Trust monitors the
following:



% inpatients treated within 18 weeks of referral, including wait for outpatients,
diagnostics and inpatient treatment – target 90%
% non-admitted patients treated within 18 weeks of referral, including wait for
outpatients and diagnostics – target 95%

The table below shows the performance for 2009/10.
Target

Outcome

90% inpatients treated within 18 weeks
of referral, including wait for outpatients,
diagnostics and inpatient treatment

98.7%

95% non-admitted patients treated
within 18 weeks of referral, including
wait for outpatients and diagnostics

99.6%

Statements Provided by the Commissioning PCT, Local Involvement
Networks (LINks) or Improvement and Scrutiny Committee
The trust shared the draft Quality Account to Derbyshire County PCT, Derbyshire
LINk and the Derbyshire County Council Improvement and Scrutiny Committee
for comment prior to publication. Both the LINk and the Improvement and
Scrutiny Committee declined to give comments. The PCT provided the following
statement:
Statement from Derbyshire County PCT
General Comments
NHS Derbyshire County (the PCT) believes that Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust (the trust) has produced a comprehensive quality account
which broadly reflects the information received by NHS Derbyshire County
through its contract monitoring arrangements.
Measuring & Improving Performance
The PCT has well-established mechanisms in place for checking service quality
as part of its contract monitoring arrangements. The PCT has agreed with the
trust to monitor quality in a wide range of areas, not all of which can be detailed in
this quality account.
A larger number of quality measures that attract an incentive payment have been
agreed for the year 2010/11 covering topics such as patient satisfaction,
operations on a day case basis, reduction in the number of days spent in
hospital, care for people suffering a stroke and the safeguarding of children and
vulnerable adults.
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The PCT is pleased that ways to measure nursing care and patient experience
surveys are being introduced. Measuring the level of nursing care is expected to
have a positive impact on the experience of the trust’s patients. The targets are
challenging and while some areas were weaker than others, overall results are
improving month on month. The introduction of infection control measures will be
a positive addition.
The trust achieved its targets for both MRSA bloodstream infections and
Clostridium Difficile infections and the 2010/11 targets are very challenging.
The trust has performed well in carrying out caesarean sections in less than 20%
of all births and has a high number of planned caesarean section births
performed under regional (epidural) anaesthesia.
The number of new mothers who start and maintain breastfeeding is monitored
as a national and local target. The trust did not meet its target of 74.3% of women
who start breastfeeding and achieved a rate of 67.4% (last reported figure).
In 2009/10 the PCT provided an incentive payment for improvement in the
management of patients who break the hip (femur) bone. Thresholds were set;
40% of patients were to have their operation within 24 hours and 75% within 48
hours of admission. It is pleasing to note that these thresholds were surpassed
and that the trust set even higher goals.
The PCT will continue to work with the trust to ensure continued improvements in
the quality of care.
Additional Comments
Quality Accounts are intended to help the general public understand how their
local health services are performing and with that in mind they should be written
in plain English. The PCT has concerns that the format and language of this
Quality Account does not help local people to understand the level of
performance.
In light of this last comment the trust intends to produce a more user-friendly
version of the quality account which will be published on its website and via NHS
choices on 30 June 2010.
How to provide Feedback on the Account
The trust welcomes feedback on the content of its quality account and
suggestions for inclusion in future reports. Comments should be directed to:
Lisa Howlett
Head of Clinical Governance
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Calow
Chesterfield
S44 5BL
Tel: 01246 513744
Email: lisa.howlett@chesterfieldroyal.nhs.uk
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Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust

Statement on Internal Control
2009/10
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STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the achievement of the NHS foundation trust’s
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and
departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with
the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the
NHS foundation trust is administered prudently and economically and that
resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my
responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer
memorandum.
There are external arrangements in place for working with partner organisations.
Those operating at chief executive level are as follows:


East Midlands Chief Executives’ Forum;



East Midlands Acute Trust Chief Executives’ Partnership;



NORCOM;



South Yorkshire Partnership of Acute Chief Executives;



Derbyshire Chief Executives’ Group;



Derbyshire Partnership Forum; and



Foundation Trust Network group for chairman & chief executives.

There are similar arrangements in place for working with partner organisations
that operate at director level for finance, business and service planning, clinical
governance, communication and risk management.
Risk Management
The board of directors is responsible for the management of key risks. The key
areas of those risks are managed through:
Strategic business risk management
Integration of risk management
Board assurance framework
Clinical and non-clinical risk registers
Financial risk management
Compliance with targets
The board of directors receives details of key risks through regular board reports.
The monthly finance and activity report records all key financial risks. The
performance report records all key operational risks and the quarterly clinical
standards and governance report records all the key clinical risks.
The board of directors also addresses the risks when self-assessment
documentation is completed for Monitor. This arrangement ensures that the
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board of directors understands the strategic business risks to the trust in the
context of the trust’s strategic direction.
The risk committee, whose membership comprises of the chairman of the trust,
the chairmen of the trust’s audit committee and clinical governance committee
and the chief executive, is a board committee responsible for reviewing risks in
detail and providing additional assurance to the board of directors on the key
risks in the organisation. An up to date copy of the trust’s corporate risk register
is provided to all board of director meetings.
The board of directors is supported by four committees (each chaired by a nonexecutive director) that ensure effective monitoring and accountability
arrangements for the system of internal control. These, and their key
responsibilities, are set out below:
Audit Committee



Financial risk management.
Soundness of overall system of internal control.

Risk Committee




Consider principal risks in detail.
Soundness of overall system of risk management.
Provide assurance to the board of directors about the key risks.

Clinical Governance Committee



Clinical risk management.
Clinical governance.

Remuneration Committee


Review and determine the executive directors’ remuneration package.

The minutes and other key documents from these committees are submitted to
the board of directors. The chairmen of the audit, remuneration and clinical
governance committees are non-executive directors and members of the board of
directors. The risk committee is chaired by the chairman of the trust. Membership
of the four committees is shared among the non-executive directors.
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level
rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives;
it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies,
aims and objectives of the Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in Chesterfield Royal Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts.
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Description of the Principal Risks Facing the Trust during 2009/10
In the annual plan for 2009/10 the following key risks were identified:















Lord Darzi’s review. Potential impact of service reconfiguration following
next stage of review.
Non-achievement of C difficile target. Failure to meet contractual standard &
increase in risk to patients. Increased risk of litigation & loss of reputation.
Non-achievement of bMRSA target. Failure to meet contractual standard &
increase in risk to patients. Increased risk of litigation & loss of reputation.
The risk of trust not complying with terms of authorisation and not
undertaking satisfactory self- certification.
Delivery of cost improvement targets. The trust was required to deliver
£16.2m in cost efficiency savings over the next 3 years in order to deliver its
financial and service strategy.
Inability to accurately forecast the impact of changes to method of valuing
the trust’s estate. (To a modern equivalent asset valuation – MEAV).
Delivering activity plans and coping with potential reductions to or increases
in referrals.
Managing the cost base and delivery of the planned I&E surplus.
Significant changes in funding and policy (eg PBR). Effects on income and
service delivery.
Maintaining strong liquidity.
Fraud and Corruption. The trust is at risk of fraud and corruption from staff,
contactors and users of the trust’s services. Failure to have a dedicated
local counter fraud specialist (LCFS) can jeopardise the trust’s compliance
with healthcare standards.
Balancing the capital expenditure programme to receipt of resource from
Foundation Trust Financing Facility (FTFF).
Financial implications of introducing the new standard contract from 2010/11
onwards.

All of these risks have been mitigated through close monitoring and performance
and are no longer regarded as principal risks. In some cases eg the delivery of
cost improvement plans, the action to address the risk is reflected in the trust’s
2010/11 annual service and financial plan.
Capacity to Handle Risk
Leadership of the Risk Management Process
The chief executive has overall responsibility for the management of risk of the
trust. The other members of the executive team exercise lead responsibility for
the specific types of risk as follows:





Clinical risk
Operational risk
Business risk
Financial risk

Chief Nurse and Medical Director
Director of Allied Clinical and Facilities Services
Director of Planning and Performance
Director of Finance and Contracting
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The role of the directors is to ensure that appropriate arrangements and systems
are in place to achieve:





Identification and assessment of risks or hazards;
Elimination or reduction of risk to an acceptable level;
Compliance with internal policies and procedures, and statutory and external
requirements; and,
Integration of functional risk management systems and development of the
assurance framework.

These responsibilities are managed operationally through corporate managers
supporting the directors working with designated lead managers in directorates.
The trust has a risk management strategy in place, which is reviewed annually
and endorsed by the board of directors. The strategy is regularly reviewed during
the year to ensure that it is fully embedded into the day-to-day management of
the organisation and conforms to best practice. The strategy defines risk and the
trust’s risk appetite and identifies individual and collective responsibility for risk
management within the organisation. It also sets out the trust’s approach to the
identification, assessment, scoring, treatment and monitoring of risk.
Staff Empowerment and Training
Staff are equipped to manage risk in a variety of ways and at different levels of
strategic and operational functioning. These include:


Formal in-house training for staff as a whole in dealing with specific everyday
risks, e.g. fire safety, health and safety, moving and handling, infection
control, security;



Training and induction in incident investigation, including documentation, root
cause analysis, steps to prevent or minimise recurrence and reporting
requirements; and,



Developing shared understanding of broader business, financial,
environmental and clinical risks through collegiate clinical, professional and
managerial groups (such as strategy and performance group, professional
advisory group, clinical risk group) and sharing good practice with other peer
foundation trusts through appropriate forums such as the Foundation Trust
Network.

The Risk and Control Framework
The risk management strategy


Defines the objectives of risk management and the process and structure by
which it is undertaken;



Defines the trust’s risk appetite which articulates the content and range of
risk(s) that the Trust might take. In its consideration of this range the Trust
holds paramount its objective for providing high quality care and services for
its patients and the community.



Sets out the lead responsibilities and the organisational arrangements as to
how these are discharged;
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Sets out the key policies, procedures and protocols governing risk
management; and,



Identifies the link between directorate and corporate risk management.

The risk evaluation and treatment model is based on a grading matrix of
likelihood and consequence. This produces a risk score to enable the risk to be
prioritised against other risks. The score, in turn, is linked to a matrix of the cost
and responsibility of risk treatment so that either the risk is addressed locally by
the directorate within its resources or it feeds into the organisation wide risk
register. The risks are also mapped to the strategic themes and objectives
identified within the trust’s planning process along with the various other
initiatives to confirm the score given to a risk.
The trust has an assurance framework. This identifies the most serious risks
facing the trust in the achievement of its principal objectives, the sources of
assurance currently available both internally and externally, the classification of
principal risk which identifies the lead responsibility within the trust and how the
risks are being managed or treated. Any gaps in sources of assurance are
identified on the document along with actions and timescale for addressing the
gaps.
During 2009/10, the board of directors has received assurances on the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. The assurance framework is
considered to be a living document and has been updated throughout the year.
The trust has a fully updated organisation wide risk register.
The managers with responsibility for clinical and non-clinical risk management:



Ensure the effective identification and treatment of risks in relation to NHSLA
standards; and,
Develop whole system solutions to clinical and non-clinical operational risks
that have the greatest potential to disrupt patient care.

A number of forums exist that allow communication with stakeholders, the forums
provide a mechanism for risk identified by stakeholders that affects the trust to be
discussed and where appropriate action plans can be developed to resolve any
issues.
Examples of the forums and methods of communication with stakeholders are as
follows:
Council of Governors
The council has a formal role as a stakeholder body for the wider community in
the governance of the trust.



Regular newsletters; and,
Minutes of the council of governors meetings including joint meetings with the
board of directors.
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Staff





Payslip bulletin and electronic newsletter;
Staff meetings and team briefings;
Annual statement on the ‘fair blame’ policy on incident reporting; and,
Staff surveys.

Public and Service Users





Patient surveys and face to face interviews;
PALS service;
Patient forum;and,
Meetings with voluntary and self-help groups.

Partner Organisations



Other health and social care community (e.g. clinical leaders’ group, whole
systems capacity group); and,
Clinical and professional networks in East Midlands.

Information Governance Assurance Programme
Information governance (IG) remains a high priority for the trust. Reporting
arrangements for IG have been completely revised, and the trust has appointed a
new caldicott guardian and SIRO (senior information risk officer). All clinical
directorates have designated a senior member of staff to be responsible for
safeguarding patient information.
The following changes to trust IG processes have been made:


Dr Ian Gell, medical director, has taken over as caldicott guardian;



Alfonzo Tramontano, chief nurse has been appointed as SIRO;



A new committee, the information governance group has been established to
oversee all information governance issues;



Each clinical directorate has appointed an information asset owner (IAO) to
provide leadership at local level;



A staff awareness campaign (‘The IG Code’) has been undertaken in
conjunction with East Midlands SHA;

Information governance risks are managed in accordance with trust risk
management standards, and, where appropriate, recorded on directorate risk
registers. Each IT system has a designated system manager, with defined
responsibilities, including risk management and responsibility for identifying IG
risks.
All staff are governed by a code of confidentiality, and access to data held on IT
systems is restricted to authorised users. Information governance training is
incorporated as appropriate in all IT training sessions, and the corporate
induction process has a dedicated IG session.
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The trust has confirmed through the Information Governance Toolkit (IGT) that all
Statement of Compliance standards have been achieved (i.e. scored a minimum
of ‘2’ on a scale of 0-3.
During 2009/10 the trust made 2 serious untoward incident reports (SUIs):


A copy of a set of casenotes which were sent to a patient in the post was lost
by the Royal Mail. Procedures have been reviewed to ensure that the post is
only used when absolutely necessary and any such documentation is sent by
recorded delivery.



A trust PC was stolen from PCT-owned premises. The PC was fully
protected by the national standard encryption software, and the incident
investigation concluded that there had been no loss of data or breach of
confidentiality.

Compliance with NHS Pension Scheme Regulations
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme,
control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within
the Scheme regulations are complied with.
This includes ensuring that
deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments in to the Scheme
are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme
records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the
Regulations.
Compliance with Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Legislation
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations
under equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.
Compliance with Climate Change Adaptation Reporting to Meet the
Requirements Under the Climate Change Act, 2008
The foundation trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction
Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil
contingency requirements as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure
that this organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the
Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.
Compliance with Care Quality Commission Targets
The foundation trust is fully compliant with the core Standards for Better Health
and reported no significant lapses in compliance with the requirements of the
core standards during the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010.
The trust applied to register with the Care Quality Commission on 28 January
2010 in preparation for registration from 1 April 2010 and was registered with no
compliance conditions.
Compliance with the NHS Constitution
The trust operates with regard to the NHS Constitution in all its decisions and
actions concerning its staff and service users.
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Annual Quality Accounts
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health
Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 to prepare Quality Accounts for
each financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards
on the form and content of annual Quality Reports which incorporate the above
legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The Clinical Governance Committee has been identified as the Board subcommittee with responsibility for the development of the trust’s annual quality
account. This ensures that there is both executive and non-executive input into
the development of the report.
The Clinical Governance Committee receives quarterly updates on clinical quality
and has been responsible for the development of a clinical quality strategy. In
addition, the Chief Nurse and Medical Director have led negotiations with the
PCT on the agreement of the quality schedule and specifically, the CQUINs
(Clinical Quality Indicators). These documents have formed the basis of the
Quality Account.
In addition,




The Board has reviewed the draft versions of the annual Quality Account and
has considered ongoing compliance with the priorities via the quarterly
Clinical Standards and Governance report presented during the year.
The Chief Nurse has presented the draft Quality Account to the Council of
Governors, who also receive the quarterly Clinical Standards and
Governance report.
The draft Quality Account has been shared with; the PCT so that they can
check the accuracy of its content with regard to the services we provide; the
Derbyshire Improvement and Scrutiny Committee and the Derbyshire Local
Involvement Network.

Quality - Review of Effectiveness
In 2009 the Trust produced its first Quality Report. This included a number of
aspirational areas that the Trust focused on, mirroring some of the key priorities
of the NHS Operating Framework. For 2010 the Trust has produced a Quality
Account in line with Department of Health and Monitor Guidance.
The Quality Account contains information that is subject to internal and, in many
cases, external validation. In all instances the information has been made
available to the public through the quarterly clinical standards and governance
reports that are provided to the open meeting of the council of governors and
through reports produced by regulatory bodies.
The trust has clear information governance arrangements in place and has
achieved level 2 on the Statement of Compliance standards in the Information
Governance Toolkit 2010. There are no identified gaps in assurance in the Board
Assurance Framework relating to the trust’s Quality Accounts.
The trust’s report on quality is subject to review by its external auditors who will
report on their review of the arrangements that the trust has in put in place to
secure the data quality of information included in the Quality Accounts. A formal
opinion on the 2009/10 report is not required.
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Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Use of Resources
During the year the board of directors has received regular reports informing of
the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources. The reports
provide detail on the financial, clinical and performance of the trust during the
previous period and highlight any areas through benchmarking or traffic light
system where there are concerns. The executive managers of the trust supply
these reports.
Internal audit has reviewed the systems and processes in place during the year
and published reports detailing the required actions within specific areas to
ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources is
maintained, the outcome of these reports are graded according to the level of
outstanding risks within the area.
The board of directors has also received assurances on the use of resources
from agencies outside the trust including Monitor. Monitor requires the board of
directors to self assess on a six-monthly basis. Monitor scores the assessment
on a traffic light system.
The trust further obtains assurance of its systems and processes and tests its
benchmarking by membership of the foundation trust network where other
foundation trusts share good practice.
Internal Audit Assurance Statement
The trust has received a statement from its internal auditors that, based on the
work undertaken in 2009/10, significant assurance can be given that there is a
sound system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives,
and that controls are being applied consistently.
The internal auditors report that the basis for forming their opinion was:






An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance
Framework and supporting processes;
An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from audit
assignments reported throughout the year. This assessment has taken
account of the relative materiality of these areas and management’s progress
in addressing control weaknesses;
An assessment of the process by which the organisation has arrived at its
declaration in respect of the Standards for Better Health; and
Any reliance that is being placed upon third party assurances, and, in
particular findings from LCFS local or national proactive exercises.

In support of the opinion the internal auditors have stated that:
The design and operation of the Assurance Framework and associated
processes were found to be operating well, with no significant recommendations
being made or any gaps in assurance being identified.
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The range of individual opinions arising from risk based audit assignments,
contained within the risk based plans that have been reported throughout the
year resulted in (from 25 undertaken): 20 receiving substantial assurance, four
receiving adequate assurance and one review on Information Governance
receiving limited assurance. For this review, a suitable action plan has been put
in place with the majority of recommendations already being implemented in
year.
The trust has its own recommendation tracking process, whereby a report of
outstanding recommendations and on completed recommendations is submitted
to each audit committee along with internal audit verification of completed
actions. Recommendations are receiving adequate management attention.
The auditors reported that there were no significant issues that should be flagged
within the trust’s Statement on Internal Control.
Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the executive
managers within the NHS foundation trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework, and comments
made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports. I
have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the board, the audit committee
and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.
My review is also informed by:


Received accreditation of the trust in June 2009 for NHSLA at level two for
general standards;



Maintained accreditation granted in June 2007 at level three of the CNST
maternity standards;



Achieving practice plus accreditation for IWL (March 2006);



External audit management letter;



Confirmation by Monitor through six-monthly monitoring that the trust is
compliant with Monitor’s regime with:





a financial risk rating of at least 5 throughout the year;
a mandatory services risk rating of green throughout the year;
a governance risk rating of green throughout the year; and,
confirmation that the trust has declared full compliance with the Care
Quality Commission’s core standards for better health, 2009/10.
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I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the committees identified above,
by the board of director’s monitoring of corporate and directorate performance, by
the publication of audit reports in line with their work programme by internal audit
during the year, and by the evidence of the assessment of the trust and the
capacity and capability of the board of directors by Monitor in relation to its
financial management, governance arrangements and risk management
systems, the board of directors’ self-certification to Monitor.
Conclusion
There are no significant internal control issues that have been identified during
the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 that require disclosure in this statement.

Eric Morton
Chief executive and accounting officer
4 June 2010
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Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010

Statement of the Chief Executive's responsibilities as the Accounting Officer of Chesterfield
Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS Foundation
Trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the propriety
and regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and the keeping of proper accounts,
are set out in the accounting officers' Memorandum issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS
Foundation Trusts ('Monitor').
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed the Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the
Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and
expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
- observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
- make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
- State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the
financial statements; and
- prepare the Financial statements on a going concern basis.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable
him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act.
The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation Trust
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in
Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Signed ........................................................…

Date: 4 June 2010

ERIC MORTON
Chief Executive
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Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010

FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out on the following pages and comprise the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in
Taxpayers' Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

The accounts have been prepared by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with
Schedule 7, of the NHS Act 2006 in the form in which Monitor, the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation
Trusts, has, with the approval of HM Treasury, directed.

Signed ........................................................…

Date: 4 June 2010

Eric Morton (Chief Executive)
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Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2010

Note

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Income from patient care activities

4

Other operating income

5

160,437
17,183

146,382
15,946

Operating expenses
OPERATING SURPLUS
FINANCE COSTS
Finance income
Finance expense

6

(166,994)

(152,911)

10,626

9,417

140
(44)
(37)

1,037
(22)
(37)

(3,054)
(2,995)

(2,644)
(1,666)

7,631

7,751

(1,235)

(3,074)

311

615

(329)

(380)

6,378

4,912

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

0
7,631
7,631

0
7,751
7,751

0
6,378
6,378

0
4,912
4,912

14
15

Finance expense - unwinding of discount on provisions
PDC Dividends payable
NET FINANCE COSTS
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment losses property, plant
and equipment
Increase in the donated asset reserve due to receipt of donated
assets
Reduction in donated asset reserve in respect of depreciation,
impairment, and/or disposal of donated assets
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Note: Allocation of Profits for the period:
(a) Surplus for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent.
TOTAL

(b) Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent.
TOTAL
All operations are continuing.
The notes on pages 6 to 45 form part of these accounts
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2010

Note
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Non-current assets for sale and assets held in
disposal groups
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

1 April 2008
£000

1,248
100,257
676
102,181

645
98,104
937
99,686

437
97,051
509
97,997

18
20

1,184
5,608

1,012
3,301

953
4,210

19
28

130
27,945
34,867

0
21,209
25,522

0
15,592
20,755

21
23
26
22

(11,381)
(400)
(325)
(1,223)
(13,329)

(10,487)
(57)
(376)
(1,822)
(12,742)

(9,751)
(102)
(417)
(1,534)
(11,804)

123,719

112,466

106,948

(5,068)
(1,573)
(352)
(6,993)

(218)
(1,593)
(307)
(2,118)

(275)
(1,446)
(519)
(2,240)

116,726

110,348

104,708

49,077
31,853
2,093
33,703

49,077
33,256
2,111
25,904

48,349
36,550
1,881
17,928

116,726

110,348

104,708

23
26
22

Total assets employed
Financed by (taxpayers' equity)
Public Dividend Capital
Revaluation reserve
Donated asset reserve
Income and expenditure reserve

31 March 2009
£000

16
17
20

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

31 March 2010
£000

27

Total taxpayers' equity
The notes on pages 6 to 45 form part of these accounts

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 June 2010 and signed on its behalf
by:

………………………………………………… Eric Morton (Chief Executive)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2010

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2009 - as previously
stated
Surplus for the year
Revaluation losses and impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment
Increase in donated asset reserve due to receipt of
donated assets
Reduction in donated asset reserve in respect of
depreciation, impairment, and/or disposal of on
donated assets
Transfers to the income and expenditure account in
respect of assets disposed of
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2010

Total

Public Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

Donated Assets
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

110,348

49,077

33,256

2,111

25,904

7,631

0

0

0

7,631

(1,235)

0

(1,235)

0

0

311

0

0

311

0

(329)

0

0

(329)

0

0

0

(168)

0

168

116,726

49,077

31,853

2,093

33,703

The notes on pages 6 to 45 form part of these accounts
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2009

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2008 - as previously
stated
Surplus for the year
Revaluation losses and impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment
Increase in donated asset reserve due to receipt of
donated assets
Reduction in donated asset reserve in respect of
depreciation, impairment, and/or disposal of on
donated assets
Transfers to the income and expenditure account in
respect of assets disposed of
Public Dividend Capital received
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2009

Total

Public Dividend
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

Donated Assets
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

104,708

48,349

36,550

1,881

17,928

7,751

0

0

0

7,751

(3,074)

0

(3,074)

0

0

615

0

0

615

0

(380)

0

0

(380)

0

0

0

(220)

(5)

225

728

728

0

0

0

110,348

49,077

33,256

2,111

25,904

The notes on pages 6 to 45 form part of these accounts
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2010
2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

10,626

9,417

10,626

9,417

5,947
3,645
(329)
(2,041)
(172)
528
(554)
(107)
(17)
17,526

6,470
999
(380)
481
(59)
1,047
76
69
0
18,120

135
(521)
(12,588)
17

1,039
(137)
(11,366)
1

(12,957)

(10,463)

0
5,200
(58)
(24)
(14)
(2,987)
0

728
0
(102)
(3)
(19)
(2,644)
0

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

2,117

(2,040)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

6,686

5,617

21,209

15,592

27,895

21,209

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus from continuing operations
Operating surplus
Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments
Transfer from the donated asset reserve
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Other movements in operating cash flows
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sales of property, plant and equipment
Net cash generated used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Loans received
Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Interest paid
Interest element of finance lease
PDC Dividend paid
Cash flows from other financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 2009
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2010

The notes on pages 6 to 45 form part of these accounts
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1 Accounting policies and other information
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS foundation trusts shall meet the accounting
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM) which shall be agreed with
HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
2009/10 NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual issued by Monitor. The accounting policies
contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury‟s
Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation
to the accounts.
1.1 Basis of preparation
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of property.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
1.2 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)and International Finance Reporting Interpretation Committee interpretations as endorsed
by the European Union, applicable at 31 March 2010 and appropriate to Foundation Trusts as noted above.
This is the first set of full year results for the Trust prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting policies.
Previously reported 2008/2009 financial statements have been accordingly restated to comply with IFRS with
the date of transition to IFRS being 1st April 2008, which is the beginning of the comparative period for the
year to 31 March 2010.
1.3 Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is
measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. Income is shown gross except where an
administrative arrangement exists, whereby the income is netted off with the corresponding expenditure in
accordance with the FT ARM.The main source of income for the trust is contracts with commissioners in
respect of healthcare services.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that
income is deferred. Where income has not been received prior to the year end but the provision of a
healthcare service has commenced i.e. partially completed spells, then income relating to the patient activity
is accrued. The accrued income is estimated on the number of days of incomplete spells at an average daily
tariff adjusted to reflect case-mix.
The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of
treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an
insurer. The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and
Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income is
measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for
unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been
met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.
1.4 Expenditure on Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is
received from employees.
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1.4 Expenditure on Employee Benefits (continued)
The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is
recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into
the following period.
NHS Pension Scheme
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an
unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed
under the direction of Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the NHS foundation
trust to identify its share of the underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a
defined contribution scheme. Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as
and when they become due. Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the
scheme except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs
is charged to the operating expenses at the time the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the
method of payment.
1.5 Expenditure on other goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and
is measured at the fair value of the consideration payable for those goods and services. Expenditure is
recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as
property, plant and equipment. Expenditure is shown gross except where an administrative arrangement
exists, whereby the expenditure is netted off with the corresponding income in accordance with the FT ARM.
1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is capitalised where:
• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust;
• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably and is in excess of £5,000.
Additionally, PPE will be capitalised where it is made up of a group of assets which individually have a cost of
£250 and collectively have a cost of at least £5,000, are functionally interdependent, with broadly
simultaneous purchase and disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or
where it is part of the setting up cost, of a new building, or refurbishment of a new ward or unit, irrespective of
their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different
asset lives e.g. plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated
over their own useful economic lives.
Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly
attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Cost includes professional fees but not
borrowing costs, which the FT Annual Reporting Manual does not allow to be capitalised and are recognised
as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. All assets are measured
For property assets, the Trust follows the revaluation model outlined in IAS 16.
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1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Specialist buildings are valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modern equivalent asset basis.
Non-specialised buildings are valued at market value on an existing use basis.
Assets under construction (AUC) are shown at actual expenditure to date and are not revalued.
Revaluations are performed by professional valuers. A full revaluation will be performed at least every 5
years, and the Trust will undertake an annual review to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially
different from those that would be determined at the statement of financial position date. A full revaluation
with a prospective date of 31 March 2010 was undertaken in February 2010.
For newly constructed or acquired property, a valuation is only undertaken when there is an indication that
the initial cost is different to its fair value. Otherwise the asset is only revalued on the next occasion when all
of the assets of that class are revalued.
Plant and equipment assets are not revalued but carried at depreciated historical cost. The FT ARM permits
depreciated historical cost as a proxy to fair value when the life of the assets are short or the assets are of
low value, providing that both the useful life of the asset and the consumption of economic benefit reflected
by the depreciation policy are realistic.
Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable
cost is added to the asset‟s carrying value. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the
replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part
replaced is derecognised.
Depreciation
Items of Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic lives in a
manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is
considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment which has been
reclassified as „Held for Sale‟ ceases to be depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of
construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use.
Property assets are depreciated on a component basis over the asset lives determined by the professional
valuers.
Plant and equipment assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the following asset life ranges:
Plant & machinery
Transport equipment
Information technology
Furniture & fittings

2 to 10 years
7 to 10 years
2 to 10 years
5 to 10 years

Depreciation, asset lives and any residual amounts are reviewed annually.
Revaluation and impairment
Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where,
and to the extent that, they reverse an impairment previously recognised in operating expenses, in which
case they are recognised in operating income.
Decreases in asset values and impairments are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is
an available balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as an item of „other comprehensive income‟.
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1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as „Held for Sale‟ once all of the following criteria are met:
• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual
and customary for such sales;
• the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
- management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
- an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;
- the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;
- the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as „Held for Sale‟;
and
- the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or
significant changes made to it.
Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their
„fair value less costs to sell‟. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not revalued, except
where the „fair value less costs to sell‟ falls below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all
material sale contract conditions have been met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as
„Held for Sale‟ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the assets economic life is adjusted. The
asset is de-recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.
For the disposal of donated and government-granted assets, a transfer is made to or from the donated asset
reserve / government grant deferred income to the profit/loss on disposal account so that no profit or loss is
recognised in income or expenses. The remaining surplus or deficit in the donated asset or government
grant deferred income is then transferred to retained reserves.
1.7 Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold
separately from the rest of the Trust‟s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They
are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be
provided to, the Trust and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is more
than £5,000.
• Internally generated intangible assets
Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the
following can be demonstrated:
• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for
sale or use;
• the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;
• the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;
• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits e.g. the
presence of a market for its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the
asset;
• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete the
development and sell or use the asset; and
• the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.
• Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the
relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware
e.g. application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.
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1.7 Intangible assets (continued)
Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create,
produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or,
where no active market exists, at amortised historic cost as a proxy for fair value.
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or „fair value less costs to
sell‟.
Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.
1.8 Donated assets
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their current value on receipt with a matching credit to the
donated asset reserve. Donated assets are valued and depreciated as described in Note 1.6 above for
purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations are also taken to the donated asset reserve and, each
year, an amount equal to the depreciation charge on the asset is released from the donated asset reserve
to offset the expenditure. Similarly, any impairment on donated assets charged to expenditure is matched
by a transfer from the donated asset reserve. On sale of donated assets, the net book value of the donated
asset is transferred from the donated asset reserve to the income and expenditure reserve.
1.9 Government grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from primary care trusts or NHS
trusts for the provision of services. Grants from the Department of Health, including those for achieving
three star status, are accounted for as Government grants as are grants from the Big Lottery Fund.
Where the Government grant is used to fund revenue expenditure, it is taken to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure.
Where the grant is used to fund capital expenditure, the grant is held as deferred income and released to
operating income over the life of the asset in a manner consistent with the depreciation charge for that
asset. Any impairment on granted assets charged to expenditure is matched by a transfer from government
grant deferred income. On sale of granted assets, the net book value of the asset is transferred from
government grant deferred income to the income and expenditure reserve.
1.10 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in-first-out cost formula.
This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of inventories.
1.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not
more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of the
acquisition and that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of changes in
value. These balances exclude monies held in the NHS Foundation Trust‟s bank account belonging to
patients (see “third party assets” Note 1.20 below).
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1.12 Financial instruments
Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial
items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust‟s normal purchase,
sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs i.e. when
receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.
Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases
are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described in Note 1.13
below.
Regular way purchases or sales are recognised and de-recognised, as applicable, using the trade date.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or
the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and Measurement
Financial assets are categorised as Loans and receivable.
Financial liabilities are classified as „Other Financial liabilities‟.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments with are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets.
The Trust‟s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS debtors, accrued income and
„other debtors‟.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured
subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate
that discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or,
when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts exactly estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.
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1.12 Financial instruments (continued)
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and
charged to finance costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets is not capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Determination of fair value
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are determined from
discounted cash flow analysis.
Impairment of financial assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than
those held at „fair value through income and expenditure‟ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and
impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the asset. For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset‟s carrying amount and the present value
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset‟s original effective interest rate. The loss is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
directly or through the use of a bad debt provision. Bad debt provisions are used when there is some
uncertainty that the debt will be paid. Bad debts are written off directly only when there is certainty that the
debt will not be paid.
1.13 Leases
Finance leases
The Trust as a lessee
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset is
recorded as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both
are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease
payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which
produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability.
The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-recognised when the liability
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a
finance cost. The annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding
liability and is charged to Finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The Trust as a lessor
The Trust does not have any finance leases where it acts as the lessor.
Operating leases
The Trust as a lessee
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating expenses on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease
rentals and charged to operating expenses over the life of the lease.
The Trust as a lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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1.13 Leases (continued)
Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and
the classification for each is assessed separately. Leased land is treated as an operating lease.
1.14 Provisions
The Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the
statement of financial position date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where the
effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using
HM Treasury‟s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.
Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an
annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although the
NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the
Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the Trust is
disclosed at Note 26.
Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both
are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority
and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions,
and any „excesses‟ payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the
liability arises.
1.15 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or
more future events not wholly within the Trust‟s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in
Note 31 where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in Note 31, unless the probability of a transfer of
economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined as: possible obligations arising from past
events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the Trust‟s control; or present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of payment is
remote.
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1.16 Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over
liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS trust. HM Treasury has determined that PDC
is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the NHS foundation trust, is paid to the
Department of Health as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM
Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust. Relevant net assets are
calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for donated assets and cash held
with the Government Banking Service (GBS). Average relevant net assets are calculated as a simple mean
of opening and closing relevant net assets.
From 1 April 2009, the dividend payable is based on the actual average relevant net assets for the year
instead of forecast amounts.
1.17 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply
and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure
category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.
1.18 Corporation Tax
The Trust is a Health Service Body within the meaning of s519A ICTA 1988 and accordingly is exempt from
taxation in respect of income and capital gains within categories covered by this but the Trust is potentially
within the scope of corporation tax in respect of activities where income is received from a non public sector
source.
However the Trust has determined that it is has no corporation tax liability, as all activities are either
ancillary to healthcare or below the de minimus level of profit at which tax is payable.
1.19 Foreign exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the Trust are sterling. Foreign exchange transactions are
negligible.
1.20 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the
accounts since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note
to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury‟s Financial Reporting Manual. (Note
35)
1.21 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds
for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.
They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They
are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals
basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the Trust not been
bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).
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1.22 Accounting standards and amendments that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued by the IASB and
IFRIC but are not yet required to be adopted:
Effective for the next financial year ending 31 March 2011:
IFRS 3 (amendment) Business combinations (revised 2008) - various
amendments

(effective 1 July 2009)

IAS 27 (amendment) Consolidated and separate financial statements changes to reflect accounting for non-controlling (previously minority)
interests

(effective 1 July 2009)

IAS 39 (amendment) ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ - amendments relating to eligible hedged items, embedded
derivatives when reclassifying financial instruments

(effective 1 July 2009)

IFRIC 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners - guidance

(effective 1 July 2009)

IFRS 5 (amendment) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations - various amendments

(effective 1 July 2009)

IFRS 1 (amendment) First time adoption of IFRS - improvements to
structure. No changes to technical content.

(effective 1 July 2009)

IFRS 2 (amendment) Share-based payments - improvements to clarify
changes relating to IFRS 3

(effective 1 July 2009)

IAS 38 (amendment) Intangible assets - various amendments

(effective 1 July 2009)

IFRIC 9 (amendment) Reassessment of embedded derivatives improvements to clarify changes relating to IFRS 3

(effective 1 July 2009)

IFRIC 16 (amendment) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation removal of the restriction that prevented a hedging instrument from being
held by a foreign operation that itself is being hedged.
IFRS 5 (amendment) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations - clarification of disclosures
IFRS 8 (amendment) Operating segments - clarification that segment
information in relation to total assets is only required if such information is
reported to the chief operating decision maker
IAS 1 (amendment) Presentation of financial statements - clarifications
IAS 7 (amendment) Statement of cash flows - clarification that only
expenditure that results in the recognition of an asset can be classified as
a cash flow from investing activities

(effective 1 July 2009)
(effective 1 January 2010)

(effective 1 January 2010)
(effective 1 January 2010)

(effective 1 January 2010)

IAS 17 (amendment) Leases - clarification of treatment of leases
containing a land element

(effective 1 January 2010)

IAS 36 (amendment) Impairment of assets - clarification of largest unit to
which goodwill should be allocated

(effective 1 January 2010)

IAS 39 (amendment) Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement - additional guidance and clarification

(effective 1 January 2010)

IFRS 1 (amendment) First time adoption of IFRS - additional exemptions
for first time adopters

(effective 1 January 2010)

IFRS 2 (amendment) Share-based payments - clarification of group cashsettled share-based payment transactions

(effective 1 January 2010)

IAS 32 (amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation - clarification of
rights issues

(effective 1 February 2010)
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(continued)
Efffective for future financial years:
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments

(effective 1 July 2010)

IFRS 1 (amendment) First time adoption of IFRS - limited exemptions for
first time adopters in relation to IFRS 7 disclosures
IAS 24 (amendment) Related party transactions - revised definition of a
related party and amendment to disclosure requirements for governmentrelated bodies.
IFRIC 14 (amendment) IAS 19 The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirement and their interaction - removal of the
unintended consequences arising from the treatment of prepayments
where there is a minimum funding requirement

(effective 1 January 2011)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments - replacement of IAS 39

(effective 1 January 2013)

(effective 1 July 2010)

(effective 1 January 2011)

The Trust has considered the above new standards, interpretations and amendments to published
standards that are not yet effective and concluded that they are either not relevant to the Trust or that they
would not have a significant impact on the Trust‟s financial statements, apart from some additional
disclosures being required.
1.23 Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations issued that have been adopted early
The Trust has not early adopted any new accounting standards, amendments or interpretations.
2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Trust‟s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and
underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that
management has made in the process of applying the Trust‟s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Leases
The Trust has used its judgement to determine if substantially all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of leases are transferred from other entities in accordance with IAS 17. Only those arrangements
where we have judged that the risks and rewards are transferred to the Trust are included within finance
leases.
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The Trust has considered key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that could have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Although the Trust has made estimates within these financial statements such as incomplete patient spells
accrued income, annual leave accrual and provisions e.g. litigations and early retirements, the amounts
involved would not cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of liabilities within the next financial
year.
In addition an MEA Valuation was undertaken with a prospective date of March 2010 in February 2010. The
trust relies on the professional services of the valuation office for the accuracy of such valuations.
3. Operating segments
IFRS 8 requires disclosures of the results of significant operating segments if they are internally reported to
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Trust's CODM has been identified as the Board of
Directors who receive and monitor financial information. Significant operating segments are those whose
income is at least 10% of the Trust's overall income.
The Trust does not report income on a segmental basis to the CODM and as such is not required to
segmentally report its financial information. The Trust has concluded that it has only one segment, that of
'healthcare'.
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4.1 Income from activities

Elective income
Non elective income
Outpatient income
A&E income
Other clinical income*
Private patient income

2009/10

2008/09

£000

£000

33,269
58,067
24,579
5,169
39,262
91

31,989
52,622
25,119
4,779
31,763
110

160,437

146,382

The Trust's Terms of Authorisation agreed by Monitor set out the mandatory goods and services that
the Trust is required to provide as protected services. All of the income from activities except private
patient income shown above is derived from the provision of protected services.
*Other clinical income includes direct access services such as pathology £3,986,000 (2008/09:
£3,768,000), radiology £3,736,000 (2008/09: £1,427,000), audiology £1,162,000 (2008/09:
£1,163,000), critical care services £7,981,000 (2008/09: £7,814,000), child health services
£7,434,000 (2008/09: £7,190,000), community midwifery £1,086,000 (2008/09: £997,000), screening
services £1,382,000 (2008/09: £1,346,000), excluded high cost drugs £3,285,000 (2008/09:
£3,314,000) and NHS Injury Scheme income £937,000 (2008/09: £1,200,000).
NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 7.8% (2008/09: 7.8%) to
reflect expected rates of collection.

4.2 Income from activities

Primary Care Trusts
Department of Health
NHS Other
Non NHS:
- Private Patients
- Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
- NHS injury scheme

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

159,306
31
67

141,391
3,642
31

91
5
937

110
8
1,200

160,437

146,382

The Department of Health income relates to the Market Forces Factor adjustment to income based
on actual patient care activity.
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4.3 Private patient income

Private patient income
Total patient related income
Proportion (as percentage)

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

91
160,437

110
146,382

0.06%

0.08%

Section 44 of the National Health Service Act 2006 requires that the proportion of private patient
income to the total patient related income of NHS Foundation Trusts should not exceed its
proportion during 2002/03. The allowable percentage for Chesterfield Royal NHS Foundation Trust
was 0.2%. The note above shows that the Trust was compliant for both periods.
The definition of the private patient cap changed on 1 April 2010 following a judicial review. The new
definition has been widened to include more income within the scope of private patient income, and
the base year 2002/03 has been recalculated to give a cap of 0.99%. The Trust is confident that it
will still be compliant with the revised cap for future years.

5. Other operating income

Research and development
Education and training
Transfers from donated asset reserve in respect of depreciation on
donated assets
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other
Car parking Income
Catering
Property rentals
Staff accommodation rentals
Clinical Excellence Awards
Staff recharges
Pharmacy sales
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment
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2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

293
6,453

130
6,446

329
5,993
1,314
743
713
461
419
178
139
131
17

380
5,648
1,024
679
234
660
404
175
56
109
1

17,183

15,946
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6. Operating Expenses
6.1 Operating expenses comprise:

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from other NHS Bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Executive directors' costs
Non-executive directors costs
Staff costs
Drug costs
Supplies and services - clinical (excl. drugs)
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Increase in bad debt provision
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairments of property, plant and equipment
Auditor's remuneration - audit fees
Other auditor's remuneration
Clinical negligence
Consultancy, Legal & Professional Fees
Training costs
Security services
Hospitality and Publishing
Insurance Costs
Provisions arising in the period *
Provisions reversed unused in the period *
Losses, ex gratia and special payments
Other

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

1,350
55
956
126
701
125
109,079
10,022
15,598
4,526
2,022
1,089
6,530
27
5,785
162
3,645
58
0
2,814
484
542
329
250
170
223
(63)
11
378
166,994

1,210
47
1,025
152
740
123
102,437
8,329
13,978
3,741
2,172
1,020
6,641
136
6,349
121
999
59
0
1,494
378
528
291
255
162
306
(146)
41
323
152,911

* Note 26 provides further details
The above directors and staff costs include £10,727,000 pension contributions (2008/09: £9,973,000).
Research and development costs, mainly included in staff costs above, total £229,000 (2008/09
£108,635).
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7.1 Operating lease income
The Trust receives rental income for accommodation that is owned by the Trust but which is rented out to
third parties. The rental income received during the year and the future minimum lease payments
receivable are shown below.

Operating lease income
Rents recognised as income in the period
Contingent rents recognised as income in the period

Future minimum lease payments receivable
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

457
0

459
0

457

459

452
1,117
152

364
884
276

1,721

1,524

7.2 Arrangements containing an operating lease
The Trust pays rentals for property, plant and equipment that are used but not owned by the Trust. The
Trust has reviewed all contracts where the Trust has the right to use an asset to determine whether in
substance, an operating or finance lease exists. Where the Trust has determined that a lease
arrangement is that of a finance lease, these are disclosed in Note 25. Operating leases that have been
identified are shown below. The rentals paid during the year plus the future minimum lease payments due
are disclosed.
2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

324
0
0

312
0
0

324

312

275
126
0

274
271
0

401

545

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Sub-lease payments

Future minimum lease payments due
Not later than one year
Between one and five years
After 5 years

Total future sublease payments expected to be received: £nil (2009: £nil)
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8. Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers
A) Remuneration
Name and Title
Director Salary

2009-2010
Remuneration
for Clinical
duties

Benefits in kind

Director Salary

2008-2009
Remuneration
for Clinical
duties

Benefits in kind

(bands of
£5000)
£000

(bands of
£5000)
£000

£00

(bands of
£5000)
£000

(bands of
£5000)
£000

£00

Mr. E. Morton Chief Executive

160-165

0

10

170-175

0

7

Mr. P. Briddock Director of Finance & Contracting

135-140

0

10

135-140

0

10

Mr. T. Alty Corporate Secretary

Executive Directors

115-120

0

0

110-115

0

0

Mr. A. Tramontano Chief Nurse
(from 1 April 2009)

105-110

0

0

-

-

-

Dr. I. Gell Medical Director
(from 1 October 2009)

15-20

65-70

1

-

-

-

Mr. R. Clarke Director of Nursing
(retired 31 December 2008)

-

-

-

140-145

0

1

Mr. W. Lambert Medical Director
(retired 7 April 2008)

-

-

-

0-5

0-5

0

20-25

75-80

1

35-40

150-155

1

45-50

0

0

45-50

0

0

15-20

0

0

15-20

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

10-15

0

0

Mr. J. McDonnell Medical Director
(from 1 April 2008)
(retired 30 September 2009)
Non - Executive Directors
Mr. R. Gregory Chairman
Mr. M. Hall Non-Executive Director
Mrs. P. Liversidge
Non-Executive Director
Mr. D. Whitney
Non-Executive Director
Miss. D. Fern
Non-Executive Director
Mrs. J. Birkin
Non-Executive Director

All the Benefits in Kind shown relate to taxable expense allowances, & are shown in £hundreds

B) Pensions

Name and title

Mr. E. Morton - +
Chief Executive
Mr. P. Briddock Director of Finance & Contracting
Mr. T. Alty Corporate Secretary
Mr. A. Tramontano
Chief Nurse
(from 1 April 2009)
Dr. I. Gell
Medical Director
(from 1 October 2009)
Mr. J. McDonnell * Medical Director
(from 1 April 2008)
(retired 30 September 2009)

Real increase in Real increase in
pension sum at
lump sum at
age 60
age 60

Total accrued
pension at age
60 at 31 March
2010

Lump sum at
Cash
Cash
Real Increase in
age 60 related
Equivalent
Equivalent
Cash Equivalent
to accrued
Transfer Value Transfer Value Transfer Value
pension at 31
at 31 March
at 31 March
March 2010
2010
2009
(bands of £5000)
(bands of
£000
£5000)
£000
£000
£000
£000
100-105
305-310
2,548
2,070
374

(bands of
£2500)
£000
10-12.5

(bands of
£2500)
£000
32.5-35

0-2.5

5-7.5

20-25

70-75

372

316

0-2.5

0-2.5

35-40

115-120

799

715

48

12.5-15

37.5-40

30-35

100-105

544

299

231

2.5-5

7.5-10

50-55

160-165

1,218

959

105

(0-2.5)

(0-2.5)

75-80

235-240

n/a

1,907

n/a

40

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The
benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or
arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just
their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in another
scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS Pension Scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a
result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions
paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) .
* the pension and lump sum figures disclosed for Mr. J. McDonnell reflect his decision to commute part of his pension to a lump sum.
+ Mr. E. Morton was appointed interim Chief Executive at Mid Staffordshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on 5th March 2009 until 31st July 2009 . He remained Chief
Executive of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust whilst carrying out this additional role. The NHS FT Annual Reporting Manual requires that the amount
recharged in 2009-10 to Mid Staffordshire NHS FT be included in the Mid Staffs. NHS FT accounts and be excluded from the Directors salary figure above. If this
arrangement had not been in place Mr. E. Morton's Directors salary would have been in the 180 - 185k banding for 2009-10 and the 175 - 180k banding for 2008-09.
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9. Employee benefit expense and numbers
9.1 Employee expenses
Total
£000

2009/10
Permanent
£000

Other
£000

2008/09
Total
£000

88,297
6,000

87,874
6,000

423
0

81,827
5,666

10,727
0
4
4,756

10,727
0
4
0

0
0
0
4,756

9,973
0
206
5,505

109,784

104,605

5,179

103,177

Total
WTE

2009/10
Permanent
WTE

Other
WTE

2008/09
Total
WTE

Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants & other support staff
Nursing, midwifery & health visiting staff
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Bank & agency
Other

325
523
26
1,211
427
18
133
299

319
523
26
1,211
427
18
0
299

6
0
0
0
0
0
133
0

308
490
23
1,153
412
18
148
290

Total

2,962

2,823

139

2,842

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHS Pension
scheme
Pension costs - other contributions
Termination benefits
Agency/contract staff

9.2 Average number of employees (WTE basis)

WTE = Whole time equivalents

9.3 Employee benefits
There are no schemes which provide an employee benefit. No facilities, amenities/events were provided/held in the
periods of account.

9.4 Retirements due to ill-health
During the year to 31st March 2010 there were 3 early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health.
The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £111,000.
There were 4 ill-health retirements in the year to 31st March 2009, with estimated liabilities of £110,000.
The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Pensions Agency.
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10. Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable
under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an
unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as
if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation
every year. An outline of these follows:
a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into
account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme
members. The last such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and
covered the period from 1 April 1999 to that date. The conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the scheme had
accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion against the notional assets as at 31 March 2004.
In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of pensionable pay and most employees had up
to April 2008 paid 6%, with manual staff paying 5%.
Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 March 2004, and after consideration of
changes to the NHS Pension Scheme taking effect from 1 April 2008, his Valuation report recommended that employer
contributions could continue at the existing rate of 14% of pensionable pay, from 1 April 2008, following the introduction of
employee contributions on a tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on total earnings. On
advice from the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from time to time to reflect changes in the scheme‟s
liabilities.
b) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period by
updating the results of the full actuarial valuation.
Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set is provided to the scheme
actuary. At this point the assumptions regarding the composition of the scheme membership are updated to allow the scheme
liability to be valued.
The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2010, is based on detailed membership data as at 31 March 2008 (the
latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2010 with summary global member and accounting data.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the
annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These accounts can be viewed
on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
c) Scheme provisions
In 2008-09 the NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative
guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met
before these benefits can be obtained:
Annual pensions
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of
the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of
membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon
total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump
sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.
Pensions indexation
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on
changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.
Lump sum allowance
A lump sum is payable on retirement which is normally three times the annual pension payment.
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10. Pension costs (continued)
Ill health retirement
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement in certain circumstances, is available to members of the Scheme who are
permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties or regular employment effectively through illness or infirmity.
Death benefits
A death gratuity of twice their final year‟s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death
after retirement is payable.
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC‟s run by the Scheme‟s
approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
Transfer between funds
Scheme members have the option to transfer their pension between the NHS Pension Scheme and another scheme when they
move into or out of NHS employment.
Preserved benefits
Where a scheme member ceases NHS employment with more than two years service they can preserve their accrued NHS
pension for payment when they reach retirement age.
Compensation for early retirement
Where a member of the Scheme is made redundant they may be entitled to early receipt of their pension plus enhancement, at
the employer‟s cost.

11. Auditor's remuneration
Auditor's remuneration for the year for audit services was £66,000 (2008/09: £55,000). The amount shown in expenditure
(£58,000) is net of amounts over accrued in respect of 2008/09 audit fees paid during 2009/10.
Included within audit fees is £18,000 relating to work performed for Quality Accounts.
In 2008/09, audit fees included £6,900 for the review of the restatement of the opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2008 under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
There was unlimited liability for statutory audit work undertaken for both 2009/10 and 2008/09.

12. Public Sector Payment Policy
12.1 Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance
2009/10

2008/09

Number

£000

Number

£000

Total
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

61,257
59,347
96.9%

69,857
66,984
95.9%

66,360
63,902
96.3%

65,850
63,234
96.0%

Non NHS
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

58,573
56,787
97.0%

54,172
51,781
95.6%

63,652
61,253
96.2%

52,123
49,671
95.3%

NHS
Total bills paid in the period
Total bills paid within target
Percentage of bills paid within target

2,684
2,560
95.4%

15,685
15,203
96.9%

2,708
2,649
97.8%

13,727
13,563
98.8%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid NHS and non NHS payables by the due date or
within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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13. The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
No payments were made in respect of the Late Payment of Commercial Debt (Interest) Act 1998 in either period of account.
14. Finance Income
Finance income was received in the form of bank interest receivables totalling £140,000 in 2009/10 (2008/09: £1,037,000).

15. Finance costs - interest expense
Interest costs incurred during the year are as follows:

Loans from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Overdrafts
Finance leases
Other

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

29
1
14
0

0
0
19
3

44

22

During 2009/10, the Trust signed a 10 year loan agreement for £11.5m from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility (FTFF) to
fund the building of three new wards. The first drawdown of the loan was on 28 September 2009. The interest has accrued
from the date of this first drawdown and £23,000 was paid six months later on 15 March 2010. Interest arising on the loan from
15 March to 31 March 2010 has been accrued. The interest rate of the loan is 2.84%.
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16.1 Intangible assets

Gross cost at 1 April
Reclassifications
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Gross cost at 31 March
Amortisation at 1 April
Provided during the period
Amortisation at 31 March

Software
purchased
£000

Assets under
construction
£000

Total
31 March
2010
£000

Software
purchased
£000

Assets under
construction
£000

Total
31 March
2009
£000

1,127
192
341
12
1,672

192
(192)
412
0
412

1,319
0
753
12
2,084

839
151
137
0
1,127

151
(151)
192
0
192

990
0
329
0
1,319

674
162
836

0
0
0

674
162
836

553
121
674

0
0
0

553
121
674

284
2
286

151
0
151

435
2
437

452
1
453

192
0
192

644
1
645

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2008
- Donated at April 2008
- Total at 1 April 2008
Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2009
- Donated at April 2009
- Total at 1 April 2009

452
1
453

192
0
192

644
1
645

Net book value
- Purchased at 31 March 2010
- Donated at 31 March 2010
- Total at 31 March 2010

826
10
836

412
0
412

1,238
10
1,248

All intangible assets are unprotected.
Intangible assets totalling £12,000 (2008/09: £nil; 2007/08: £nil) were donated to the Trust by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust Charitable Funds.
All intangible assets under construction relate to software that has been purchased but not commissioned at the year end.

16.2 Intangible assets acquired by government grant
There are no intangible assets that have been acquired by government grant.

16.3 Economic life of intangible assets
The minimum and maximum economic lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Software - purchased

Min. Life
Years

Max. Life
Years

2

8

None of the Trust's intangible assets have indefinite useful economic lives.
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17. Property, plant and equipment
17.1 Property, plant and equipment for 2009/10 comprise the following elements:
Land

£000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2009
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments
Reclassifications
Transferred to disposal group as held for sale
Disposals
At 31 March 2010

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£000

Dwellings

£000

Assets under
construction and
payments on
account*
£000

Plant &
Machinery

£000

Transport
Equipment

£000

Information
Technology

£000

Furniture &
fittings

Total 31 March
2010

£000

£000

19,300
0
0
(1,760)
0
(45)
0
17,495

65,554
4,513
70
(8,390)
372
(85)
0
62,034

5,659
0
0
(709)
0
0
0
4,950

1,317
6,253
0
0
(919)
0
0
6,651

20,128
1,509
216
0
385
0
(1,838)
20,400

16
20
0
0
107
0
0
143

5,394
268
13
0
55
0
(387)
5,343

660
86
0
0
0
0
(15)
731

118,028
12,649
299
(10,859)
0
(130)
(2,240)
117,747

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3,713
3,024
0
(5,746)
0
0
991

121
121
0
(242)
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

12,180
1,935
0
0
0
(1,838)
12,277

16
8
0
0
0
0
24

3,815
582
0
0
0
(387)
4,010

79
115
9
0
0
(15)
188

19,924
5,785
9
(5,988)
0
(2,240)
17,490

Net book value
- Owned at 1 April 2009
- Finance lease at 1 April 2009
- Donated at 1 April 2009
Total at 1 April 2009

19,300
0
0
19,300

60,942
0
899
61,841

5,538
0
0
5,538

1,317
0
0
1,317

6,489
289
1,170
7,948

0
0
0
0

1,557
0
22
1,579

562
0
19
581

95,705
289
2,110
98,104

- Owned at 31 March 2010
- Finance lease at 1 April 2010
- Donated at 31 March 2010
Total at 31 March 2010

17,495
0
0
17,495

60,128
0
915
61,043

4,950
0
0
4,950

6,651
0
0
6,651

6,785
214
1,124
8,123

119
0
0
119

1,306
0
27
1,333

526
0
17
543

97,960
214
2,083
100,257

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2009
Provided during the period
Impairment depreciation
Revaluation
Transferred to disposal group as held for sale
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2010

Property, plant and equipment totalling £299,000 (2008/09: £615,000) were donated to the Trust by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Funds.
At 31 March 2010, included within Land were £1,595,000 and within Buildings excluding dwellings £57,000 net book value relating to unprotected assets that are anticipated to be
sold by the Trust. These assets did not meet the criteria as being 'held for sale' as set out in IFRS 5.
17.2 Analysis of property, plant and equipment 31 March 2010
Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction and
payments on
account*

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total 31 March
2010

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

14,150
3,345
17,495

55,976
5,067
61,043

0
4,950
4,950

0
6,651
6,651

0
8,123
8,123

0
119
119

0
1,333
1,333

0
543
543

70,126
30,131
100,257

Net book value
- Protected Assets as at 31 March 2010
- Unprotected Assets as at 31 March 2010

- Total at 31 March 2010
All land, buildings and dwellings are Freehold.

Page 28

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010
17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
17.3 Property, plant and equipment for 2008/09 comprise the following elements:
Land

£000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2008
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments
Reclassifications
Disposals
At 31 March 2009

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£000

Dwellings

£000

Assets under
construction and
payments on
account*
£000

Plant &
Machinery

£000

Transport
Equipment

£000

Information
Technology

£000

Furniture &
fittings

Total 31 March
2009

£000

£000

19,405
0
0
(105)
0
0
19,300

56,799
7,947
18
(3,968)
4,758
0
65,554

5,650
9
0
0
0
0
5,659

5,469
1,258
0
0
(5,410)
0
1,317

20,556
653
563
0
548
(2,192)
20,128

16
0
0
0
0
0
16

5,252
469
15
0
104
(446)
5,394

117
524
19
0
0
0
660

113,264
10,860
615
(4,073)
0
(2,638)
118,028

0
0
0
0

1
3,712
0
3,713

0
121
0
121

0
0
0
0

12,368
2,004
(2,192)
12,180

16
0
0
16

3,787
474
(446)
3,815

41
38
0
79

16,213
6,349
(2,638)
19,924

Net book value
- Owned at 1 April 2008
- Finance lease at 1 April 2008
- Donated at 1 April 2008
Total at 1 April 2008

19,405
0
0
19,405

55,858
0
940
56,798

5,650
0
0
5,650

5,469
0
0
5,469

6,869
392
927
8,188

0
0
0
0

1,453
0
12
1,465

76
0
0
76

94,780
392
1,879
97,051

- Owned at 31 March 2009
- Finance lease at 1 April 2009
- Donated at 31 March 2009
Total at 31 March 2009

19,300
0
0
19,300

60,942
0
899
61,841

5,538
0
0
5,538

1,317
0
0
1,317

6,489
289
1,170
7,948

0
0
0
0

1,557
0
22
1,579

562
0
19
581

95,705
289
2,110
98,104

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2008
Provided during the period
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2009

Property, plant and equipment totalling £615,000 (2007/08: £157,000) were donated to the Trust by Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Funds.
At 31 March 2009, included within Land were £1,640,000 and within Buildings excluding dwellings £199,000 net book value relating to unprotected assets that are anticipated to
be sold by the Trust. These assets did not meet the criteria as being 'held for sale' as set out in IFRS 5.
17.4 Analysis of property, plant and equipment 31 March 2009
Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction and
payments on
account*

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total 31 March
2009

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Net book value
- Protected Assets as at 31 March 2009
- Unprotected Assets as at 31 March 2009

15,404
3,896

57,230
4,611

0
5,538

0
1,317

0
7,948

0
0

0
1,579

0
581

72,634
25,470

- Total at 31 March 2009

19,300

61,841

5,538

1,317

7,948

0

1,579

581

98,104

All land, buildings and dwellings are Freehold.
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
17.5 Valuation of property, plant and equipment
Revaluations are only undertaken for the Trust's land, and buildings which are made up of both specialised and non-specialised buildings. Until 31 March
2008, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings had been estimated for an exact replacement of the asset in its present location. HM
Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets (MEA) and agreed that NHS
bodies must apply these new valuation requirements by 1 April 2010 at the latest.
The Trust had a MEA valuation performed as at 31 March 2010 by an independent external valuer, the District Valuer (DV). The valuation has been
undertaken on the basis that the land and buildings have been valued for the Trust's existing site (and not for an alternative site as also permitted by HM
Treasury).
MEA principles and assumptions used in the valuation are in line with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Red Book Standards. This means that
specialised property is valued at the cost of replacing the service potential of the existing property with a modern equivalent asset adjusted to take account
of depreciation on the existing asset. This is considered a change in valuation methodology rather than any change in accounting policy so no prior period
adjustment arises.
Where property is considered to be non-specialised, the DV has valued the buildings at open market value. Of the totals at 31 March 2010, £1,450,000
(2009: £1,455,000; 2008: £1,410,000) related to land valued at open market value and £7,760,000 (2009: £5,734,000; 2008: £5,765,000) related to
buildings and dwellings valued at open market value.
Plant and equipment are shown at depreciated historical cost as a proxy to fair value due to the lives of the assets being short.
Assets under construction comprise property, plant and equipment and are stated at cost.

17.6 Economic life of property, plant and equipment
The minimum and maximum economic lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land
Buildings excluding dwellings
Dwellings
Assets under construction
Plant and machinery
Transport equipment
Information technology
Furniture and fittings

Min. Life
Years

Max. Life
Years

infinite
5
15
N/A
2
7
2
5

infinite
70
80
N/A
10
10
10
10

Land and building lives have been determined by the District Valuer as part of the MEA valuation exercise carried out prospectively at 31st March 2010.
There is no significant change in the asset lives assigned to plant and equipment

17.7 Analysis of impairments of property, plant and equipment
31 March 2010

Unforeseen obsolescence
Changes in market price

31 March 2009

Total

Included in
operating
expenses

Charged
against
revaluation
reserve

9
4,871

9
3,636

4,880

3,645

Total

Included in
operating
expenses

Charged
against
revaluation
reserve

1,235

0
4,073

0
999

3,074

1,235

4,073

999

3,074

17.8 Assets owned that are leased under operating leases
Analysis of assets owned by the Trust that are leased to other entities as an operating lease are as follows:

Land

£000

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£000

198
0
0
0
0
0

4,847
0
83
154
83
0

Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment losses recognised in the year
Impairment losses reversed in the year
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18. Inventories
18.1 Analysis of inventories
31 March 2010
£000

31 March 2009
£000

1 April 2008
£000

1,184
0

1,012
0

953
0

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

12,985

10,877

6

5

12,991

10,882

31 March 2010
Property,
plant and
Total
equipment
£000
£000

31 March 2009

Materials
Inventories carried at fair value less costs to

18.2 Inventories recognised in expenses

Inventories recognised in expenses
Write-down of inventories recognised as an
expense
Total inventories recognised in expenses

19. Non-current assets held for sale

NBV of non-current assets held for sale at 31
March 2009 (1 April 2008)
Plus: assets classified as available for sale in
the year
NBV of non-current assets held for sale at 31
March 2010 (31 March 2009)

Total
£000

0

0

0

130

130

0

130

130

0

Assets held for sale comprise the Trust's Edmund Street premises which were vacated during 2008/9 and actively marketed
from May 2009. Several parties have shown interest in the property but an agreement to sell had not been completed by
31st March 2010. It is currently anticipated that agreement will be reached in the first half of 2010/11.
The property was valued by a professional valuer during 2008/9 at current market value . The value was confirmed current
at the time the property was classified as held for sale and considered to remain so at 31st March 2010.

Consequently no additional gain or loss has been recognised on classifying the property as held for sale or subsequently.
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20. Trade and other receivables
20.1 Trade and other receivables are made up of:
31 March
2010
£000

Financial
assets
£000

Nonfinancial
assets
£000

31 March
2009
£000

Financial
assets
£000

Nonfinancial
assets
£000

1 April 2008
£000

Financial
assets
£000

Nonfinancial
assets
£000

Current
NHS receivables
Other receivables with related parties
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments
Accrued income
Other receivables

3,061
2
(124)
824
26
1,819

3,061
2
(124)
0
26
1,577

0
0
0
824
0
242

1,352
5
(192)
754
158
1,224

1,352
5
(192)
0
158
1,037

0
0
0
754
0
187

2,078
5
(117)
822
200
1,222

2,078
5
(117)
0
200
900

0
0
0
822
0
322

Total

5,608

4,542

1,066

3,301

2,360

941

4,210

3,066

1,144

Provision for impaired receivables
Other receivables

(57)
733

(57)
733

0
0

(79)
1,016

(79)
1,016

0
0

(43)
552

(43)
552

0
0

Total

676

676

0

937

937

0

509

509

0

Non-current

The majority of trade is with Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), as commissioners for NHS patient care services. As PCTs are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services,
no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.
There were no prepaid pension contributions as at 31 March 20010, 31 March 2009 or 1 April 2008.
The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate to their carrying amounts.

20.2 Provision for impairment of receivables

At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amount utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

271
208
(117)
(181)

160
193
(25)
(57)

181

271

Receivables impaired include a 7.8% provision for doubtful debts relating to the NHS Injury Scheme to reflect the expected rates of collection. The 7.8% rate is based on external
guidance.
It also includes an actual provision for all sundry income invoices that are considered unlikely to be paid by the debtor. This is based on the Trust's detailed knowledge of the
debtor/debt.
These impairments are included in operating expenses within 'Increase in bad debt provision' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

20.3 Analysis of impaired receivables
31 March 2010
£000

31 March 2009
£000

Ageing of impaired receivables
Up to 3 months
In three to six months
Over six months

34
32
115

155
30
86

Total

181

271

Ageing of non-impaired receivables past their due date
Up to 3 months
In three to six months
Over six months

490
184
282

Total

956
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21. Trade and other payables
21.1 Trade and other payables are made up of:
Total
31 March
2010
£000

Financial
liabilities
£000

Nonfinancial
liabilities
£000

Total
31 March
2009
£000

Financial
liabilities
£000

Nonfinancial
liabilities
£000

Total
1 April
2008
£000

Financial
liabilities
£000

Nonfinancial
liabilities
£000

NHS payables

3,123

1,751

1,372

3,448

2,144

1,304

2,521

2,477

44

Amounts due to other related parties
Trade payables - capital
Other trade payables
Other payables
Accruals
PDC payable

1
1,125
1,409
2,494
3,162
67

1
1,125
1,409
288
3,162
0

0
0
0
2,206
0
67

2
832
790
2,169
3,246
0

2
832
790
155
3,246
0

0
0
0
2,014
0
0

2
1,144
1,118
307
4,659
0

2
1,144
1,118
239
4,659
0

0
0
0
68
0
0

11,381

7,736

3,645

10,487

7,169

3,318

9,751

9,639

112

Current

Total

The Trust complies with the Better Payment Practice Code and paid 96.9% of its invoices by their due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later,
during 2009/10. It expects to settle over 95% the above debt within this criteria. For further details see Better Payment Practice note 12.
The fair values of trade and other payables approximate to their carrying amounts.
21.2 Early retirements included in NHS payables
There are no payments due in future years under arrangements to buy out the liability for early retirements over 5 years.
There was £1,344,000 outstanding pensions contributions at 31 March 2010 included in NHS payables (2009: £1,274,000; 2008: £nil).
The above pensions contributions balance relates to the March 2010 pension liability which was settled on 19 April 2010.

22. Other liabilities
31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

1 April 2008
£000

Deferred income
Deferred government grant

1,011
212

1,610
212

1,322
212

Total

1,223

1,822

1,534

Deferred income
Deferred government grant

257
95

0
307

0
519

Total

352

307

519

Current

Non-current

The deferred government grant income relates to plant and equipment that has been capitalised and is included in note 17.
Income is released to operating income over the life of the asset in a manner consistent with the depreciation charge for that asset.
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23. Borrowings

Current

31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

1 April 2008
£000

Bank overdrafts
Loans from Foundation Trust
Financing Facility*
Obligations under finance leases

50

0

0

306
44

0
57

0
102

Total

400

57

102

Loans from Foundation Trust
Financing Facility*
Obligations under finance leases

4,894
174

0
218

0
275

Total

5,068

218

275

Non-current

An analysis of obligations under finance leases are shown in Note 25.

* During 2009/10, the Trust signed a 10 year loan agreement facility for £11.5m from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
(FTFF) to fund a capital scheme for the building of three new wards. The loan is unsecured. The first drawdown of the loan was
on 28 September 2009 and further drawn downs will be based on a schedule of anticipated capital expenditure on the scheme.
The amount shown in current borrowings represents the obligation to repay the loan based on the liability at the balance sheet
date, although the actual repayment during 2010/11 may be higher due to the impact of future draw downs during 2010/11.
£000
Initial drawdown
Drawdown
Drawdown

Sept 2009
Dec 2009
March 2010

£000

1,100
1,300
2,800
5,200

Maximum future drawdowns

2010/11

6,300
11,500

Interest has accrued from the date of this first drawdown and £23,000 was paid six months later on 15 March 2010 and is shown
within finance costs on Note 15. Interest arising on the loan from 15 March to 31 March 2010 has been accrued. The interest
rate of the loan is 2.84%.
There were no defaults or breaches of the FTFF loan during the year.

24. Prudential borrowing limit (PBL)

The Trust is required to comply with, and remain within, a prudential borrowing limit. This is made up of two elements:
- the maximum cumulative amount of long term borrowing. This is set by reference to the five ratios set out in Monitor's
Prudential Borrowing Code. The financial risk rating set under Monitor's Compliance Framework determines one of the ratios
and therefore can impact on the long term borrowing limit.
- the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.
Further information on the NHS Foundation Trusts Prudential Borrowing Code & Compliance Framework can be found on the
website of Monitor, the Independent Regulator of Foundation Trusts.
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24. Prudential borrowing limit (continued)
The Trust had a maximum cumulative long term borrowing limit of £32.0 million in 2009/10 (2008/09: £34.4m; 2007/08: £32.4m).
The Trust borrowed £5.2m in 2009/10 (2008/09: £nil). The Trust's borrowings are within the PBL and are details are shown in
Note 23.
The Trust has a £11 million (2008/09: £11m; 2007/08: £11m) approved working capital facility. This is in place but has not been
used during the periods of account. The expiry date of the facility is 31 March 2011.
The financial ratios for 2009/10 (2008/09) as published in the Prudential Borrowing Code are shown below with the actual level of
achievement for the period.

Financial Ratio
Minimum Dividend Cover
Minimum Interest Cover
Minimum Debt Service Cover
Maximum Debt Service to Revenue

Actual Ratio
2009-2010
5.43
387
165
0.06%

Approved PBL
ratio
2009-2010
>1
>3
>2
<2.5%

Actual Ratio
2008-2009
6.33
882
139
0.07%

Approved PBL
ratio
2008-2009
>1
>3
>2
<2.5%

25. Finance lease obligations
The Trust pays rentals for property, plant and equipment that are used but not owned by the Trust. The Trust has reviewed all
contracts where the Trust has the right to use an asset to determine whether in substance, an operating or finance lease exists.
Where the Trust has determined that a lease arrangement is that of an operating lease, these are disclosed in Note 7.2. Finance
leases that have been identified are included in this note. The future minimum lease payments due and the present value of the
minimum lease payments are shown below.

Minimum Lease Payments
31 March
2010
£000
Gross lease liabilities
of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later
- later than five years.
Finance charges allocated to future

Net lease liabilities
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later
- later than five years.

31 March
2009
£000

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments

1 April 2008
£000

55
192
0
247
(29)
218

72
220
27
319
(44)
275

121
237
82
440
(63)
377

44
174
0
218

57
191
27
275

102
197
78
377

Future sublease payments expected to be received total £nil (2008/09: £nil).
Contingent rents recognised as an expense £nil (2008/09: £nil).
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26. Provisions for liabilities and charges
31 March
2010
£000

Current
31 March
2009
£000

0
79
209
0
37

Non-current
1 April 2008
£000

31 March
2010
£000

31 March 2009
£000

1 April 2008
£000

0
75
182
0
119

0
71
233
0
113

0
973
0
0
600

0
981
0
0
612

0
944
3
0
499

325

376

417

1,573

1,593

1,446

Total
31 March
2010
£000

Pensions
relating to
former staff *
£000

Legal claims
**

Agenda for
change

Other ***

£000

£000

£000

At 1 April 2009
Change in the discount rate
Arising during the period
Utilised during the period
Reclassified to liabilities held in
disposal groups
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount

1,969
0
223
(268)

1,056
0
51
(78)

182
0
156
(66)

0
0
0
0

731
0
16
(124)

0
(63)
37

0
0
23

0
(63)
0

0
0
0

0
0
14

At 31 March 2010

1,898

1,052

209

0

637

325
434
1,139

79
296
677

209
0
0

0
0
0

37
138
462

1,898

1,052

209

0

637

Pensions relating to former directors
Pensions relating to other staff
Other legal claims
Agenda for Change
Other ***

Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

Events which may lead to the transfer of financial benefits from the Trust are quantified in these accounts if such a transfer is assessed by
the Trust as probable.Otherwise such events are disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 31.
* Pensions relating to former staff relate to provisions for early retirements. The provisions have been discounted at 2.2% to reflect the time
value of money. 'Arising during the period' for revised pensions provisions is charged to other expenditure and relates to changes in the life
expectancies of the retirees which are recalculated each financial year.
** Legal claims relate to employment tribunal claims totalling £95,000 (2009: £89,000) plus public and employee liability (personal injury)
claims totalling £114,000 (2009: £93,000). The provisions are not discounted as they are expected to be settled within a reasonable period
of time.
Personal injury claims are handled through the NHS Litigation Authority risk pooling scheme up to the Trusts excess limits. Amounts and
probability of settlement are assessed in accordance with recommendations given by the NHS Litigation Authority and external solicitors,
where available.
*** Other claims relate to permanent injury benefits totalling £637,000 (2009: £646,000) and a claim by HM Revenue and Customs for back
Tax and National Insurance on Student nurses which was settled during the year (2009: £85,000). Provisions for permanent injury benefits
are discounted at 2.2% to reflect the time value of money.
As at 31 March 2010 £29,212,000 (2009: £21,911,000) is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of clinical
negligence and liabilities of the Trust.
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27. Analysis of revaluation reserves

Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2009
Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment losses
property, plant and equipment
Transfers to the income and expenditure account in
respect of assets disposed of

Total
£000

Revaluation
reserve - PPE*
£000

33,256

33,256

(1,235)

(1,235)

(168)

(168)

Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2010

31,853

31,853

Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2008
Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment losses
property, plant and equipment
Transfers to the income and expenditure account in
respect of assets disposed of

36,550

36,550

(3,074)

(3,074)

(220)

(220)

33,256

33,256

Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2009

* PPE relates to property, plant and equipment
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28. Cash and cash equivalents
31 March 2010
£000

31 March 2009
£000

At 1 April
Net change in year

21,209
6,736

15,592
5,617

At 31 March
Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Other current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP
Bank overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF

27,945

21,209

10
27,935
0
27,945
(50)
27,895

722
20,487
0
21,209
0
21,209

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

4,655
135
4,790

2,223
15
2,238

0
3,766
403
235
195
191
4,790

1,556
616
0
0
66
0
2,238

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their carrying amounts.

29. Contractual capital commitments
Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets

The breakdown by project is:
Chesterfield Birth Centre refurbishment
Construction Costs of New wards for the 'Quality Through Capacity' Project
Equipment for the Decontamination of Flexible Endoscopes
Installation and Commissioning of new donated MRI Scanner
Other Medical equipment and IT projects
Other Building work projects

30. Events after the reporting period
There are no post balance sheet events having a material effect on the accounts in 2009/10 or 2008/09.

31. Contingent liabilities and assets
31 March 2010
£000

31 March 2009
£000

50
0
50

0
0
0

Gross value of contingent liabilities
Amounts recoverable against liabilities
Net value of contingent liabilities*
* Contingent liabilities relate to potential industrial tribunal costs in respect of former employees.
There were no contingent assets.
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32. Related party transactions
Transactions with key management personnel
IAS 24 requires disclosure of transactions with key management personnel during the year. Key
management personnel is defined in IAS 24 as "those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director
(whether executive or otherwise) of that entity". The Trust has deemed that its key management
personnel are the board members (directors and non-executive directors) of the Trust.
The transactions with board members are as follows:
2009/10
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
Value of transactions with board
members

0

2008/09
Income
Expenditure
£000
£000

828

0

1,071

Included in expenditure above, is key management personnel compensation which is analysed as
follows:

Short-term employee benefits *
Post-employment benefits **
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

750
78
828

790
75
206
1,071

* short-term employee benefits include salaries, employer's social security contributions and benefits in
kind.
** post employment benefits include employer's contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme.
The termination benefit shown for 2008/09 relates to a lump sum pension payment to the NHS Pensions
Agency.
The remuneration of board members is also shown in Note 8 of these accounts by individual board
member.
There were no outstanding balances with directors at 31 March 2010 (2009: £nil).
Other than key management personnel compensation as shown above, none of the board members or
members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken any material
transactions with Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
Other interests disclosures
The following declarations were made by board members in relation to positions held by them or their
partners in organisations which engage in business with the Trust:
Eric Morton was also Interim Chief Executive at Mid Staffordshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust during
this reporting period. He held this position from 5th March 2009 until 31st July 2009. He still remained
Chief Executive of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust whilst carrying out this additional
role.
Richard Gregory declared that he is currently a Non-Executive Director of National Australia Group
Europe Limited who trade as Yorkshire Bank.
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust do undertake material transactions with the
organisation concerned. Transactions however, are strictly on commercial terms and neither party can
influence or are party to the arrangements. The balance with Yorkshire Bank at 31 March 2010 was
£4,692 (2009: £4,424).
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32. Related party transactions (continued)
Transactions with other related parties
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a public benefit corporation authorised by Monitor the Independent Regulator for NHS Foundation Trusts. All NHS Foundation Trusts are independent bodies
which are not controlled by the Secretary of State. The Trust has considered whether or not the working
relationships it has with any NHS bodies and Government departments and agencies meet the definition of
a related party under IAS 24.
The value of transactions with government bodies and other related parties with which the Trust has had
material dealings and which therefore require disclosure are:
2009/10
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
Department of Health
Other NHS Bodies
Charitable Funds

47
167,942
349

3,054
23,259
0

2008/09
Income
Expenditure
£000
£000
3,701
149,326
653

0
18,433
0

The value of balances as at 31 March with government bodies and other related parties with which the
Trust has had material dealings and which therefore require disclosure are:
2009/10
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
Department of Health
Other NHS Bodies *
Charitable Funds **
Other ***

3
2,298
2
235

5,274
2,529
1
2,207

2008/09
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
0
614
4
187

91
2,947
2
2,014

*The NHS bodies with which the Trust considers material transactions have taken place are as follows:
2009/10
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
Derbyshire County PCT
East Midlands SHA
Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHSFT
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Logistics
NHS Pensions Agency

160,435
6,061
1,446
0
0
0

848
4
3,339
2,902
5,388
10,778

2008/09
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
Derbyshire County PCT
East Midlands SHA
Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHSFT
NHS Logistics
NHS Pensions Agency

142,611
5,835
880
0
0

Page 40

756
0
3,313
4,092
10,272

2009/10
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
1,833
102
363
0
0
0

44
0
885
12
216
1,372

2008/09
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
220
5
389
0
0

574
0
802
176
1,304
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32. Related party transactions (continued)
** The Trust has received revenue and capital contributions from Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust charitable funds (Charity Reg NO. 1052913). Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Charity. Details of the transactions are shown below:

Contributions from charitable funds to cover expenditure
Capital contributions from charitable funds

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

38
311

38
616

349

654

As at 31 March 2010, the Trust was owed £1,445 by the Charity (2009: £1,830).

*** The other related bodies with which the Trust considers material transactions have taken place are with
HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) who are related by virtue of being a fellow government body. Details of
the transactions for 2009/10 and 2008/09 are:

2009/10
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
0

HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC)

0

2008/09
Income Expenditure
£000
£000
0

HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC)

0

2009/10
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
235

2008/09
Receivables
Payables
£000
£000
187

The receivable balances relates to VAT recoverable due back from HMRC and the payable balances
relate to tax and social security costs owed to HMRC at the balance sheet dates.

No provisions have been made for bad and doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties. There were no bad debts written off during the year relating to related parties detailed above.
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33. Financial risk management
The Trust‟s activities do not significantly expose it to financial risks (liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign
currency risk).
The Trust‟s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined
formally within the Trust‟s Treasury Management Policy, standing financial instructions and other policies agreed by the
Board of Directors.
The Trust's Audit Committee oversees management compliance with financial risk management policies and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the financial risks faced by the Trust. The Trust's Audit
Committee is assisted by Internal Audit who regularly review the Trust's financial risk management controls and
procedures e.g. the Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust‟s internal auditors.
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period
in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments Disclosures)
applies to all financial instruments within the scope of IAS 32. Due to the continuing service/provider relationship that the
Trust has with the local PCT and the way those PCTs are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial
risk faced by commercial business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or
changing risk than would be typical of the listed companies to which IAS 32 and IAS 39 are mainly aimed at. Financial
assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risk facing
the Trust in undertaking its activities.
Liquidity risk
The Trust's cash flows are mainly stable and predictable. The Trust regularly reviews the level of cash required to fund its
activities. This involves preparing a cash flow forecast for the next three years, planning for repayments of debt at its
maturity and identifying an appropriate amount of headroom to provide a reserve against unexpected outflows.
The Trust also has a standby working capital facility of £11m which is available as and when required. To date the Trust
has not required to use this facility.
The Trust largely finances its capital expenditure from funds made available through internally generated resources but in
2009/10, the Trust borrowed from the Department of Health Foundation Trust Financing Facility (FTFF) to finance a new
capital scheme to build three new wards. Financing is drawn down to match the spend profile of the scheme concerned
and the Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks in this area.
Market Risk
The Trust has a loan from the Department of Health Foundation Trust Financing Facility (FTFF) and interest is charged
at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed at 2.84% for the life of the loan (ten years). The trust therefore has low exposure
to interest rate fluctuations.
Credit Risk
The Trust deposits surplus cash with a number of banks and with money market funds which have a minimum A1 credit
rating, in line with the Trust's Treasury Management policy.
The Trust‟s exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of cash at bank and short term deposits.
The majority of the Trust‟s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, and consequently the Trust has
low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2010 are in short term receivables from customers.
No further credit risk provision is required in excess of the normal provision for bad and doubtful debts disclosed in the
Trade and other receivables note.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the
UK and sterling based. The trust has no overseas operations. The trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate
fluctuations.
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34. Financial instruments
34.1 Financial assets by category
Set out below are the accounting classifications of each class of financial assets:

£000

Loans and
Receivables
£000

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

5,218
27,945

5,218
27,945

Total at 31 March 2010

33,163

33,163

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

3,293
21,209

3,293
21,209

Total at 31 March 2009

24,502

24,502

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

3,388
15,592

3,388
15,592

Total at 1 April 2008

18,980

18,980

Total

34.2 Financial liabilities by category
Set out below are the accounting classifications of each class of financial liabilities:

£000

Other Financial
Liabilities
£000

5,250
218
7,736

5,250
218
7,736

13,204

13,204

Total

Borrowings excluding finance lease obligations
Obligations under finance leases
Trade and other payables
Total at 31 March 2010
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34.2 Financial liabilities by category (continued)

Total
£000

Other
Financial
Liabilities
£000

Obligations under finance leases
Trade and other payables

275
7,169

275
7,169

Total at 31 March 2009

7,444

7,444

Obligations under finance leases
Trade and other payables

377
9,639

377
9,639

10,016

10,016

Total at 1 April 2008

34.3 Fair Values
The carrying amounts of all financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

35. Third Party Assets
The Trust held £3,713 in cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2010 (2009: £1,296; 2008: £21,862) which
relates to monies held on behalf of patients.
This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

36. Losses and Special Payments
There were 86 cases of losses and special payments totalling £52,347 which arose during the year. (2009:
148 cases totalling £118,331; 2008: 131 cases totalling £128,665).
These have been accounted for on an accruals basis but exclude provisions for future losses.
There were no clinical negligence, fraud, personal injury, compensation under legal obligation or fruitless
payment cases where the net payment exceeded £100,000 (2009: nil; 2008 nil).

37. Prior period adjustment
There are no prior period adjustments reported in the accounts for the years ended 31 March 2010, 31
March 2009 or 31 March 2008.
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38. Transition to IFRS
The transition to IFRS reporting has resulted in a few changes in the reported financial statements, notes thereto
and accounting principles compared to that which had been presented previously under UK GAAP. The changes
are as follows:
Retained
earnings
£000
Taxpayers’ equity at 31 March 2009 under UK GAAP:
Adjustments for IFRS changes:
Leases
Other *
Taxpayers’ equity at 1 April 2009 under IFRS:

104,693
14
1
104,708

£000
Surplus for 2008/09 under UK GAAP
Adjustments for:
Leases
Other *
Surplus for 2008/09 under IFRS

7,753
(1)
(1)
7,751

The UK GAAP 2008/09 cash flow statement included net movements in liquid resources of £2,000. This net
movement is included in the bottom line cash and cash equivalents figure in the 2009/10 statement of cash flows
under IFRS.
Leases
In accordance with the criteria for finance leases in IAS 17 'Leases' and IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease', a number of lease contracts have been classified as finance leases under IFRS.
The assets concerned have been capitalised and are included in Note 17 under Property, plant and equipment.
Other *
The amount included in other above relates to a accounting for losses and compensations on an accruals basis
rather than on a cash basis as outlined in Monitor's FT ARM.
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